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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2014
OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934

For the Transition Period From To
Commission File Number: 001-36307

Installed Building Products, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaer)

Delaware 45-370765C
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
495 South High Street, Suite 5
Columbus, Ohio 43215
(Address of principal executive offices (Zip Code)

(614) 221-3399
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act:

Title of each clas Name of each exchange on which register
Common Stock, $0.01 par value per shar The New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢iie Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 40%edBédturities Act.  Yed] No
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ornt®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yes[ No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @b tiled all reports required to be filed by SectiB or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4193
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shqmégiod that the registrant was required to filetsteports), and (2) has been subject to suclyfilin
requirements for the past 90 days. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant liisnitted electronically and posted on its corpox@tb site, if any, every Interactive Data File
required to be submitted and posted pursuant te R of Regulation S-T (Section 229.405 of thigpthr) during the preceding 12 months (or for such
shorter period that the registrant was requireslitomit and post such files). Ye&l No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquitlers pursuant to Iltem 405 of Regulation S-K i$ contained herein, and will not be containedhe t
best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive praxyinformation statements incorporated by refeegndPart 11l of this Form 10-K or any amendmenthis
Form 10-K.

Indicate by a check mark whether the registraatlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filepmaccelerated filer, or a smaller reporting comp&es
definition of “large accelerated filer,” “acceleedtfiler” and “smaller reporting company” in Rul2tt2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated file [ Accelerated file| O
Non-accelerated file (Do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting compar [
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantdbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Bxgfe Act). Yes[O No

The aggregate market value of the voting and namg@ommon equity held by non-affiliates compubgdreference to the price at which the common
equity was last sold on June 30, 2014, was $246639

On March 4, 2015 the registrant had 31,547,415eshaircommon stock, par value $0.01 per sharetamding.



DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statmnt relating to the 2015 Annual Meeting of Stodlkecs are incorporated by reference into Partflll o
this Annual Report on Form 10-K where indicatedctSDefinitive Proxy Statement will be filed withdtSecurities and Exchange Commission within 120
days after the end of the registrant’s fiscal y@rated December 31, 2014.
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Information Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 10-K includes forward-looking statementthin the meaning of U.S. federal securities lawkich involve risks and uncertainties.
These forward-looking statements can be identifigthe use of forward-looking terminology, inclugithe terms “believe,” “estimate,”
“project,” “aim,” “anticipate,” “expect,” “seek,” predict,” “contemplate,” “continue,” “possible,’ritend,” “may,” “plan,” “forecast,”

“future,” “might,” “could,” “would” or “should” or, in each case, their negative, or other variat@mmsomparable terminology. These forward-
looking statements include all matters that arehigibrical facts. They appear in a number of @abeoughout this Form 10-K and include
statements regarding our intentions, beliefs oreturexpectations concerning, among other thingsresults of operations, financial
condition, liquidity, prospects, growth strategitge industry in which we operate and potentiaudgitions. We derive many of our forward-
looking statements from our operating budgets anelchsts, which are based upon many detailed asismsip/Vhile we believe that our
assumptions are reasonable, we caution that érig difficult to predict the impact of known facspand, of course, it is impossible for us to
anticipate all factors that could affect our acteslults. All forward-looking statements are bagpdn information available to us on the date
of this Form 10-K.

” w ” o« ” o ” o ” w ” o ” o ” .

Important factors that could cause our resultsaty rom expectations include, but are not limited
» our dependence on the residential constructionsinguthe economy and the credit mark
* uncertainty regarding the housing recowv«
» declines in the economy or expectations regardiadbusing recovery that could lead to signifidargairment charge:
» the cyclical and seasonal nature of our busir
e our exposure to severe weather conditit
» the highly fragmented and competitive nature ofiadustry;
» product shortages or the loss of key suppli
» changes in the costs and availability of prodt
» inability to successfully acquire and integrateenthusinesse:
e our exposure to claims arising from our acquiredrapons;
» our reliance on key personn
* our ability to attract, train and retain qualifiechployees while controlling labor cos
e our exposure to product liability, workmanship veanty, casualty, construction defect and other daamd legal proceeding
» changes in, or failure to comply with, federaltstdocal and other regulatior
e disruptions in our information technology syste!
» our ability to implement and maintain effectivedmal control over financial reporting; a

» additional factors discussed under Item 1, Bess; Item 1A, Risk Factors; and Item 7, Manageim@&iscussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operationshif Form 1+K.

Should one or more of these factors materializehould any of our assumptions prove incorrect,aatwal results may vary in material
respects from those projected in these forwarditgpktatements. Any forward-looking statement miagless in this Form 10-K speaks only
as of the date of this Form 10-K. Factors or evémds could cause our actual results to differ mangerge from time to time, and it is not
possible for us to predict all of them. We undegtak obligation to publicly update any forward-loak statement, whether as a result of new
information, future developments, or otherwise,ept@as may be required by any applicable secut#ies.
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ltem 1. Business
OUR COMPANY

We are the second largest new residential insulatistaller in the United States based on our iv@legstimates, with a national platform
consisting of over 100 locations accessing custerimeall 48 continental states and the DistricCofumbia. We believe we have the number
one or two market position for new single-familgitation installation in more than half of the metskin which we operate, based on permits
issued in those markets. We also install compleargrituilding products, including garage doors, gitters, shower doors, closet shelving
and mirrors, which provide cross-selling opportigsito supplement our insulation installation basm

We manage all aspects of the installation procasseur customers, from our direct purchase andpeoé materials from national
manufacturers, to our timely supply of materialgoto sites and quality installation. Installatiohimsulation is a critical phase in the
construction process, as certain interior work camegin until the insulation phase passes inspecte benefit from our national scale,
long-standing supplier relationships and a broadaruer base that includes production and custonehaitders, multi-family and
commercial contractors, and homeowners.

Our business began in 1977 with one location iru@dlus, Ohio. In the late 1990s, we began our attiguistrategy with the goal of creating
a national platform. Since 1999, we have succdgsfompleted and integrated over 90 acquisitiortsictv has allowed us to generate
significant scale and to diversify our product oiffig while expanding into some of the most attractiousing markets in the United States.
Over the past several years, our net revenue hesaged at a faster rate than our operating experesilting in an improved cost structure
and a more efficient and scalable operating mamhprove our financial performance and returnsnmested capital. We believe we are \
positioned to continue to grow our business thratiighongoing housing recovery, organic growth arglesitions. For a further discussion of
our industry and trends affecting our industry agke refer to Item 7, Management'’s Discussion aralysis of Financial Condition, Key
Factors Affecting our Operating Results, in thisrRd 0-K.

OUR OPERATIONS

We manage all aspects of the installation proagseur customers, from our direct purchase andpeoé materials from national
manufacturers, to our timely supply of materialgoto sites and quality installation:

» In each of our markets, our branch managementtafidfaster close working relationships with localstomers
e Our branch management hires and trains installghsarnfocus on quality, safety and timely instadat

e Our branch sales staff analyzes constructianglmeasures the installation jobs to preparerustproposals that comply with
local building codes and energy efficiency standandd meet customer requireme

e Our branches order and receive delivery of matedakctly from national manufacture

»  Our branches break bulk and load required mateoiatis our vehicles for each job, and manage irstatthedules to ensure tim
installation that meets our custon’ scheduling requirement

» For each phase of product installation, outalters prepare the job site, professionally ingted materials to pass inspection,
clear-up when the installation is complete and returnsedumaterials to the branc

1
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Our Installation Process
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Our customers generally select their building patslinstaller based on quality and timeliness ofise, knowledge of local building codes,
pricing, relationships and reputation in the market these reasons, we emphasize the importarievefoping and maintaining customer
relationships at the local level and rely heavitytbe knowledge and experience of our branch manegeand staff.

Once we are selected for an installation job, sanbh staff coordinates with our customer to entheiethe job is completed in a quality
manner and within the customer’s production scheedtitroughout the construction process, our braatds and supervisory staff and
installation teams, typically consisting of a senistaller and one or two other installers, malegfient site visits to ensure timely and proper
installation and to provide general service suppbfe believe a high level of service is valued by customers and generates customer
loyalty. There are typically three phases to conepéen insulation installation: (i) basement indolainstallation; (ii) installation of insulation

in the exterior walls and air sealing of the stawet and (iii) insulation for the ceiling and atti/e also assist the builders with coordinating
inspection. In addition to visiting a job site chgieach of these three phases, we will returntigilding site when we are selected to install
other products such as garage doors, rain gusiessyer doors, closet shelving or mirrors. We belithat our ability to consistently complete
our installations within a customer’s productiohadule is recognized by our customers and is a&eyponent of our high level of service.

Insulation
Overview

We are the second largest new residential insulatistaller in the United States based on our iraleestimates. Insulation installation
comprised approximately 76% of our net revenudHeryear ended December 31, 2014. We handle etagg sf the installation process,
including material procurement, project scheduling logistics, multi-phase professional installatmd field quality inspection.

Insulation Materials
We offer a wide range of insulation materials, irthg:

» Fiberglass Insulation Fiberglass insulation is made of fibrous glass ithaeld together by a thermoset resin creatinglating ait
pockets. It typically contains an average of 50%¢ycéed
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content. It is primarily available in two forms:ttsa(also referred to as blankets) and loosefiiqaeferred to as blown in).
Fiberglass is the most widely used residentiallat&an material in the United States. Installatiofi§iberglass insulation
accounted for approximately 85% of our insulatiates for the year ended December 31, 2

e Spray Foam Insulation — Spray foam insulat®applied at a job site by mixing two chemical comgnts together in specialized
application equipment. It is generally polyureth&mem. While typically having the highest insulatimalue per inch and sealing
effectiveness of all insulation materials that \ffem it is also typically the most expensive oniastalled basis. Spray foam
insulation accounted for approximately 12% of awgulation sales for the year ended December 34.:

* Cellulose Insulation €ellulose insulation is made primarily of paper @addboard and has a very high recycled conteniulGse
is only available in loosefill form and is blownténthe structure with specialized equipment. Ceflelinsulation accounted for
approximately 3% of our insulation sales for tharyended December 31, 20:

Insulation Installation Application

Local building codes typically require insulatiankie installed in multiple areas of a structurecteef these areas is frequently referred to
phase of the insulation installation process andires a separate trip to the job site by our llestat different points in the construction of a
structure. Building practice and the inspectioncess differ geographically and call for our invahent at different times during the
construction process. We provide installation sliation and sealant materials in all areas ofucttre, which could include:

» Basement and Crawl Spa- These spaces can often account for the secondemesgy loss in a structut

« Building Envelope — We insulate the exteriollsvaf both residential and commercial structurgspplying insulation on the wall
or between the stud

» Attic — We insulate the attics of new and argtresidential structures. The attic is the arbane the most energy may be lost in a
home.

» Acoustical — Many builder or architect speations call for acoustical insulation for sounduetibn purposes in both residential
and commercial structures. This product is genemafitalled in the interior walls to minimize souttensmission

» In each of these applications, we typically fiserglass batts, except in attic installationsevehwe typically install loosefill
fiberglass.

Garage Doors

We install and service garage doors and openearsrtain of our locations for residential and comer@mew construction builders,
homeowners and commercial customers. We offeriatyasf options from some of the best-known gardger brands. We offer steel,
aluminum, wood and vinyl garage doors as well a&nep systems. Unlike the other products we indtedl garage door business has an
ongoing aftermarket service component. Garage ihstallations and service comprised approximatétyof our net revenue for the year
ended December 31, 2014.

Shower Doors, Shelving and Mirrors

Some of our locations install a variety of showetlesures, ranging from basic sliding door desipnsomplex custom designs. We have the
ability to meet our customers’ diverse needs byamizing shower enclosures by size and style adegii their specifications, such as
framing, hardware and glass options. We design and
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install closet shelving systems in select markétizing some of the highest quality products aghie from national brands. We also offer
standard and custom designed mirrors for our custenShower doors, closet shelving and mirror Ilsdtens comprised approximately 6%
of our net revenue for the year ended Decembe2@®14.

Rain Gutters

Some of our locations install a wide range of gaitters, which direct water from a home’s roof avirayn the structure and foundation. Rain
gutters are typically constructed from aluminuntopper and are available in a wide variety of cglshapes and widths. They are generally
fabricated and assembled on the job site usingajma equipment. The installation of rain gutteosnprised approximately 6% of our net
revenue for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Other Building Products

Some of our locations install other complementajding products, none of which is an individuadignificant percentage of net revenue.
Installation of other building products comprisggbeoximately 5% of our net revenue for the yeareehBecember 31, 2014.

Sales and Marketing

We seek to attract and retain customers througbpgimal customer service, superior installatioaldy, broad service offerings and
competitive pricing. Our strategy is centered oidirng and maintaining these strong customer refethips. We also capitalize on cross-
selling opportunities from existing customer redaships and identifying situations where customeaiy benefit from more than one of our
installation service offerings. By executing thisagegy, we believe we can continue to generateimental sales volumes with new and
existing customers.

Experienced sales and service professionals arertend to our customer growth and increasing odfigability. Retaining and motivating
local employees has been an important componeamiradicquisition and operating strategies. As ofdbawer 31, 2014, we employed
approximately 300 sales professionals and our $ates has spent an average of almost a decadewitbperations. The local sales staff,
which is generally led by the branch manager,spoesible for maintaining relationships with ousttumers. These local teams work
diligently to increase sales by supporting our tixiscustomers with excellent service and valudavaiso pursuing new customers with
competitive offerings. In addition to the effortsour sales staff, we market our product and sereiterings on the internet, in the local
yellow pages and through advertisements in tradengs. We primarily conduct our marketing usingditrademarks and trade namr

Quality Control and Safety

Our quality control process starts with the inipabposal. Our sales staff and managers are knge#ie about our service offerings and
scope of work. They are trained on manufacturgugielines as well as state and local building so@r quality control programs empha
onsite inspections, training by manufacturers aaribus certification programs.

We consider risk management and safety to be abumi@ess objective. Significant staffing, fundamg other resources are allocated to our
management that directly impact quality and safi@tyur employees and our customers. Our branchagers are held accountable for the
safety of employees and quality of workmanshiphatirtlocations. We provide our employees with omgdraining and development
programs necessary to generate best in class watkygand safety performance.

4
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CUSTOMERS

We serve a broad group of national, regional andllbomebuilders, multi-family and commercial beils, individual homeowners and repair
and remodeling contractors. Our top ten customngh are a combination of national and regionaldeus, accounted for approximately
14% of net revenue for the year ended Decembe2@®4. No single customer accounted for more tharoBBet revenue during the year
ended December 31, 2014.

BACKLOG

Due to our customers’ strict demand for timely afistion of our products, our installation jobs aokheduled and completed within a short
timeframe. We do not consider backlog materialuohusiness.

SUPPLIERS

We have long-term relationships with many of oysiers and have not experienced any significasrughtion in the supply of any of the
primary materials we purchase and install. As dritb@largest purchasers of fiberglass and spragnfmsulation in the United States, we
maintain particularly strong relationships with taegest manufacturers of these insulation prodddts proximity of certain of our branch
locations to insulation manufacturers’ facilitie®yides additional mutual benefits, including ogpaities for cost savings and joint planning
regarding future production. We also maintain goadtionships with suppliers of the non-insulatmnducts we install. We believe that the
pricing, terms and rebates we receive from our kersp as well as supply assurance, are favoratdehave found that using multiple
suppliers helps to ensure a stable source of mtend favorable purchasing terms as supplierpeterto gain and maintain our busines:
addition, our national purchasing volumes provigesrage with suppliers. We continue to pursue muddit procurement cost savings and
purchasing synergies.

SEASONALITY

We tend to have higher sales during the secondohétie year as our homebuilder customers complatstruction of homes placed under
contract for sale in the traditionally strongerisprselling season. In addition, some of our lalg@anches operate in states impacted by w
weather and, as such, experience a slowdown irtroatisn activity during the first quarter of thalendar year. This winter slowdown
contributes to traditionally lower sales in ousfiguarter.

The composition and level of our working capitglitally change during periods of increasing satewea carry more inventory and
receivables, although this is generally offsetant oy higher trade payables to our suppliers. \Warkapital levels typically increase in the
summer and fall seasons due to higher sales dtiéhgeak of residential construction activity. Bubsequent collection of receivables and
reduction in inventory levels during the winter nimnhas typically positively impacted cash flowthe past, from time to time, we have
utilized our borrowing availability under our créécilities to cover short-term working capitaleuts.

COMPETITION

We believe that competition in our industry is lthea quality and timeliness of service, knowled§tecal building codes, pricing,
relationships and reputation in the market. Wetlagesecond largest new residential installer dfilet#on in the United States based on our
internal estimates. The building products instadlatndustry is fragmented. The markets for our-imsulation installation services are even
more fragmented than the markets for insulatiotalfeion services. Our competitors include twoesttarge national contractors, several
large regional contractors and numerous local estdrs. We expect to continue to effectively corapetour local markets given our long
standing customer relationships, access to captalye and quality of local staff, quality inséibn reputation and competitive pricing.

5
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EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2014, we had approximately 3g@@ployees, consisting of approximately 2,580 ltesty 300 sales professionals, 180
production personnel and 540 administrative andagament personnel. Fewer than 15 of our employreesoaered under collective
bargaining agreements. We have never experieneglastoppage or strike and we believe that we lggaal relations with our employees.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

JobCORE is our web-enabled internal software telclyyo The system is designed to operate our busimes highly efficient manner and
manage our operations. In addition, we integradt€{ORE into our acquired operations. The jobCORBrso® provides in-depth operational
and financial performance data from individual lotaes to the corporate office. JObCORE providesuisbranch managers and our
salespeople with an important operational toohfi@nitoring branch level performance. It assists ag@ment in assessing important business
questions, including customer analysis, sales atafysis, branch analysis and other operatingities.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

We possess intellectual property rights, includiaglemarks, trade names and know-how and otheriptagy rights that are important to our
business. In particular, we maintain registeredemaarks and trade names, some of which are thenradks and trade names under which
many of our local branches operate. While we ddyetieve our business is dependent on any onerdfademarks or trade names, we
believe that our trademarks and trade names arerteni to the development and conduct of our bssitas well as to the local marketing of
our services. We also maintain domain name regjsitréor each of our local branch websites. We meafkerts to protect our intellectual
property rights, however, the actions taken by ay bve inadequate to prevent others from using airritellectual property. In addition, thi
parties may assert claims against our use of auieial property and we may be unable to succegskablve such claims.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND REGULATORY MATTERS

We are subject to various federal, state and lgoatrnment regulations applicable in the jurisdics in which we operate, including laws
regulations relating to our relationships with eanployees, public health and safety, work placetgafransportation, zoning and fire codes.
We strive to operate in accordance with applictdbles, codes and regulations.

Our transportation operations are subject to tgalatory jurisdiction of the Department of Trangjation, or DOT, which has broad
administrative powers. We are also subject to gaéxuirements governing interstate operationsqpifesd by the DOT. Vehicle dimension
and weight and driver hours of service also argestito both federal and state regulation. Our afiens are also subject to the regulatory
jurisdiction of the U.S. Department of Lal's Occupational Safety and Health AdministrationO&HA, which has broad administrative
powers regarding workplace and jobsite safety.

Our operations and properties are also subje@derél, state and local laws and regulations rejab the use, storage, handling, generation,
transportation, treatment, emission, release, digghand disposal of hazardous or toxic matesalsstances, wastes and petroleum products
and the investigation, remediation, removal anditmadng of the presence or release of such matersalbstances, wastes and petroleum
products, including at currently or formerly ownadoccupied premises and off-site disposal locatidie have not previously incurred
material costs to comply with environmental lawsd a@gulations. However, we could be subject to nlteosts, liabilities or claims relating
to environmental compliance in the future, espécialthe event of changes in existing laws anditatipns or in their interpretation or
enforcement.
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As the nature of our business involves the useandling of certain potentially hazardous or toxibstances, including spray foam
applications and lead-based paint, we may be radtelfor claims alleging injury or damage resigtinom the release of or exposure to such
substances, as well as claims relating to the poesef mold, fungal growth and moisture intrusiieged in connection with our business
activities. In addition, as owners and lesseegalf property, we may be held liable for, among othimgs, releases of hazardous or toxic
substances or petroleum products on, at, undenanating from currently or formerly owned or opethproperties, or any off-site disposal
locations, or for any known or newly discoverediemvmental conditions at or relating to any of puoperties, including those arising from
activities conducted by previous occupants or giiaithg properties, without regard to whether wewrof or were responsible for such
release. We may be required to investigate, rentreveediate or monitor the presence or releaseatf Bazardous or toxic substances or
petroleum products and may be held liable by a gowental entity for fines and penalties or to amydt parties for damages, including for
bodily injury, property damage and natural resout@mage in connection with the presence or releflsazardous or toxic substances or
petroleum products.

To date, costs to comply with applicable laws aglitations relating to pollution or the protectmfrhuman health and safety, the
environment and natural resources have not haderiadaadverse effect on our financial conditioroperating results, and we do not
anticipate incurring material expenditures to compith environmental laws and regulations in therent fiscal year.

In conjunction with our lease agreements and dtia@sactions, we often provide reasonable and mwtpoindemnifications relating to
various matters, including environmental issuesdai®, we have not had to pay a material amousuamt to any such indemnification
obligations.

In addition, our suppliers are subject to variasd and regulations, including in particular, eammental laws and regulations.

CORPORATE AND AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Installed Building Products, Inc. is a Delawarepmoation formed on October 28, 2011. Installed &ni Products, Inc. is a holding comp:
that derives all of its operating income from ihsidiaries. Our principal executive offices arealed at 495 South High Street, Suite 50,
Columbus, Ohio 43215. Our main telephone numbgglig) 221-3399. We completed our initial publicesfiig in February 2014 and our
common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exgjennder the symbol “IBP.” Unless the context reegibtherwise, the terms “IBP,tHe
company,” “we,” “us” and “our” in this Form 10-K fer to Installed Building Products, Inc. and itbsidiaries.

Our corporate website is located at www.installéidimgproducts.com, and our investor relations vitebis located at
http://investors.installedbuildingproducts.com. @gpof our Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on FormQ@,0€urrent Reports on Form 8-K, and
amendments to these reports filed or furnishedyaumsto Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SecuritiesHaxge Act of 1934, as amended, or the
Exchange Act, are available, free of charge, oniroeestor relations website as soon as reasonaattipable after we file such material
electronically with or furnish it to the Securitiaad Exchange Commission, or the SEC. The SEChadsiatains a website that contains our
SEC filings. The address of the site is www.sec.ganther, a copy of this Form 10-K is locatedhet SECS Public Reference Room at 10
Street, NE, Washington, D.C. 20549. Informatiortlmm operation of the Public Reference Room canbit&irmed by calling the SEC at
1-800-SEC-0330.

We webcast our earnings calls and certain evenigant&ipate in or host with members of the investinrcommunity on our investor relatic
website. Additionally, we provide notifications wéws or announcements regarding our financial padace, including SEC filings, invest
events, and press and earnings releases as pant iofzestor relations website. We have used, athd to continue to use, our investor
relations website as means of disclosing mateaatpublic information and for complying with disslare obligations under Regulation FD.
Further corporate governance information, includdng certificate of incorporation, bylaws,
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governance guidelines, board committee chartetscade of business conduct and ethics, is alsdadN@ion our investor relations website
under the heading “Corporate Governance.” The cosief our websites are not intended to be incateor by reference into this Form 10-K
or in any other report or document we file with 8EC, and any references to our websites are iatetudbe inactive textual references only.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There are a number of business risks and unceesithiat could affect our business. These risksumeértainties could cause our actual
results to differ from past performance or expect=ilts. We consider the following risks and utaiaties to be most relevant to our
business activities. Additional risks and uncetiasinot presently known to us, or that we cursebélieve to be immaterial, also may
adversely impact our business, financial conditiod results of operations. We urge investors tsiden carefully the risk factors described
below in evaluating the information contained irstteport.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS

Our business is dependent on the U.S. residentiadrstruction industry, economy, credit markets and ther important factors, many of
which are beyond our control.

We are highly dependent on the level of new homrmstraction, which in turn is dependent upon a nunatbéactors, including interest rates,
consumer confidence, employment rates, foreclosies, housing inventory levels, housing demandtiaadhealth of the economy and
mortgage markets. Unfavorable changes in demograptiiedit markets, political conditions, consuenfidence, household formation,
housing affordability or housing inventory leveds,a weakening of the national economy or of amgyorgal or local economy in which we
operate, could adversely affect consumer spendasgjt in decreased demand for homes and adveaffebt our business. Additional
headwinds may come from the efforts and propoddmamakers to reduce the debt of the federal guwent and/or solve state budget
shortfalls through tax increases and/or spending, end financial markets’ and businesses’ reastiorthose efforts and proposals, which
could impair economic growth.

The housing market recovery faces significant chathges.

While some of the challenges facing the housingketdirst showed signs of moderating in 2012, selemain, and these challenges could
return and/or intensify to limit the extent of amgovery of or future improvement in housing mait@iditions. These challenges include

(i) weak general economic and employment growth grmong other things, limits consumer incomessaamer confidence and demand for
homes; (ii) elevated levels of mortgage loan delertries, defaults and foreclosures that could adah inventory of lendeswned homes th
may be sold in competition with new and resale hoatdow distressed prices or that generate shtas sictivity at such price levels; (iii) a
significant number of homeowners whose outstangiigcipal balance on their mortgage loan exceedsrtarket value of their home, which
undermines their ability to purchase another hdmethey otherwise might desire and be able ta@ff@v) volatility and uncertainty in U.S.
financial, credit and consumer lending markets astoev growth or recessionary conditions; and (@htilending standards and practices for
mortgage loans that limit consumers’ ability to kifydor mortgage financing to purchase a homeluding increased minimum credit score
requirements, credit risk/mortgage loan insurameenums and/or other fees and required down payar@ounts, more conservative
appraisals, higher loan-to-value ratios and extenisuyer income and asset documentation requirem@iten these factors, the present
housing recovery may not continue or gain furthemmantum or return to the historic levels and misiofle-family and multi-family new
home construction activity, which could adversdfget our business, financial condition, result©pérations and cash flows.

The present housing recovery is relative to thehisally low levels of home sales and residemntialv construction activity experienced
during the recent housing downturn. Even with thutn, which first showed
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signs of moderating in 2012, new home construatéonains well below, and may not return to, the deskls reached shortly before the
housing downturn began in 2006. In addition, werafgein certain markets where new home construddigs the housing recovery. If the
present new home construction recovery stalls es amt continue at the same pace, or any or #leofiegative factors described above
persist or worsen, there would likely be a corresfing adverse effect on the new home constructiarket, which would have a material
adverse effect on our business and our consolidatadcial statements, including, but not limited the amount of revenues we generate and
our ability to operate profitably.

A decline in the economy and a deterioration in exgxtations regarding the housing recovery could restin our taking additional
significant non-cash impairment charges, which coudl negatively affect our earnings and reduce stockiaers’ equity.

Annually, we assess qualitative factors to deteeniiit is more likely than not that the fair valoéa reporting unit is less than its carrying
amount. This assessment had led to impairmentadwil in years prior to 2012. We did not record/agoodwill impairment charges in
2014, 2013, or 2012; however, a decline in the etgtion of our future performance or deterioratioexpectations regarding the timing and
the extent of the recovery of new home constructioth home improvement may cause us to recognizéadd non-cash, pre-tax
impairment charges for goodwill and other indeérived intangible assets or other long-lived assshich are not determinable at this time.
In addition, as a result of our acquisition strgtege have recorded additional goodwill and mawimmpairment charges in connection with
prior and future acquisitions. If the value of gadtior other intangible assets is impaired, oumé@ags and stockholders’ equity would be
adversely affected. In addition, if future acqudsis are not successful, we may record additionakpected impairment charges.

Our business is cyclical and significantly affectetby changes in general and local economic conditien

Demand for our services is cyclical and highly g#@resto general and local economic conditions avaich we have no control, including
changes in:

» the number of new home and commercial building tonton starts

» shor- and long-term interest rate:

+ inflation;

« employment levels and job and personal income drc

* housing demand from population growth, househoithédion and other demographic chang

» availability and pricing of mortgage financifay homebuyers and commercial financing for devetsf multi-family homes and
subcontractors

» consumer confidence generally and the confideng®tntial homebuyers in particuli
e U.S. and global financial system and credit maskaiility;

» private party and government mortgage loan iaog and federal and state regulation, oversigihiegal action regarding
lending, appraisal, foreclosure and short saletipes;

» federal and state personal income tax rategpemdsions, including provisions for the deductmfimortgage loan interest
payments, real estate taxes and other expense

» federal, state and local energy efficiency progranegulations, codes and standa

Adverse changes in these conditions may affecbasiness generally or may be more prevalent orer@nated in particular markets in wh
we operate. Any deterioration in economic condgion continuation of uncertain economic conditionsld have a material adverse effect
our business, financial condition, results of ofierss and prospects.
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Our business may be affected by severe weather catidns and is seasonal.

Severe weather conditions, such as unusually pgeldigold conditions, rain, blizzards or hurricarcesild accelerate, delay or halt
construction or installation activity. The impadttioese types of events on our business may adyenspact our net revenue, cash flows fi
operations and results of operations. If net regamere to fall substantially below what we wouldmally expect during certain periods, our
financial results for those periods would be adslgranpacted.

We tend to have higher sales during the secondohétie year as our homebuilder customers complatstruction of homes placed under
contract for sale in the traditionally strongerisprselling season. In addition, some of our lal@anches operate in states impacted by w
weather and, as such, experience a slowdown irtromtion activity during the first quarter of thalendar year. This winter slowdown
contributes to traditionally lower sales in ousfiguarter.

Our industry is highly fragmented and competitive,and increased competitive pressure may adverselyfatt our business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows.

The building products installation industry is higfragmented and competitive. We face significaminpetition from other national, regional
and local companies. Any of these competitors njapiesee the course of market development morarately than we do; (i) offer
services that are deemed superior to ours; (8igilhbuilding products at a lower cost; (iv) dektronger relationships with homebuilders
and suppliers; (v) adapt more quickly to new tedbgies, new installation techniques or evolvingtoaser requirements; or (vi) have access
to financing on more favorable terms than we canaiobin the market. As a result, we may not be &bleompete successfully with them. If
we are unable to compete effectively, our businf@sancial condition, results of operations andctisws may be adversely affected.

In the event that increased demand leads to hjgtegs for the products we install, due to the finegted and competitive nature of our
industry, we may have limited, if any, ability tags on price increases in a timely manner or atrathe past, we have generally been able to
pass on these increases to our customers over time.

Product shortages or the loss of key suppliers calibffect our business, financial condition, resultef operations and cash flows.

Our ability to offer a wide variety of productsdar customers is dependent upon our ability toink#dequate product supply from
manufacturers. We do not typically enter into Idegn agreements with our suppliers but have dorfeosotime to time. See Note 11,
Commitments and Contingencies, Supply Contract Cibmemts, to our audited consolidated financialestants included in this Form 10-K
for additional information regarding commitmentslamntingencies. Generally, our products are abigl&om various sources and in
sufficient quantities. However, the loss of, ouastantial decrease in the availability of, produodm our suppliers or the loss of key supy
arrangements could adversely impact our businesmdial condition, results of operations and déshs. In prior downturns in the housing
industry, manufacturers have reduced capacity tiired) plants and production lines within plantse&¥ such capacity reductions are not
permanent, there may be a delay in manufacturbitityato increase capacity in times of rising derdalf the demand for products from
manufacturers and other suppliers exceeds theadlaisupply, we may be unable to source additipraducts in sufficient quantity or qual
in a timely manner and the prices for the prodtles we install could rise. These developmentsataftfiect our ability to take advantage of
market opportunities and limit our growth prospe@asr three largest suppliers in aggregate accdunteapproximately 47% of our material
purchases for the year ended December 31, 2014ow@ually evaluate our supplier relationships aheny given time may move some or
all of our purchases from one or more of our sgrpliThere can be no assurance that any such aatidd have its intended effect.
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Failure by our suppliers to continue to providemith products on commercially favorable terms, balf could put pressure on our operating
margins or have a material adverse effect on manitial condition, operating results and/or castvdl Our inability to source materials in a
timely manner could also damage our relationshils @ur customers.

Changes in the costs of the products we install catecrease our profit margins.

The principal building products that we install babeen subject to price changes in the past, sbmbkich have been significant. Our results
of operations for individual quarters can be andeHaeen hurt by a delay between the time buildioglpct cost increases are implemented
and the time we are able to increase prices fopoducts, if at all. Our supplier purchase prictien depend on volume requirements. If we
do not meet these volume requirements, our cosiisl @crease and our margins may be adverselytafletn addition, while we have been
able to achieve cost savings through volume pumfamd our relationships with suppliers, we mayb®able to continue to receive
advantageous pricing for the products that we iinsthich could have a material adverse effect anfmancial condition, results of
operations and cash flows.

We may be unable to successfully acquire and integte other businesses.

We may be unable to continue to grow our businesgigh acquisitions. We may not be able to continudentify suitable acquisition
candidates and may face increased competitiorhéset acquisition candidates. In addition, acquitesinesses may not perform in
accordance with expectations, and our businessrjadts concerning the value, strengths and weakne$sequired businesses may not
prove to be correct. We may also be unable to gehégpected improvements or achievements in bustsdbat we acquire. At any given
time, including currently, we may be evaluatingrodiscussions with one or more acquisition canislancluding entering into non-binding
letters of intent. Future acquisitions may resuithie incurrence of debt and contingent liabilitiegal liabilities, goodwill impairments,
increased interest expense and amortization exgertseignificant integration costs.

Acquisitions involve a number of special risks,luming:
* our inability to manage acquired businesses orrobinttegration costs and other costs relatingciguésitions;
» potential adverse sh-term effects on operating results from increasediscor otherwise
» diversion of manageme's attention
» failure to retain existing key personnel of thew@oed business and recruit qualified new employdhle location
» failure to successfully implement infrastructuiagistics and systems integratic
» potential impairment of goodwil
» risks associated with the internal controls of &eglicompanies

e exposure to legal claims for activities of #euired business prior to acquisition and ingbititrealize on any indemnification
claims, including with respect to environmental amehigration claims

» therisks inherent in the systems of the acquiresiness and risks associated with unanticipatedtsw liabilities; anc

e our inability to obtain financing necessary to coetg acquisitions on attractive terms or at

Our strategy could be impeded if we do not identifiyface increased competition for, suitable asitjoh candidates and our business,
financial condition, results of operations and cfelvs could be adversely affected if any of theefgoing factors were to occur.
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We may be subject to claims arising from the operains of our various businesses for periods prior tthe dates we acquired them.

We have consummated over 90 acquisitions. We maybject to claims or liabilities arising from themnership or operation of acquired
businesses for the periods prior to our acquisibibthem, including environmental, employee-relaaed other liabilities and claims not
covered by insurance. These claims or liabilitiesld be significant. Our ability to seek indemnéfion from the former owners of our
acquired businesses for these claims or liabilitiey be limited by various factors, including tipesific time, monetary or other limitations
contained in the respective acquisition agreemamdsthe financial ability of the former owners &tisfy our indemnification claims. In
addition, insurance companies may be unwillingdeer claims that have arisen from acquired busewess locations, or claims may exceed
the coverage limits that our acquired businessdsraffect prior to the date of acquisition. If @ee unable to successfully obtain insurance
coverage of third-party claims or enforce our indéiation rights against the former owners, athié former owners are unable to satisfy
their obligations for any reason, including becaafstheir current financial position, we could beldhliable for the costs or obligations
associated with such claims or liabilities, whidultl adversely affect our financial condition aedults of operations.

Our success depends on our key personnel.

Our business results depend largely upon the asedicontributions of our Chief Executive Officedasther members of our management
team. We do not have employment agreements wittohayr executive officers, other than Jeff Edwattle Chairman of our Board and our
Chief Executive Officer and President. Although eorployment agreement, dated November 1, 2013,MitiEdwards provides for a three-
year term, he is permitted under the agreemergsigm his employment at any time with only 30 ¢ prior written notice to us. Also, while

his employment agreement requires Mr. Edwards votgethe amount of time necessary to conduct osiness and affairs, he is also
permitted to engage in other business activitiasdio not create a conflict of interest or substdigtinterfere with his service to us, including
non-competitive operational activities for his reatate development business. See “Compensat@uoroExecutive Officers and Directors —
Compensation of Our Executive Officers - Employm&gteement with Jeff Edwards.” Although we maintkéy person life insurance on

Mr. Edwards, if he no longer serves in (or servesame lesser capacity than) his current rolef, weilose other members of our management
team, our business, financial condition and resfltsperations, as well as the market price ofsmaurities, could be adversely affected.

Our business results also depend upon our branoagees and sales personnel, including those of anieg recently acquired. While we
customarily sign non-competition agreements, typidasting two years post- employment, with ouatch managers and sales personnel in
order to maintain key customer relationships inmarkets, such agreements do not protect us fglynat competition from former
employees.

We are dependent on attracting, training and retaiiing qualified employees while controlling labor cofs.

We must attract, train and retain a large numbeuafified employees while controlling related lalbosts. We compete with other busine:
for these employees. Tighter labor markets, dwercovering housing market or otherwise, may nitak@re difficult for us to hire and
retain installers and control labor costs. Ourighbib control labor costs is subject to numeroxiemal factors, including competitive wage
rates and health and other insurance costs. Iti@adthanges in the federal or state minimum wagéving wage requirements or change
other workplace regulations could adversely afestability to meet our financial targets.

Higher health care costs and labor costs could adrsely affect our business.

With the passage in 2010 of the U.S. Patient Ptioteand Affordable Care Act, or the Affordable €aixct, we are required to provide
affordable coverage, as defined in the AffordakdeeCAct, to all employees, or otherwise be sulijeet payment per employee based on the
affordability criteria therein. Many of these regaments will
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be phased in over a period of time, some havirepdly become effective this past year with othertoseecome effective in 2015. We
anticipate that as these requirements continuedorbe effective, we could experience higher hezltk and labor costs in the future.
Additionally, some states and localities have passete and local laws mandating the provisioneofain levels of health benefits by some
employers. Increased health care and insurance costd have an adverse effect on our businesmdial condition and results of operatic
In addition changes in federal or state workplaggutations could adversely affect our ability toaheur financial targets.

Changes in employment laws may adversely affect olwusiness.
Various federal and state labor laws govern thetigeiship with our employees and impact operatwgf< These laws include:
. employee classification as exempt or -exempt for overtime and other purpos
. minimum wage requirement
. unemployment tax rate
. worker¢ compensation rate
. immigration status
. mandatory health benefit
. paid leaves of absence, including paid sick le
. tax reporting; ani
. other wage and benefit requiremel

Significant additional government-imposed incredrdhe preceding areas could have a material adweffect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

In addition, various states in which we operatecamsidering or have already adopted new immigndtavs or enforcement programs, and
the U.S. Congress and Department of Homeland Sgdroim time to time consider and may implementraes to federal immigration laws,
regulations or enforcement programs as well. Sohtleese changes may increase our obligations fmptiance and oversight, which could
subject us to additional costs and make our hipiragess more cumbersome, or reduce the availabflipptential employees. Although we
verify the employment eligibility status of all oamployees, including through participation in tBeVerify” program where required, some
of our employees may, without our knowledge, beutimarized workers. However, use of the “E-Verifybgram does not guarantee that we
will properly identify all applicants who are ingible for employment. Unauthorized workers are sobjo deportation and may subject us to
fines or penalties, and if any of our workers anenfd to be unauthorized we could experience adyrriskcity that negatively impacts our
brand and may make it more difficult to hire an@eualified employees. Termination of a signiftcanmber of employees who were
unauthorized employees may disrupt our operaticaisse temporary increases in our labor costs dswmenew employees and result in
additional adverse publicity. We could also bec@ulgject to fines, penalties and other costs rekmethims that we did not fully comply
with all recordkeeping obligations of federal atats immigration compliance laws. These factorddtbave a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openat

We may be subject to periodic litigation and reguléory proceedings, including Fair Labor Standards A¢ and state wage and hour
class action lawsuits, which may adversely affectiobusiness and financial performance.

From time to time, we may be involved in lawsuitsl aegulatory actions, including class action laigstinat are brought or threatened age
us for alleged violations of the Fair Labor Stanidafct, or the FLSA, and state
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wage and hour laws. See Note 11, Commitments antir@encies, to our audited consolidated finansialements for the year ended
December 31, 2014 included in Item 8 of Part Ithoé Form 10-K for additional information regardingmmitments and contingencies.

The nature of our business exposes us to producability, workmanship warranty, casualty, construction defect, breach of contract
and other claims and legal proceedings.

We are subject to product liability, workmanshipriaaty, casualty, construction defect, breach oftiget and other claims relating to the
products we install that, if adversely determinzalyld adversely affect our financial condition,ukts of operations and cash flows. We rely
on manufacturers and other suppliers to provideitlsmost of the products we install. Because waadibhave direct control over the quality
of such products manufactured or supplied by shicd-party suppliers, we are exposed to risks irgdatb the quality of such products. In
addition, we are exposed to potential claims agisiom the conduct of our employees, and homebrsldad other subcontractors, for which
we may be contractually liable. Certain types aliation, particularly spray foam applications,uieg our employees to handle potentially
hazardous or toxic substances. While our employdeshandle these and other potentially hazardotisxic materials, including lead-based
paint, receive specialized training and wear ptoteclothing, there is still a risk that they, ahers, may be exposed to these substances.
Exposure to these substances could result in ggnifinjury to our employees and others, includiitg occupants, and damage to our
property or the property of others, including natuesource damage. Our personnel and others atalrsites are also at risk for other
workplace-related injuries, including slips anddal

We have in the past been, and may in the futureudigect to fines, penalties and other liabiliiresonnection with any such injury or
damage. Although we currently maintain what weéadito be suitable and adequate insurance in ertess self-insured amounts, we may
be unable to maintain such insurance on acceptaites or such insurance may not provide adequategiion against potential liabilities.

Product liability, workmanship warranty, casualtggligence, construction defect, breach of contadtother claims can be expensive to
defend and can divert the attention of managenmahbsher personnel for significant periods of timegardless of the ultimate outcome. In
addition, lawsuits relating to construction defagfscally have statutes of limitations that can as long as ten years. Claims of this nature
could also have a negative impact on customer denfie in us and our services. In addition, we alpgest to various claims and lawsuits
incidental to the conduct of our business in thdr@ry course. Current or future claims could haveaterial adverse effect on our reputation,
business, financial condition and results of openast We may also be unable to obtain performanddiaensing bonds on commercially
reasonable terms or at all in the future. Suretyiganies issue bonds on a project-by-project basisan decline to issue bonds at any time.
Our inability to obtain such bonds would materialyd adversely affect our business, financial doordiresults of operations and cash flows.
For additional information, see Note 11, Commitnsearid Contingencies, to our audited consolidatehfiial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2014 included in Item 8 of Part lthi$ Form 10-K.

Federal, state, local and other laws and regulatiancould impose substantial costs and/or restrictianon our operations that would
reduce our net income.

We are subject to various federal, state, local@hdr laws and regulations, including, among othings, worker and workplace health and
safety regulations promulgated by the DOT and eyrpént regulations promulgated by the U.S. Equal lBynmpent Opportunity
Commission. More burdensome regulatory requiremierttsese or other areas may increase our expenskadversely affect our business,
financial condition, results of operations and cielWs. Moreover, failure to comply with the regtdey requirements applicable to our
business could expose us to substantial fines andlies that could adversely affect our businfsancial condition, results of operations
and cash flows.
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Our transportation operations, upon which we deperichnsport materials from our locations to jidbs are subject to the regulatory
jurisdiction of the DOT. The DOT has broad admiriSte powers with respect to our transportatioarafions. More restrictive limitatior

on vehicle weight and size, trailer length and @pmtion or driver hours of service would increase costs, which, if we are unable to pass
these cost increases on to our customers, mayase@ur expenses and adversely affect our finacomalition, operating results and/or cash
flows. If we fail to comply adequately with DOT nalgtions or regulations become more stringent, addcexperience increased inspections,
regulatory authorities could take remedial actioeiliding imposing fines or shutting down our opiersg and we could be subject to incre:
audit and compliance costs. We organize our tratesjian operations as a separate legal entity itaicestates, including in Ohio and India

in order to take advantage of sales tax exemptielasing to vehicle operating costs. If legislatierenacted that modifies or eliminates these
exemptions, our costs may increase. If any of tlkesats were to occur, our financial conditionufessof operations and cash flows may be
adversely affected.

In addition, the residential construction indussrgubject to various federal, state and localigtat ordinances, rules and regulations
concerning zoning, building design and safety, toietion, contractors’ licensing, energy consewmatnd similar matters, including
regulations that impose restrictive zoning and dgmsquirements on the residential new constructimustry or that limit the number of
homes that can be built within the boundaries padicular area. Regulatory restrictions and ingustandards may require us to alter our
installation processes and our sourcing and otlserimicrease our operating expenses and limit thigadnlity of suitable building lots for our
customers, any of which could negatively affect lbusiness, financial condition and results of ofiena.

We are subject to environmental regulation and potetial exposure to environmental liabilities.

We are subject to various federal, state, and lecalronmental laws and regulations. Although wiele that we operate our business,
including each of our locations, in material coraptie with applicable laws and regulations and raairdgll material permits required under
such laws and regulations to operate our busimesspay be held liable or incur fines or penaltiesdnnection with such requirements. As
the nature of our business involves the use orllandf certain potentially hazardous or toxic sialmges, including spray foam applications
and lead-based paint, we may be held liable fomdalleging injury or damage resulting from thiease of or exposure to such substances.
In addition, as owners and lessees of real propasymay be held liable for, among other thinggandous or toxic substances, including
asbestos or petroleum products on, at, under onating from currently or formerly owned or operaprdperties, or any off-site disposal
locations, or for any known or newly discoverediemvmental conditions at or relating to any of puoperties, including those arising from
activities conducted by previous occupants or giiaithg properties, without regard to whether wewrof or were responsible for such
release. We may be required to investigate, renteveegdiate or monitor the presence or releaseatf Bazardous or toxic substances or
petroleum products. We may also be held liablegovernmental entity for fines and penalties athiod parties for damages, including for
bodily injury, property damage and natural resowl@mage in connection with the presence or relefisazardous or toxic substances or
petroleum products. In addition, expenditures maydguired in the future as a result of releasesrafxposure to, hazardous or toxic
substances or petroleum products, the discovecyméntly unknown environmental conditions or chesiin environmental laws and
regulations or their interpretation or enforcemamd in certain instances, such expenditures mawdierial.

Increases in union organizing activity and work stppages could delay or reduce availability of produts that we install and increase
our costs.

Less than one percent of our employees are cuyreotlered by collective bargaining or other simiyor agreements. However, if a larger
number of our employees were to unionize, includmthe wake of any future legislation that makesaisier for employees to unionize, our
business could be negatively affected. Any inabbiy us to negotiate collective bargaining arrangets could cause strikes or other work
stoppages, and new contracts could result in iseakaperating costs. If any such strikes or ott@kwtoppages occur, or if other employees
become represented by a union, we could experi@icgruption of our operations and higher labotsos
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In addition, certain of our suppliers have uniodizerk forces and certain of our products are parted by unionized truckers. Strikes, w
stoppages or slowdowns could result in slowdowrndasures of facilities where the products thatimgtall are manufactured or could affect
the ability of our suppliers to deliver such protuto us. Any interruption in the production oridety of these products could delay or red
availability of these products and increase outscos

Increases in fuel costs could adversely affect ovesults of operations.

The price of oil has fluctuated over the last fexans, creating volatility in our fuel costs. Werdat currently hedge our fuel costs. Increas
fuel costs can negatively impact our cost to delowg products to our customers and thus increaseast of sales. If we are unable to
increase the selling price of our products to astemers to cover any increases in fuel costanoeme may be adversely affected.

We may be adversely affected by disruptions in ounformation technology systems.

Our operations are dependent upon our informagohrtology systems, including our web-enabled iriesoftware technology, jobCORE.
The jobCORE software provides in-depth operati@mal financial performance data from individual lmtatocations to the corporate office.
We rely upon such information technology systemsiémage customer orders on a timely basis, to awtelour sales and installation
activities across locations and to manage invoicigubstantial disruption in our information tedhogy systems for any prolonged time
period (arising from, for example, system capalaityts from unexpected increases in our volumeusdibess, outages, computer viruses,
unauthorized access or delays in our service) aadldlt in delays in receiving inventory and sugplor installing our products on a timely
basis for our customers, which could adverselycaifer reputation and customer relationships. @stesns might be damaged or interrupted
by natural or man-made events or by computer virysieysical or electronic break-ins, or similardigions affecting the Internet and our
disaster recovery plan may be ineffective at mitigathe effects of these risks. Such delays, @mislor costs could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition, results of ogéras and cash flows.

Because we operate our business through highly disgsed locations across the United States, our opéians may be materially
adversely affected by inconsistent practices and ¢hoperating results of individual branches may vary

We operate our business through a network of higldpersed locations throughout the United Statigsported by corporate executives and
services in our headquarters, with local branchagament retaining responsibility for dayday operations and adherence to applicable
laws. Our operating structure can make it diffidattus to coordinate procedures across our op&min a timely manner or at all. In
addition, our branches may require significant eigdit and coordination from headquarters to supibeit growth. Inconsistent
implementation of corporate strategy and policigh@ local level could materially and adverselfigeff our overall profitability, business,
results of operations, financial condition and pexds.

In addition, the operating results of an individbednch may differ from that of another branchdorariety of reasons, including market size,
management practices, competitive landscape, meguleequirements and local economic conditionsa4ssult, certain of our branches may
experience higher or lower levels of growth thameotoranches. Growth of the company is occurrindjfégrent rates across our branches
accordingly, could have a disproportionate effectte future growth of the company as a whole. &ge, our overall financial performance
and results of operations may not be indicativéhefperformance and results of operations of adiyidual branch.
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Restrictions in our credit agreement, or any otheiindebtedness we may incur in the future, could adveely affect our business,
financial condition, results of operations, abilityto make distributions to stockholders and the vala of our common stock.
Our credit agreement, or any future credit facidityother indebtedness we enter into, may limitatility to, among other things:

* incur or guarantee additional de

* make distributions or dividends on or redeem ourelpase shares of common stc

* make certain investments and acquisitic

* make capital expenditure

» incur certain liens or permit them to exi

» enter into certain types of transactions with &ffds;

* acquire, merge or consolidate with another compang

» transfer, sell or otherwise dispose of all or sabsally all of our asset:
Our credit agreement contains, and any future tfadility or other debt instruments we may entdoiwill also likely contain, covenants
requiring us to maintain certain financial ratioglaneet certain tests, such as a fixed charge ageeatio and a leverage ratio. See Item 7,
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@dition and Results of Operations, Liquidity anapifal Resources, Revolving Credit

Facility. Our ability to comply with those finantiatios and tests can be affected by events begandontrol, and we may not be able to
comply with those ratios and tests when requiredbtso under the applicable debt instruments.

The provisions of our credit agreement or othett dediruments may affect our ability to obtain figdinancing and pursue attractive busir
opportunities and our flexibility in planning fand reacting to, changes in business conditionaddiition, a failure to comply with the
provisions of our credit agreement, any future itdegility or other debt instruments could resulta default or an event of default that could
enable our lenders or other debt holders to detit@eutstanding principal of that debt, togeth@ghwaccrued and unpaid interest, to be
immediately due and payable. If the payment ofd®bt is accelerated, our assets may be insuffitdergpay such debt in full, and our
stockholders could experience a partial or totss lof their investment.

We could manage working capital in ways that may déct our cash flow from operations.

Since we aim to continuously manage our workingtawe could manage our payments to suppliefemiftly in the future. Changes in
how we manage our payments to suppliers could ehangcash flow from operations and change our ingrkapital as a percentage of
sales. In addition, we have two supply contractk wiinimum purchase requirements based on quanatitier than a specific market rate.
These obligations may cause us to purchase mateaslier than we otherwise would and increasenauking capital requirements. There is
no guarantee that our working capital as a pergenté sales will not continue to increase in thieife.

RISKS RELATED TO OWNERSHIP OF OUR COMMON STOCK
The price of our common stock may fluctuate substarally, and your investment may decline in value.
The market price of our common stock may be sigaiftly affected by factors, such as:

» market conditions affecting the residential consinn and building products industrie

e quarterly variations in our results of operatic

« changes in government regulatio
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» the announcement of acquisitions by us or our coihops:
» changes in general economic and political condsti
» volatility in the financial markets
» results of our operations and the operations afrstin our industry
» changes in interest rate
» threatened or actual litigation and governmentstigations;
» the addition or departure of key personi
» actions taken by our stockholders, including tHe sadisposition of their shares of our commorckf
» differences between our actual financial anérafing results and those expected by investoraaalysts and changes in analysts’
recommendations or projectiot
These and other factors may lower the market mfi@air common stock, regardless of our actual dpeygerformance.

Furthermore, in recent years the stock market kpsr&enced significant price and volume fluctuasiofhis volatility has had a significant
impact on the market price of securities issuedhlbyy companies, including companies in our indugthe changes frequently appear to
occur without regard to the operating performaric® affected companies. Hence, the price of oanmroon stock could fluctuate based u
factors that have little or nothing to do with asd these fluctuations could materially reducepitiee of our common stock and materially
affect the value of your investment.

The obligations associated with being a public congmy require significant resources and management gntion.

We completed our initial public offering in Febry&014. As a public company, we face increased Jegaounting, administrative and other
costs and expenses that we did not incur as atprdeampany, particularly after we are no longeearerging growth company. We are sut

to the reporting requirements of the Securitiesharge Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchangesiith requires that we file annual,
quarterly and current reports with respect to awgifiess and financial condition and proxy and oifermation statements, and the rules and
regulations implemented by the SEC, the Sarbandsy@ct, the Dodd-Frank Act, the Public Company éwnting Oversight Board and the
NYSE each of which imposes additional reporting atiger obligations on public companies. As a putdimpany, we are required

* prepare and distribute periodic reports, prstatements and other stockholder communicationsrnimpliance with the federal
securities laws and the NYSE rul

» expand the roles and duties of our board of diredad committees there«

* maintain an internal audit functio

» institute more comprehensive financial reporting disclosure compliance functior

» involve and retain to a greater degree outside sglland accountants in the activities listed ab

» enhance our investor relations functi

» establish new internal policies, including thodatieg to trading in our securities and disclostwatrols and procedure

e retain additional personne
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» comply with NYSE listing standards; a
» comply with the Sarban-Oxley Act.

We expect these rules and regulations and chandaws, regulations and standards relating to gatpagovernance and public disclosure,
which have created uncertainty for public compartieincrease legal and financial compliance casttmake some activities more time
consuming and costly. These laws, regulations tartards are subject to varying interpretationspdmy cases due to their lack of
specificity, and, as a result, their applicatiopractice may evolve over time as new guidancedsiged by regulatory and governing bodies.
This could result in continuing uncertainty regagdlcompliance matters and higher costs necessitgtedgoing revisions to disclosure and
governance practices. Our investment in compliavitie existing and evolving regulatory requirementt result in increased administrative
expenses and a diversion of management’s time taatian from revenue-generating activities to cbemqee activities, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finamgabition, results of operations and cash flows.

These increased costs may lessen our ability tarekpur business and achieve our strategic obgsctilve also expect that it will be
expensive to maintain director and officer lialilihsurance, and we may be required to accept eztipelicy limits and coverage or incur
substantially higher costs to obtain the sameroilai coverage. As a result, it may be more dittiéor us to attract and retain qualified
persons to serve on our board of directors or eswgive officers. Furthermore, if we are unablsatsfy our obligations as a public compe
we could be subject to delisting of our common lstioes, sanctions and other regulatory action cwdilitigation.

If we are unable to implement and maintain effectie internal control over financial reporting in the future, the accuracy and
timeliness of our financial reporting may be adversly affected.

Although we were not required to and did not engageindependent registered public accounting fwmaonduct an audit of our internal
control over financial reporting, in connection lwihe audits of our consolidated financial statetmi@s of and for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012, our independent regisprblic accounting firm informed us that thegntfied a material weakness relating
to our internal control over financial reportingden standards established by the PCAOB. The PCASiBas a material weakness as a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, iteimal control over financial reporting such tHare is a reasonable possibility that a mat
misstatement of the company’s annual or interirarfirial statements will not be prevented or deteated timely basis.

We developed a plan and implemented a number mfrecto remediate this material weakness. Aftedlémenting new internal controls and
procedures, we concluded that we have remediagepréviously identified material weakness as ofdbeizer 31, 2014. Additional
information about our remediation efforts and intdrcontrol over financial reporting are descriliettem 9A. Controls and Procedures in
this Form 10-K.

Although we believe we have addressed the prewadshtified material weakness, the measures we kalken may not be effective, and we
may not be able to implement and maintain effedtiternal control over financial reporting in thedre. In addition, other material
weaknesses or deficiencies may be identified ifuhee. Once we cease to be an emerging growtlpaaognand once we become an
accelerated filer or a large accelerated filepfasach fiscal year end thereafter, our independagistered public accounting firm will be
required to evaluate and report on our internatredmover financial reporting. If we are unablectrect material weaknesses or deficiencies
in internal controls in a timely manner, our akilib record, process, summarize and report finhitfiarmation accurately and within the ti
periods specified in the rules and forms of the S8y be adversely affected. This failure couldatiegly affect the market price and trad
liquidity of our common stock, cause investorsasel confidence in our reported financial informatisubject us to civil and criminal
investigations and penalties, and generally makeaad adversely impact our business and finaraaldition.
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We are an emerging growth company and, as a resuwf the reduced disclosure and governance requirem&napplicable to emerging
growth companies, our common stock may be less adtrtive to investors.

We are an emerging growth company, as definededd@BS Act, and we are eligible to take advantdgemain exemptions from various
reporting requirements applicable to other pubtimpanies. Those exemptions include, but are nateldrio, an exemption from the auditor
attestation requirement of Section 404 of the SsbaDxley Act, reduced disclosure about executhrepensation arrangements pursuant to
the rules applicable to smaller reporting compaaiebno requirement to seek non-binding advisotgson executive compensation or
golden parachute arrangements. We have electatbfii these reduced disclosure requirements. Wetakayadvantage of these provisions
until we are no longer an emerging growth comp&yg.will remain an emerging growth company until gslier of (1) the last day of the
fiscal year (a) following the fifth anniversary e first sale of our common stock pursuant toféectve registration statement, or

February 12, 2019; (b) in which we have total ahiguass revenue of at least $1.0 billion or (chinich we are deemed to be a large
accelerated filer, which means the market valueunfcommon stock that is held by non-affiliatesemds $700 million as of the prior

June 30th, and (2) the date on which we have issued than $1.0 billion in non-convertible debtidgrthe prior three-year period. We
cannot predict if investors will find our commorsk less attractive as a result of our taking ath@s of these exemptions. If some investors
find our common stock less attractive as a redudio choices, there may be a less active tradiagket for our common stock and our stock
price may be more volatile.

Future sales of our common stock, or the perceptioim the public markets that these sales may occumay depress our stock price.

The market price of our common stock could dectiigmificantly as a result of sales of a large nundfeshares of our common stock. These
sales, or the perception that these sales mighirpcould depress the market price of our commoaoksbr make it more difficult for us to sell
equity securities in the future at a time and ptiee that we deem appropriate.

We have 31,539,087 shares of common stock outstaradi of December 31, 2014. The shares of comnogk ate freely tradable, except
any shares of common stock that may be held oriztjby our directors, executive officers and otaféitiates, the sale of which will be
restricted under the Securities Act of 1933, asratad, or the Securities Act. As of December 3142@21976,510 of the 3,000,000 shares of
common stock authorized for issuance under the Zidibus Incentive Plan were available for issuafibese shares will become eligible
for sale in the public market in the future, subjeccertain legal and contractual limitations.

Moreover, pursuant to a registration rights agregramong us and certain of our current stockholdmmdain of our stockholders have the
right to require us to register under the Secwifiet. See “Certain Relationships and Related-Pemdysactions-Registration Rights
Agreement.If our existing stockholders sell substantial antswf our common stock in the public market, ah# public perceives that st
sales could occur, this could have an adverse ingrathe market price of our common stock, evehefe is no relationship between such
sales and the performance of our business.

Also, in the future, we may issue shares of ourmom stock in connection with investments or acgoiss. The amount of shares of our
common stock issued in connection with an investroeacquisition could constitute a material partaf our then-outstanding shares of our
common stock.

Jeff Edwards has significant ownership of our commo stock and may have interests that conflict withhiose of our other stockholders.

As of December 31, 2014, Jeff Edwards beneficialiyns approximately 27.4% of our common stock. 3wy las Jeff Edwards continues to
hold, directly or indirectly, shares of common $toepresenting a significant
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percentage of the voting power of our common stbekwill be able to exercise control over all mattequiring stockholder approval,
including the election of directors, amendment wf amended and restated certificate of incorpamadind approval of significant corporate
transactions, and will have significant influenaeioour management and policies. This concentratio/oting power may have the effect of
delaying or preventing a change in control of ugiscouraging others from making tender offersdiar shares of common stock, which cc
prevent stockholders from receiving a premium Ifairt shares of common stock. These actions magkemteven if other stockholders
oppose them. The interests of Jeff Edwards maglmatys coincide with the interests of other stodtts, and he may act in a manner that
advances his best interests and not necessarglg thfoour other stockholders. In addition, undaraunended and restated certificate of
incorporation, Jeff Edwards is permitted to pursagorate opportunities for himself, rather thantfs.

Certain of our stockholders that are controlled byJeff Edwards have pledged shares of our common stoas collateral for loans,
which may cause Jeff Edwards’ interests to conflicwvith the interests of our other stockholders and ray adversely affect the trading
price of our common stock.

Certain of our stockholders, PJAM IBP Holdings, Llabd Installed Building Systems, Inc., which apateolled by Jeff Edwards, or the
Edwards Stockholders, have pledged shares of anmom stock as collateral for loans. In 2014 ands2Bitough the date of this filing, the
Edwards Stockholders pledged 6,655,500 shares @0®) shares, respectively, of our common stocloliateral for loans. We are not a
party to these loans, which are full recourse agjahe Edwards Stockholders and are secured, intpapledges of a portion of our common
stock currently beneficially owned by Jeff Edwaedsl the Edwards Stockholders. The terms of theseslwere negotiated directly between
Jeff Edwards and members of his family and theegetdge lending institutions.

These pledges of shares of our common stock mageceff Edwarddhterests to not always coincide with the interedtsther stockholder:
and he may act in a manner that advances hisriest$ts and not necessarily those of our othekistdders. The occurrence of certain
events under these loan agreements could reshi ifuture sales of such shares and significaptiuce Jeff Edwards’ ownership in us. Such
sales could adversely affect the market and traplifcg of our common stock. In addition, if thewalof our common stock declines, the
lending institutions may require additional collatefor the loans, which could cause the Edwardsl8tolders to pledge additional shares of
our common stock. We can give no assurances teddiwards Stockholders will not pledge additioferes of our common stock in the
future, whether as a result of lender calls reggiadditional collateral or their entry into nevaies that require them to pledge shares of our
common stock.

In addition, our directors, executive officers anter stockholders may pledge shares of our constamk in the future. Depending on the
occurrence of certain events relating to the okiiga for which these pledges may serve as colihteur directors, executive officers or ot
stockholders may experience a foreclosure or magirthat could result in the sale of such pledgledres of our common stock, in the open
market or otherwise. Such sales could adversedcafhe market and trading price of our commonkstoc

Capped call transactions that were entered into bparties affiliated with Jeff Edwards may affect thevalue of our common stock.

In June 2014, IBP Holding Company and Installedddng Systems, Inc., both entities that are cotgcbby Jeff Edwards, entered into
capped call option transactions with respect ta@pmately 1.1 million shares of our common stodkwan affiliate of one of the
underwriters of our initial public offering and J2014 secondary public offering, or the optionrterparty. The transactions are expecte
result in future cash payments to the partiesecetttent the price of our common stock upon expinadf the options is greater than the strike
price of the options, subject to a cap.

21



Table of Contents

In connection with establishing its initial hedgeany capped call transactions, the option coumrgyor one of its affiliates) purchased
shares of our common stock.

In addition, the option counterparty (or one ofdfiliates) may modify its hedge position by eimgrinto or unwinding various derivatives
with respect to our common stock and/or purchasimgglling common stock or other securities of dnrsecondary market transactions from
time to time. This activity could also cause origate an increase or decrease in the market pfioera&common stock. We cannot predict
what effect the capped call transactions could lwavthe price of our common stock.

Provisions of our charter documents and Delaware l& could delay, discourage or prevent an acquisitioof us, even if the acquisition
would be beneficial to our stockholders, and couldhake it more difficult for our stockholders to change our management.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorpamatind bylaws may discourage, delay or preventrgeneacquisition or other change in
control that stockholders may consider favoralvieluiding transactions in which stockholders mighieowise receive a premium for their
shares of our common stock. In addition, theseipimvs may frustrate or prevent any attempt bystoackholders to replace or remove our
current management by making it more difficultéplace or remove members of our board of direclidrese provisions include the
following:

» aclassified board of directors with th-year staggered term
* no cumulative voting in the election of directosyich limits the ability of minority stockholders tlect director candidate

» the exclusive right of our board of directarditl a vacancy created by the expansion of therd@f directors or the resignation,
death or removal of a director, which preventsldtotders from being able to fill vacancies on oaaful of directors

« the ability of our board of directors to autizerthe issuance of shares of preferred stock@détermine the price and other terms
of those shares, including preferences and votgigs, without stockholder approval, which couldused to significantly dilute
the ownership of the holders of our stock or aileatquirer;

» aprohibition on stockholder action by writeensent, which forces stockholder action to bertatean annual or special meeting
of our stockholders

e arequirement that a special meeting of stolddre may be called only by the chairman of ourtiad directors, our Chief
Executive Officer or upon a resolution approvedabmajority of the total number of directors thatweuld have if there were no
vacancies, and not by our stockholders;

e advance notice procedures that stockholders$ camsply with in order to nominate candidates to looard of directors or to
propose matters to be acted upon at a stockholdesting, which may discourage or deter a poteatiglirer from conducting a
solicitation of proxies to elect the acqu’s own slate of directors or otherwise attemptinghitain control of us

In addition, we are subject to Section 203 of tledalvare General Corporation Law, which generalbhlsits a Delaware corporation from
engaging in any of a broad range of business caatibims with a stockholder owning 15% or more oftsoerporation’s outstanding voting
stock for a period of three years following theedah which such stockholder became an “interesttkholder. This provision could have
the effect of delaying or preventing a change aiticd, whether or not it is desired by or benefitiaour stockholders. Any delay or
prevention of a change of control transaction @nges in our board of directors and managementia®mibr potential acquirers or prevent
the completion of a transaction in which our stadkllbrs could receive a substantial premium ovethka-current market price for their
shares of our common stock.
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We do not expect to pay any dividends in the foresable future.

We intend to retain our future earnings, if anyoider to reinvest in the development and growtbwfbusiness and, therefore, do not intend
to pay dividends on our common stock for the foeabée future. Any future determination to pay darids will be at the discretion of our
board of directors and will depend on our financ@ahdition, results of operations, capital requieais, the limits imposed by the terms of our
credit agreement, or any then-existing debt inséntis, and such other factors as our board of directeems relevant. Accordingly, investors
in our common stock may need to sell their shareedlize a return on their investment in our comrsimck, and investors may not be abl
sell their shares at or above the prices paidhfemt

If securities analysts do not publish favorable reprts about us or if we, or our industry, are the sbject of unfavorable commentary,
the price of our common stock could decline.

The trading price for our common stock dependsairt pn the research and reports about us thatdulésped by analysts in the financial
industry. Analysts could issue negative commenddigut us or our industry, or they could downgradecommon stock. We may also not
receive sufficient research coverage or visibilitghe market. Any of these factors could resuthia decline of the trading price of our
common stock, causing investors in our common stodkse all or a portion of their investment.

Iltem 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties
Real Property

We lease office and warehouse space in 33 statdgding our corporate office in Columbus, Ohio.r@toperties range in size from
approximately 144 square feet to approximately @@ $quare feet. Our leases are typically short terduration with customary extension:
our option. We also own two adjoining propertieMars, Pennsylvania. We believe suitable altereasppace is available in all of our
markets. The table below summarizes our locatian®f December 31, 2014. All locations are leaseess otherwise indicated.

Approximate Approximate
Number o Total Squar Number o Total Squar
State Locations Footage State Locations Footage
Alabama 1 10,50( Mississippi 1 8,00(
California 7 65,80( Nebraske 1 9,20(
Colorado 5 35,40( New Hampshire 4 37,10(
Connecticu 3 23,00( New York 8 92,70(
Delaware 1 9,60( North Caroling 2 20,10(
Florida 7 66,10( Ohio 1C 260,70(
Georgia 5 48,20( Oklahoma 1 18,30(
lllinois 2 18,30¢( Oregon 2 21,30(
Idaho 1 8,00( Pennsylvani: 3* 9,20(
Indiana 9 185,40( South Carolin: 4 63,80(
Kentucky 2 16,00( Tennesse 2 36,70(
Louisiana 1 15,00( Texas 5 93,40(
Maine 2 32,50( Vermont 1 12,40(
Maryland 3 34,70( Virginia 3 29,80(
Massachuset! 4 45,30( Washingtor 1 18,20(
Michigan 1 21,30( Wisconsin 1 16,60(
Minnesota 5 71,00(

* Includes two owned properties and one leased propeMars, Pennsylvanii
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Our Fleet

As of December 31, 2014, our fleet consisted 082 @tal vehicles that we either lease or own udirlg 1,790 installation vehicles which
installers use to deliver and install products fraun local locations to job sites and approximaf9% other vehicles that are utilized by our
sales staff and branch managers.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

A class action lawsuit was filed in February 2008 an amended complaint was filed in May 2013 enSliperior Court of King County,
Washington, involving Installed Building ProductsllLC, one of our subsidiaries, alleging violatioaf Washington State wage and hour
laws for failure to pay prevailing and minimum waaygd overtime wages. The plaintiffs were formeulagon installers for Installed Buildit
Products II, LLC in Washington who sought to reprasall similarly situated workers. They soughtuaipaid wages, along with litigation
costs and fees.

A lawsuit was filed in July 2013 in federal courtthe Middle District of Tennessee against oneuwfsubsidiaries, TCI d/b/a Installed
Building Products of Nashville, alleging unpaid aime and failure to pay lawful wages under fedéaal and Tennessee common law and in
unjust enrichment and in breach of an alleged eshtThe named plaintiffs were former insulatiostatlers in Nashville. The plaintiffs

sought to have this case certified as a collecst®on under the Federal Fair Labor Standards Adtas a class action under Tennessee law.
They sought reimbursement of the overtime wagealfdime worked over forty hours each week, ad agliquidated damages and litigation
costs and fees.

Both lawsuits were settled in January 2014 fortal twost of $1.4 million, $0.2 million of which wgaid during the year ended December 31,
2013 and $1.2 million of which we paid during treay ended December 31, 2014. We recorded the $llidnncharge in Administrative and
Other operating expenses in our Consolidated Stateof Operations during the year ended Decembe2@®13 and therefore recorded no
related expense for the year ended December 34, 201

In addition, we are involved in various claims dagsuits incidental to the conduct of our businaesbe ordinary course. We carry insurance
coverage in excess of our self-insured coverag&hwlie believe to be reasonable under the circumetg although insurance may or may
not cover any or all of our liabilities in respedtclaims and lawsuits. We do not believe thatuhienate resolution of these matters
individually or in the aggregate will have a maakadverse effect on our consolidated financialtfmyg results of operations or cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable

PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities
Market Information for Common Stock

Our common stock began trading on the New York ISExachange under the symbol “IBBh February 13, 2014. Prior to that date, there
no public trading market for our common stock. 8itftat date, our stock has traded at the followigh and low trade prices per quarter
during 2014:

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
High $15.0¢ $14.71 $14.5¢ $18.8¢
Low $12.0¢ $11.7¢ $10.8: $13.77
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Holders of Record

As of March 4, 2015, there were 38 holders of rdafrour common stock, one of which was Cede & Gich is the holder of shares held
through the Depository Trust Company.

Dividend Policy

During the years ended 2014, 2013 and 2012, wedtideclare or pay any cash dividends on our dagiitek. We currently do not anticipate
paying dividends for the foreseeable future. Anyiffe determination relating to dividends will bedeaat the discretion of our board of
directors and will depend on a number of factarsluding our future earnings, capital requiremefitsncial condition, future prospects,
contractual restrictions, legal requirements at@iofactors our board of directors may deem relevan

Stock Repurchase

On December 11, 2014, our board of directors aigbdrand we purchased 300,000 shares of our corstock from Cetus Capital II, LLC,
related party, for a purchase price of approxinya®&l.3 million, or $17.61 per share, which waslt#® reported price of our common stock
on December 11, 2014. The shares have not beeadidbut are held in treasury stock at Decembe@14.

Stock Performance Graph

The table below compares the cumulative total $t@der return on our common stock with the cumudatotal return of (i) the Russell 2000
Index (“Russell 2000 Index”) and (ii) the Stand&&oor’s Industrials Index (“S&P Industrials IndgxXtom February 13, 2014 (the first day
our stock was traded in the public market) throDglcember 31, 2014. The graph assumes investme#ii06fon February 13, 2014 in our
common stock and in each of the two indices anddhestment of dividends.
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Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

In connection with our initial public offering, otwoard of directors adopted and established andtoakholders approved our 2014 Omnibus
Incentive Plan in January 2014. The aggregate nuoftehares of our common stock which may be issuetbr our 2014 Omnibus Incentive
Plan or used for reference purposes or with regpaghich awards may be granted may not exceed3)00 shares. As of December 31,
2014, 2,976,510
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of the shares of common stock authorized for isseavere available for issuance under the 2014 Qusniitcentive Plan. The 2014 Omnibus
Incentive Plan replaced an existing equity incenpilan, which was previously adopted by our bodmirectors and stockholders. At the ti
of adoption of the 2014 Omnibus Incentive Planrehgere no options outstanding under the previoesisting equity incentive plan.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

During the period covered by this Form 10-K, weédaot issued securities without registration uriderSecurities Act.

ltem 6. Selected Financial Datz

The following tables set forth selected historicahsolidated financial data that should be reazbimjunction with Item 7, Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations, and our consolidated firarstatements and notes thereto inclt
in Part Il, Item 8, Financial Statements and Supeletary Data, of this Form 10-K. The consolidatediesnents of operations data for the
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, 2012 and&tilthe consolidated balance sheet data as of eredh, 2014, 2013, 2012 and 2(
are derived from our audited consolidated finansiatements. The selected historical consolidatehial data in this section is not intenc
to replace our historical consolidated financiatesients and the related notes thereto. Our hiatagsults are not necessarily indicative of
future results.

Years ended December :

2014 2013 2012 2011
Statement of operations information:
(in millions, except per share amounts)
Net revenue $518.( $431.¢ $301.: $238.¢
Cost of sale: 377.¢ 322.2 2272 181.
Gross profit 140.1 109.5 74.C 57.2
Operating expenst
Selling 31.C 25.5 19.¢ 18.¢
Administrative (1)(2] 83.t 71.1 56.1 55.¢
Operating income (los: 25.¢ 13.1 (1.9 (7.7
Other expense (incom 3.C 2.2 1.6 (11.9
Income (loss) before income tax 22.€ 10.€ (3.7 (5.7
Income tax provisiol 8.€ 4.2 0.€ 1t
Net income (loss) from continuing operatic 14.C 6.€ 4.3 (7.2
Discontinued Operatior
Loss (income) from discontinued operations, neag 0.1 0.€ (2.9) 1.6
Net income (loss $ 13.¢ $ 6.C $ (1.9 $ (9.0
Accretion charges on redeemable preferred ¢ (19.9 (6.2 (5.5 (0.8
Accretion charges on F-Recapitalization Preferred Un — — — (1.6
Gain on Extinguishment of F-Recapitalization Preferred Uni — — — 85.(
Net (loss) income attributable to common stockhisi $ (6.0 $ (0.2 $ (7.9 $ 73.€
(Loss) income per share attributable to commonksimiclers (basis and
diluted) $(0.20) $(0.07) $(0.37) $ 3.7¢
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(1)

(2)

(3)
(4)

Years ended December :

2014 2013 2012 2011

Balance sheet data: (in millions

Cash $ 10.¢ $ 4.1 $ 3.¢ $ 2E
Total current asse 119.C 95.5 75.¢ 56.¢€
Property and equipment, r 39.4 29.t 17.¢ 8.2
Total asset 234. 191.1 160.¢ 127.t
Total funded debt (= 53.7 50.1 30.1 21.2
Mezzanine equity (4 — 136.¢ 66.¢ 59.¢
Total stockholder equity (deficit) 91.¢ (71.9 (7.5 (9.6)
Total mezzanine equity and stockholc¢ equity 91.¢ 65.4 59.4 50.C

In years prior to 2012, IBP Management HoldjidsC and IBP Investment Holdings, LLC issued avsaofl their equity interests to
certain of our employees. Certain of these empkyesre granted rights to put such equity awardsdw limited period to Jeff
Edwards, our Chairman, Chief Executive Officer &ndsident. Accounting guidance requires that timepemsation associated with
these equity awards be pushed down to us and mt@sinon-cash compensation expense. The non-aaiensation expense
associated with the equity awards approximated $0I®n and $4.7 million for the years ended Detem31, 2011 and 2012,
respectively, and is included in administrative enges. There were no charges for the years endeshiber 31, 2014 or 201

For the year ended December 31, 2011, managdeemof $4.7 million, included in Administratiexpenses, represented amounts
charged to us by IBP Holding Company, a relatetypander agreements originally entered into in 8ha2004 and October 2007,
which were terminated as a result of our Recapatibn. The associated expenses were transfertesldad IBP Holding Company
personnel became our employees in January 2012h&gear ended December 31, 2012, managemenwéregaid to Littlejohn
Managers, LLC ($1.1 million), Jeff Edwards ($2.7lion) and TCI Holdings, LLC ($0.5 million) pursuito an agreement dated
December 18, 2012, which was terminated on Nover2®eP013. No similar fees were charged during 26¥12013, and we do not
expect to incur management fees going forw

Prior to November 1, 2013, Jeff Edwards served @maultant and non-employee officer to us. As swelid not receive a salary or
bonus for 2012 or 2011. The costs of Jeff Edwasdsvices were paid through the management agresmseussed above. Jeff
Edwards did not receive any compensation in 20k8  November 1, 2013. In anticipation of our aoon stock offering and with a
view towards operating as a public company, weredtmto an employment agreement with Jeff Edwardblovember 1, 2013 that
will pay Mr. Edwards a minimum annual base saldr$600,000 and provide him an opportunity to pgstite in the Company’s annual
incentive and benefit programs. Compensation pgidshto Mr. Edwards on or after November 1, 201Blvé recorded as an
administrative expense in our consolidated statémeoperations. As a result of the foregoing, performance for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013 will not be comparabthis respect to our operations in prior or subset periods and may not be
indicative of future results.

Total funded debt consists of current and -term portions of lon-term debt and capital lease obligatic

Consists of Redeemable Preferred Stock and Redée@ammon Stock. This treatment is no longer reguas of the date of our init
public offering in February 201.

ltem 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

You should read the following in conjunction witle tonsolidated financial statements and relate@sithereto included in Item 8, Financial
Statements and Supplemental Data, in this Form 10k discussion contains forward-looking statetaeaflecting current expectations
that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual resand the timing of events may differ materialynirthose contained in these forwdodking
statements due to a number of factors, includimgetdiscussed in the section captioned “Risk Fattand elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
Share numbers presented in this Form 10-K giveetfeour 19.5-for-one stock split of our commarcktthat occurred on February 10,
2014.
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GENERAL

We are the second largest new residential insulatistaller in the United States based on our ir@leestimates, with a national platform
consisting of over 100 locations serving custonmeed| 48 continental states and the District ofubabia. We also install complementary
building products, including garage doors, raintens; shower doors, closet shelving and mirrorbs&untially all of our net revenue comes
from service-based installation of these produtthé residential new construction, repair and mehand commercial construction end
markets.

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

A large portion of our revenue comes from the WeSidential new construction market, which is imtdependent upon a number of
economic factors, including demographic trendgridt rates, consumer confidence, employment faesjng inventory levels, foreclosure
rates, the health of the economy and availabilitjmortgage financing.

During 2014, the construction of new homes incréasenost of our markets, contributing significgrib our 19.9% increase in net revenue
to $518.0 million during the year ended December2Bl4 compared to $431.9 million in the same pkimo2013. Also contributing to the
increase in net revenue were the strategic acmuisiof three companies in 2014 and two companiesgl 2013. These acquisitions resulted
in a $15.4 million, or 3.6%, net revenue increas2014 as compared to 2013.

We believe our business is well positioned to cardito profitably grow during the housing recoveug to our strong balance sheet, liquidity
and our continuing acquisition strategy. We maytioore to adjust our strategies based on housingddrand our performance in each of
markets. Nevertheless, the pace of the housingeeg@nd our future results could be negativelgettd by weakening economic conditions
and decreases in housing demand and affordabdlityedl as increases in interest rates and tighgeoinmortgage lending practices.

KEY FACTORS AFFECTING OUR OPERATING RESULTS
Conditions in the U.S. residential new construciioustry and U.S. economy.

The housing downturn that began in 2006 caused rhaigers to significantly decrease their productid housing units because of lower
demand and excess inventory. Due to the lowerdendhousing starts and construction activity, wpegienced pressure on both our gross
and operating margins until the housing recovegaben 2012.

We believe there are several trends that shoule dishg-term growth in the housing market. Thesads include housing affordability, an
aging housing stock, population growth and growthausehold formation. These positive trends dteated in Blue Chip’s January 10,

2015 consensus forecast, which projects housimts $taincrease to approximately 1.2 million in 8Gind approximately 1.3 million in 2016.
We expect that our net revenue, gross profit, gretaiing income will benefit from this growth. Iddition, we continue to experience
improved operating efficiencies resulting from aértcosts, such as administrative wages and benfiility costs and other operating and
administrative costs, increasing at a lower raéatthe rate at which net revenue increases. Opgrafipenses as a percentage of net revenue
were 22.1%, 22.4% and 25.2% for the years endedmieer 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Exojudon-cash stock compensation
expense of $4.7 million incurred in 2012, operatxgenses as a percentage of net revenue were 23.68€ year ended December 31,
2012.
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Trends in the construction industry

Our operating results may vary according to thewarhand type of products we install and the mixwf end markets among new single-
family, multi-family and commercial builders and oers of existing homes. The NAHB forecasts a hightr of growth in singléamily new
home construction compared to that for multi-fanmiéwv home construction. We expect to benefit froim $hift in mix because our net
revenue per single-family completion is higher tloan net revenue per multi-family completion. As tiousing market recovery continues,
we expect to benefit not only from the increasedigpation of large homebuilders in the early es@f the recovery, but also as custom
builders and individual lot owners build more i tlater stages of the U.S. housing recovery. Wataiai an attractive mix of business am
all types of homebuilders. Our net revenue deriveh the ten largest homebuilders in the UnitedeStincreased from approximately 7.5%
in the year ended December 31, 2010 to approxignaeB% in the year ended December 31, 2014. Walsoeparticularly well positioned
with custom home builders, given our geographyraadket share position with these customers, toflidrem the later stages of the
recovery cycle. In addition to providing serviceghe residential new construction and repair @mladel end markets, we provide service
the commercial construction end market, which regméed approximately 10.8%, 11.0% and 13.8% ofatat net revenue for the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respgctiMat McGraw Hill 2014 Dodge Construction Outlogkird quarter update) forecasts a
19% year-over-year increase in square footagedimmeercial construction in 2015. We also expece®an increase in repair and remodel
activity as the housing market recovery progresses.

Material costs

We purchase the materials that we install primdrdyn manufacturers. We believe that, as a refudtionational scale and long-standing
relationships with many of our suppliers, we exgeatontinue to have access to an adequate suptiiese materials at favorable prices to
keep up with the growing demand for our productthashousing market recovers. Prices for our prtsdnave generally been subject to
cyclical market fluctuations and track the strengftthe U.S. residential new construction markethie event that increased demand leads to
higher prices for the products we install, duehi® fragmented and competitive nature of our inguste may have limited, if any, ability to
pass on price increases in a timely manner od.dnhahe past, we have generally been able to paghese increases to our customers over
time.

Labor costs

Our business is labor intensive. As of Decembe2814, we had approximately 3,600 employees, nmfoshom work as installers on local
construction sites. As the housing market continaescover, we expect that labor markets will taghas the demand increases for installers.
Tight labor markets may make it more difficult fo8 to hire and retain installers and could increasdabor costs. We expect to be required
to spend more on training as we hire additionahlfers to support our growing business. We offeomprehensive benefits package, which
many of our local competitors are not able to piteywhich will increase our costs as we hire addal personnel. Our workers’
compensation costs also continue to increase asongase our coverage for additional personnelh\tfié passage in 2010 of the U.S. Pai
Protection and Affordable Care Act, or the AffortlaBare Act, we are required to provide affordateerage, as defined in the Affordable
Care Act, to all employees, or otherwise be sulifpet payment per employee based on the afforthabiiteria therein. In the fourth quarter

of 2013, we recognized additional labor costs egldab our settlement of two lawsuits in the stateéd/ashington and Tennessee. See ltem 3,
Legal Proceedings, in this Form 10-K for additiomdibrmation.

Other factors

We expect our selling and administrative expenseshtinue to increase in absolute dollars as asiness grows, which could impact our
future operating profitability. Included in this ammt is additional compensation expense for Jeffdtds, our Chief Executive Officer, who,
prior to November 1, 2013, did not receive any lssary compensation.
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ACQUISITIONS

Since 1999, our acquisition strategy has allowethgenerate significant scale, diversify our prdcaffering and expand into many of the
largest housing markets in the United States. We pparsued and expect to continue to pursue baigrgphic expansion and tuck-in
acquisitions in existing markets. We expect togaagquisition candidates that meet our criterkaictvinclude a strong local reputation and
high-quality management and labor force. Our adtmisstrategy is also focused on using our nafiboiging power, value-enhancing
technology and proven operating platform to achigyerating efficiencies in our acquisitions.

During 2014 and 2013, we completed three and twaiaitions, respectively, all of which qualify agsdiness combination as defined by
Accounting Standards Codification 805, “BusinessnBmations.” Our 2014 acquisitions expanded ous@mee in Minnesota, Wisconsin,
North Dakota and the New York "-State region and marked our entry into the sthtdaho. Our 2013 acquisitions expanded our pres@nc
Florida and Virginia. See Note 12, Business Contimnag, to our audited consolidated financial stagata in Item 8 of Part Il of this Form 10-
K for additional information concerning these besis combinations.

Direct acquisition and integration costs for tharngeended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 weraatetial and were expensed as
incurred. We have in the past been, and may ifitoee be, subject to post-closing payment oblayaiunder contracts we enter into with
businesses we acquire.

SEASONALITY

We tend to have higher sales during the secondhéife year as our homebuilder customers complatstruction of homes placed under
contract for sale in the traditionally strongerisprselling season. In addition, some of our latlg@nches operate in states impacted by w
weather and as such experience a slowdown in ecmtigtn activity during the first quarter of the ealar year. This winter slowdown
contributes to traditionally lower sales in ousfiguarter.

The composition and level of our working capitglitally changes during periods of increasing satewe carry more inventory and
receivables, although this is generally offsetant oy higher trade payables to our suppliers. \Wigrkapital levels typically increase in the
summer and fall seasons due to higher sales dthégeak of residential construction activity. Bubsequent collection of receivables and
reduction in inventory levels during the winter nttmmhas typically impacted cash flow positivelythe past, from time to time, we have
utilized our borrowing availability under our crethcilities to cover short-term working capitaleus.

COMPONENTS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net RevenudNet revenue is derived from installation of prodgusbld to our customers. Revenue from the salérestallation of products to
customers are recognized at the time installasaromplete. We track and analyze net revenue byuhwer of completed jobs.

Cost of SaleOur cost of sales is comprised of the costs of ri@dseand labor to purchase and install our proslémt our customers. Also
included in our cost of sales are the cost of gafatl other supplies, workers compensation ins@rand certain costs to manage our
warehouses, as well as the following vehicle-relaepenses: fuel, repairs and maintenance, defiegifease expense, insurance, licensing
and titling.

Selling Expense&elling expenses primarily include wages and comsimnis for our sales staff, advertising and bad dgpéense.

Administrative ExpenseAdministrative expenses include wages and berfefiteranch management and administrative personogborate
office personnel, non-cash stock compensation valpgticable, facility costs, office supplies, teleoaunications, legal, accounting and
general liability insurance costs. For periods
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after November 1, 2013, the costs of Jeff Edwasdsvices to us are paid through an employment aggreand included in administrative
expenses. Prior to such date, Mr. Edwards was cosaped through management agreements and such @smeare recorded in managem
fees. As a result, our performance for certainquripresented may not be comparable in this respect

Management FeeFor the year ended December 31, 2012, managenentviere paid to Littlejohn Managers, LLC ($1.1 roil), Jeff
Edwards ($2.7 million) and TCI Holdings, LLC ($0r&llion) pursuant to an agreement dated Decembg2082, which was terminated on
November 22, 2013. No similar fees were chargethdu013, and we do not expect to incur managerfeestgoing forward. Prior 1
November 1, 2013, Jeff Edwards served as a com$altel no-employee officer to us. As such, he did not receaary or bonus for 2012
for the period from January 1, 2013 to October2®1,3. The costs of Jeff Edwards’ services were fraimligh the management agreements
discussed above. For periods after November 1,,200.3Fdwards’ compensation is included in admiaiste expenses.

Amortization ExpensiAmortization expense represents the decline inevalter time of definite-lived intangible assetstsas trademarks,
trade names, customer lists and non-competitioeeggents obtained as a result of past acquisitions.

Other Operating Expense (Incom&ther operating expense (income) includes wagerseuecognized as part of the lawsuits in Tennessee
and Washington state in 2013 and a net gain framrance proceeds and an impairment of intangildetagwhich is the difference between
the carrying value and the fair value of the assepaired) in 2012. See Item 3, Legal Proceedimgt)is Form 10-K for additional

information of the 2013 lawsuits.

Interest Expense, Nelnterest expense, net relates primarily to ourégeexpense on capital leases, our revolving liiesedit and our term
loan.

Other Expense (Income), Nétther expense (income), net includes the profibss of minor activities not fundamental to ongoapgrations

Income Taxesdncome taxes are recorded using the asset anditliabethod of accounting for income taxes. Under &sset and liability
method, deferred tax assets and liabilities aregeized for the deferred tax consequences atthlrita temporary differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existingets and liabilities and their respective tax bddeferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to tpfayable income in the years in which those diifiees are expected to be recovered or
settled.

Discontinued Operation(lncome) loss from discontinued operations reprissire after tax gain or loss on the sale or clsdioperations ¢
our business and the after tax effect of the diticoad operations for all periods presented.

Accretion charges on Redeemable Preferred SAccretion charges on Redeemable Preferred Stocksepts the change in carrying value
of such shares during the period as they are &ztfedm the initial carrying value at the datessfuance to the redemption value at the ea
redemption date. The Redeemable Preferred Stockedasmed in full on February 19, 2014 in conneciiith our initial public offering.
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Annual Results of Operations

The following table sets forth our operating resddtr the periods indicated (in millions):

Years ended December :

2014 2013 2012
Net revenue $518.( $431.¢ $301.:
Cost of sale: 377.¢ 322.2 227.%
Gross profit 140.1 109.% 74.C
Operating expenst
Selling 31.C 25.t 19.¢
Administrative and othe 83.t 71.1 56.1
Operating income (los! 25.€ 13.1 (1.9
Other expens 3.C 2.2 1.€
Income (loss) before income tax 22.€ 10.¢ (3.7)
Income tax provisiol € 4.2 0.€
Net income (loss) from continuing operatic 14.C 6.€ 4.3
Discontinued operatior
Loss (income) from discontinued operations, néhobdme taxe: 0.1 0.€ (2.4
Net income (loss $ 13.¢ $ 6.C $ (1.9
Accretion charges on redeemable preferred < 19.€ (6.2 (5.5
Net loss attributable to common stockholc $ (6.0 $ (0.2 $ (7.9

Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared to the YeanBed December 31, 2013
Net revenut

For the year ended December 31, 2014, net reveicveaised $86.1 million, or 19.9%, to $518.0 millfoym $431.9 million during the year
ended December 31, 2013. The increase in net revenluded revenue from acquisitions of approxinya$d5.4 million. Approximately
$52.1 million was predominantly attributable to angc growth in the volume of completed jobs inadlbur end markets. The remaining
increase in net revenue of approximately $18.6ioniliesulted from a variety of factors includingstamer and product mix, market pricing
variations and insulation volumes driven by buitdoode requirements. Of these, no one factor was significant than any other.

Cost of sales

For the year ended December 31, 2014, cost of sale=ased $55.7 million, or 17.3%, to $377.9 millfrom $322.2 million during the year
ended December 31, 2013. The increase in costex seluded increases from

acquired businesses of approximately $11.0 milligsproximately $37.9 million was predominantly dtrtable to organic growth in the
volume of completed jobs in the residential newstarction end market. Depreciation expense incte@8e6 million as a result of increased
investment in vehicles and equipment to supporigoowth. Additionally, cost of sales increased $8ifion as a result of a variety of factors
including customer and product mix, market pricuagiations and insulation volumes driven by buitdoode requirements. Of these items,
no one was more significant than the other.

Gross profit

For the year ended December 31, 2014, gross fmofgtased $30.4 million to $140.1 million from $1D%nillion during the year ended
December 31, 2013. As a percentage of net revgmnass profit increased to
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27.0% for the year ended December 31, 2014 frod923or the year ended December 31, 2013 primamrdgnfoperating efficiencies gained
with higher sales levels in most cost of salesgmies, especially material and labor costs, as agehn improvement in our customer and
product mix and lower fuel costs.

Operating expenses

Selling

For the year ended December 31, 2014, selling esqzeincreased $5.5 million, or 21.3%, to $31.0ianlfrom $25.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2013. This increase was duergases in commissions and wages and benefits @hdillion to support higher sales,
as well as an increase in bad debt expense ofn$illidn. Selling expenses increased 0.1% as a péage of net revenue for the year ended
December 31, 2014 as compared to the year endeshibec 31, 2013, as a result of increases in conons$o support more profitable sales
growth.

Operating expenses other than selling

For the year ended December 31, 2014, operatingnses other than selling increased $12.4 millior,706%, to $83.5 million from $71.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2013. Tivegase in operating expenses other than sellisgovimnarily due to increased wages and
benefits costs of $7.2 million to support our griowhcreased accounting and legal fees primar#peiated with our status as a public
company of $2.1 million (including secondary pulditering costs of $0.8 million), increased fagildosts of $1.4 million, increased
technology costs of $0.5 million, and net changeseveral other administrative expenses of apprabaiyn $1.2 million to support our grow

Other expense

For the year ended December 31, 2014, other expess&3.0 million, compared to $2.2 million for thear ended December 31, 2013. This
increase of $0.8 million is primarily reflectedimterest expense and includes an increase of $llidmin interest associated with capital
lease obligations as well as a writ-of capitalized loan costs associated with ddravedit agreement of $0.2 million, offset by a&se o
$0.1 million attributable to a lower interest rateour term loan compared to the interest rateurpeevious debt arrangements.

Income tax provisio

For the year ended December 31, 2014, we recoml@ttame tax provision of $8.6 million on our incerftom continuing operations before
income taxes of $22.6 million, or an effective tate of 38.1%. This rate was favorably impactediéguctions related to domestic produc
activities and a benefit for a cancelled put optielated to our Redeemable Preferred Stock. See ®Jdtair Value Measurements, “Assets
and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a ReagriBasis,” for more information on the put optidime favorability was offset by a non-
deductible permanent item related to our secondfieying during the second quarter, an increasmiirvaluation allowance for separate tax
filing entities, and an increase in the state inedax rate.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, we recoml@ttame tax provision of $4.2 million on our incerftom continuing operations before
income taxes of $10.9 million, or an effective tate of 39.0%. The provision was primarily driventhe impact of IRC Section 199
deductions and a change in the deferred tax aatettion allowance.

Loss (income) from discontinued operations, nétaime taxe:

For the year ended December 31, 2014, we hadrossdiscontinued operations of $48 thousand conap@rea loss from discontinued
operations of $0.6 million for the year ended Deben81, 2013. We did not discontinue
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any operations during the year ended December@®Y and all expenses incurred during that peritade¢o operations discontinued in prior
periods. During the year ended December 31, 20&Zlacted to discontinue operations in certain tpetéorming markets.

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to the YeanBed December 31, 2012
Net revenut

For the year ended December 31, 2013, net revecoeaised $130.6 million, or 43.4%, to $431.9 millfoom $301.3 million during the year
ended December 31, 2012. The increase in net revieoluded revenue from acquisitions of approxityabd1.5 million. Approximately
$72.6 million was predominantly attributable to angc growth in the number of completed jobs in&lbur end markets. The remaining
increase in net revenue of approximately $16.5oniltesulted from a variety of factors includingstamer and product mix, market pricing
variations and insulation volumes driven by buitdoode requirements. Of these, no one factor was significant than any other.

Cost of sales

For the year ended December 31, 2013, cost of salemased $95.0 million, or 41.8%, to $322.2 millfrom $227.2 million during the year
ended December 31, 2012. The increase in costax seluded increases from acquired businessapmbximately $31.8 million.
Approximately $53.8 million was predominantly dititable to organic growth in the number of complétds in the residential new
construction end market. Additionally, cost of salecreased $8.6 million as a result of a varidtiactors including customer and product
mix, market pricing variations and insulation volesrdriven by building code requirements. Of thés®$, no one was more significant than
the other. Depreciation expense increased $3.7oméils a result of increased investment in vehiatesequipment to support our growth.
This increase was partially offset by improved kg of our branch cost structures that resultedét of sales improvement of
approximately $2.9 million.

Gross profit

For the year ended December 31, 2013, gross [mof¢ased $35.7 million to $109.7 million from $J4million during the year ended
December 31, 2012. As a percentage of net revgnass profit increased to 25.4% for the year eridecember 31, 2013 from 24.6% for the
year ended December 31, 2012 primarily from opegagificiencies gained with higher sales levelmivst cost of sales categories, espec
labor costs, as well as an improvement in our castaand product mix and lower auto and truck regasts as we update our fleet to support
our growing net revenue.

Operating expenses

Selling

For the year ended December 31, 2013, selling esqseimcreased $5.7 million, or 28.8%, to $25.5iamlfrom $19.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2012. This increase was duerases in wages and commissions of $1.2 millmh®8.9 million, respectively, to
support higher sales as well as an increase idbatdexpense of $0.6 million. Selling expensesidedlby 0.7% as a percentage of net
revenue for the year ended December 31, 2013 aparenhto the year ended December 31, 2012, asila sésvages and advertising expe
comprising a lower percentage of revenue.

Operating expenses other than selling

For the year ended December 31, 2013, operatingnsegs other than selling increased $15.0 millio2607%, to $71.1 million from $56.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2012. Dyithre year ended December 31,
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2012, we recorded a $4.7 million non-cash compé@nrsaharge. There was no similar charge in 2018.tBe “Share-Based Compensation”
caption of Note 2, Significant Accounting Policiés; more information. Excluding non-cash compeiogsatoperating expenses other than
selling increased $19.7 million, or 38.1%, whichsvelue to increased wages and benefits costs ofdi8i8n, increased facility costs of $1.4
million, increased other administrative expense$54 million, and changes in other expenses ofaqmately $4.1 million as follows:

»  $4.3 million decrease in management fee expgehs® the year ended December 31, 2012, managéessnivere paid to
Littlejohn Managers, LLC ($1.1 million), Jeff Edwetsr ($2.7 million) and TCI Holdings, LLC ($0.5 mdh) pursuant to an
agreement dated December 18, 2012, which was tatedron November 22, 2013. No similar fees wereggthduring 2013, and
we do not expect to incur management fees goingaiat. Prior to November 1, 2013, Jeff Edwards sgag&a consultant and
non-employee officer to us. As such, he did noéinexsalary or bonus for 2012. The costs of Jeff&ds’ services were paid
through the management agreeme

e $7.0 million increase in expense due to a a@t gn a litigation settlement of $7.0 million reeized in 2012 due to the settlement
of a class action lawsuit in which we were onehef plaintiffs. The lawsuit related to excess matqgiices being charged by
certain manufacturers. The final gain related te settlement was recognized in 2013 and totalddt8usand

*  $1.4 million increase in various other expengeduding a $1.0 million gain in 2012 from insacz claims for a fire that occurred
at one of our branches and a $0.9 million expem@013 associated with the settlement of two cation lawsuits related to
under-payment of wages in Tennessee and Washistats(see Note 11, Commitments and Contingerfoesore details on
these lawsuits), offset by a $0.4 million expems2012 related to impairment of tradenames forafraur branches where we
discontinued the use of its previous operatingemadne and an additional $0.1 million miscellanemysense in 201:

Other expense

For the year ended December 31, 2013, other expess&2.2 million, compared to $1.8 million for thear ended December 31, 2012. This
increase of $0.4 million is reflected in interespense and is a result of higher average outstgrisbrrowings under our revolving credit
facility to support the revenue growth.

Income tax provisio

In 2013, we recorded an income tax provision o2$dillion on our income from continuing operatidrefore income taxes of $10.9 million,
or an effective tax rate of 39.0%. The provisiorsyamarily driven by the impact of IRC Section 1@&ductions and a change in the
Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowance. In 2012, weorded an income tax provision of $0.6 millionaur loss from continuing operatic
of $3.7 million, or an effective rate of (14.8%hd& 2012 provision was primarily driven by the imipaicnon-deductible stock compensation
recorded in 2012, and to a lesser extent an inereasur valuation allowance on net operating lssse

Loss (income) from discontinued operations, néd@ime taxe:

For the year ended December 31, 2013, we hadrdossdiscontinued operations of $0.6 million complai@income from discontinued
operations of $2.4 million for the year ended Delben81, 2012. During the year ended December 312,20e discontinued an operation
was used for regrinding materials to produce ldbse$ulation. Substantially all materials subjéotregrinding in this operation were
provided by a single supplier. The contract undeictvthe materials were obtained was terminatethg012. As a result, the associated
operation was discontinued. A gain of $4.5 millisas recorded as a result of the cancelled confBaring 2013, we elected to discontinue
operations in certain underperforming markets.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary capital requirements are to fund wogkiapital needs, operating expenses, acquisitioti€apital expenditures and meet
required interest payments. Our capital resourdesapily consist of cash and borrowings under aedit agreement and capital equipment
leases and loans.

The residential construction industry, and themefour business, experienced a significant dowrthanhstarted in 2006. However, beginning
in 2012, we saw the first meaningful increase ingiing completions since the downturn began. Whéehave experienced improved
profitability and liquidity through 2014, we haveviested significantly in working capital due to ancreased sales, supported primarily by
our credit agreement. Additionally, we have utilzmpitalized leases and loans to finance an isergmthe number of our vehicles.

As of December 31, 2014, we had $10.8 million ishcand $65.2 million of unused borrowing capacitger our credit agreement.

We believe that our cash flows from operations, loioid with our current cash levels and availabledwing capacity, will be adequate to
support our ongoing operations and to fund our debtice requirements, capital expenditures andiwgrcapital for at least the next
12 months.

Historical cash flow information
Working capital

We carefully manage our working capital and opatpgxpenses. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013yauking capital was 8.2% and 7.z

of net revenue, respectively. While we continuetik for opportunities to reduce our working capéta a percentage of net revenue, we may
decide in the future to negotiate additional disted payment terms with our vendors, which coutd I increased working capital as a
percentage of net revenue.

Working capital was $42.7 million and $31.1 millias of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The increase in accounts receivable, net of $13lbmas of December 31, 2014 as compared to Déeerdl, 2013 and the increase of
$12.0 million as of December 31, 2013 as comparddeicember 31, 2012, is primarily a result of highet revenue and is also driven by
acquisitions in 2014 and 2013. Days sales outstgral of December 31, 2014 and 2013 were compaatblgproximately 50.9 and 49.3
days, respectively. The fluctuation in days sal@standing is impacted by increases or decreasascimunts as seasonality and the housing
market cycle impacts collection rates.

The increase in inventory, net, of $4.2 millionciecember 31, 2014 as compared to December 3B, &@d $3.0 million as of
December 31, 2013 as compared to December 31, B)amarily a result of the increased net reveane is also driven by acquisitions in
2014 and 2013. Inventory turns as of December 314 2nd 2013 were comparable at approximately r8d818.1 respectively.

Deferred expenses related to the initial publieoffg completed in February 2014 totaled $5.2 onillas of December 31, 2013. These
charges, as well as an additional $3.5 million inediin 2014, were netted against proceeds fronoffieeing. As a result, there was no
deferred offering expense balance as of Decemhet@U. See Note 1, Organization, to our auditetalidated financial statements
included in this Form 10-K for more information our initial public offering.

Other current assets increased $4.5 million aseafehber 31, 2014 as compared to December 31, 2008rjy due to a change in the
timing of general liability and workers’ compensatiinsurance payments as well as an increase miymnes and coverage resulting in an
increase in insurance reserves of approximately $@lion and an increase in rebates receivabilo6 million resulting from our increased
purchasing
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activities necessary to support our increasedewvenue. This increase is also driven by acquigtiorf014 and 2013. Other current assets
increased $0.2 million as of December 31, 2013aspared to December 31, 2012.

Accounts payable, net increased $5.9 million aBafember 31, 2014 as compared to December 31,£0134.2 million as of December
2013 as compared to December 31, 2012, primarifyrasult of changes in the volume of inventorychases due to higher net revenue
leading up to each balance sheet date and is al@ndy acquisitions in 2014 and 2013.

Accrued and other current liabilities increase®38illion as of December 31, 2014 as compared tweBéer 31, 2013 primarily due to
increased wages and benefits of $2.4 million tgsupour growing business and is also driven byuaitions in 2014. Accrued and other
current liabilities increased $3.4 million as ofd@enber 31, 2013 as compared to December 31, 2@b2ndy due to increases in operating
expenses required to support the increasing |dvettorevenue.

Cash flow from operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities of $1@ibion, $4.2 million and $4.6 million for the yemended December 31, 2014, 2013

2012, respectively, consisted primarily of net imepadjusted for non-cash and certain other itenctudied in the net cash provided in 2014
was $12.2 million of depreciation and amortizatixpense on our growing base of property, planteapudpment to support our growth as
well as other changes in working capital, most bigt$4.6 million of additional accounts payablesaff by $10.7 million of additional
accounts receivable, both resulting from the ingega net revenue. Included in the net cash provill013 was $8.4 million of depreciation
and amortization expense on our growing base qigrty, plant and equipment to support our growtivels as other changes in working
capital, most notably $3.9 million of additionakacnts payable offset by $12.8 million of additibaecounts receivable, both resulting from
the increase in net revenue. Included in the r&t paovided in 2012 was $4.7 million of noncasltlsttompensation associated with equity
awards, $4.6 million of depreciation and amortizattxpense on our growing base of property, pladteguipment to support our growth,
and other changes in working capital, most not&2ly million of additional accounts payable offegt$6.9 million of additional accounts
receivable, both resulting from the increase inraeénue.

Cash flows from investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $16.lioni] $2.5 million and $2.7 million for the yearsded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2!
respectively. In 2014 we made cash payments, neasif acquired, of $12.4 million to acquire bussessand $6.2 million to purchase
property, plant, and equipment, primarily to expand fleet to support our growing business. In 2@&3made cash payments of $2.7 million
to purchase property, plant, and equipment, prisntgiexpand our fleet and $1.2 million to acquitesinesses. In 2012 we made cash
payments of $2.9 million to purchase property, pland equipment, primarily to expand our fleet.

Cash flows from financing activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was $&iftion for the year ended December 31, 2014 comgan net cash used in financi
activities of $1.5 million and $0.5 million for theears ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respgctiet cash provided in 2014 was
primarily the result of net proceeds from our @litatnd secondary public offerings of $87.6 milleomd $14.4 million, respectively, in addition
to $25.0 million of proceeds from our credit agreem Cash provided from these activities was offgethe redemption of our Redeemable
Preferred Stock of $75.7 million, net payments angrevious credit agreement of $27.3 million, wéhicapital lease principle payments of
$9.4 million, the repurchase of common stock oB%8illion, and cash payments for offering coststied to our IPO and secondary public
offerings of $4.4 million. Net cash used in 2013®wpaimarily the result of vehicle capital leasenpiple payments to support our growing
business of $6.6 million and cash payments forriffecosts related to our IPO of $4.4 million, eff®y proceeds from our
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previous credit agreement of $10.0 million. Nethcased in 2012 was primarily the result of vehdgital lease principle payments to
support our growing business of $3.0 million offegta $2.5 million capital contribution from stockters.

Capital expenditures

Capital expenditures vary depending on prevailingifiess factors, including current and anticipaterket conditions. Total capital
expenditures were $6.2 million, $2.7 million and%illion for the years ended December 31, 200432and 2012, respectively, and
primarily related to purchases of vehicles andawgiequipment to support our operations and ineteast revenue. We expect to continue to
support any increases in 2015 net revenue throurghefr capital expenditures.

Credit and Security Agreement

On July 8, 2014, we entered into a Credit Agreen(itet “Credit Agreement”) with a bank group with aggregate commitment of $100
million and a maturity date of July 7, 2019 (thedtdrity Date”). Upon entry into the Credit Agreerhesur previous credit agreement, as
amended, with an aggregate commitment of $50 millieas terminated. All of the obligations under @redit Agreement are guaranteed by
our existing and future direct and indirect matedimmestic subsidiaries, other than Suburban Itismalnc. (the “Guarantors”).

The Credit Agreement provides for a $75 millionaking credit facility (“LOC”) and a $25 million ten loan (“Term Loan”) secured by all
of our assets except certain vehicles secured fiyatéeases and loans. We can also borrow swiadtians up to $5.0 million and obtain
letters of credit of up to $10.0 million; any owtstling letters of credit and swingline loans urttierCredit Agreement reduce our borrowing
capacity. At December 31, 2014, we had $9.8 milbboutstanding letters of credit and $24.7 millmutstanding on the Term Loan. See |
5, Long-Term Debt, for more information on our dtekhreement.

The Credit Agreement contains financial covenagggiiring us to maintain 1) a leverage ratio of det#arnings, as adjusted for certain items
and as defined by the Credit Agreement, of no greatin 3.50 to 1.00 and decreasing over time#b t 1.00 by March 31, 2016, and 2) a
fixed charge coverage ratio, as adjusted for aeitams, of no less than 1.10 to 1.00. The Credite&ment also contains various restrictive
non-financial covenants and a provision requirtmat.tupon an event of default (as defined by thediC Agreement), amounts outstanding
under the LOC and Term Loan would bear intereti@tate as determined above plus 2%. In additibmepresentations and warranties in
the Credit Agreement must be true in all mateeapects on the date of each borrowing. Based oliniiations of the debt to earnings ratio
covenant in the Credit Agreement, at December 3142we had the ability to fully draw the LOC l¢ke outstanding letters of credit. At
December 31, 2014 and 2013, we were in compliantteall financial covenants of our Credit AgreemdntDecember 2014, we entered i
a First Amendment Agreement (the “First Amendmetd")he Credit Agreement, which, among others thimgnends the definition of
consolidated fixed charges to exclude certain stegrerchase transactions, up to a specified lfingitn the calculation of the fixed charge
coverage ratio under the Credit Agreement.

In October 2014, we entered into a Master LoanSaxlrity Agreement (“Master Loan Agreement”) withea lender to provide financing
up to $5.0 million for the purpose of purchasingietes and equipment used in the normal courseisihiess. Vehicles and equipment
purchased under this Master Loan Agreement sergeltderal for each note controlled by this fingmgcarrangement. Each financing
arrangement under this Master Loan Agreement eilles as a separate note and obligation. Regulang@atg are due under each note at the
time the obligation occurs. The specific termsadtenote are based on specific criteria, includiregtype of vehicle or equipment, the length
of the term of the note, and the market interdsisrat the time. There is no termination date isfMaster Loan Arrangement. The principal
balance outstanding thereunder at December 31, 2&s1$1.3 million.
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Letters of Credit and Bonds

We use letters of credit to secure our performamaker our general liability and workers compensatisurance programs. Our workers
compensation insurance program is considered ad@dhctible program whereby we are responsiblé®icost of claims under $0.75
million. If we do not pay these claims, our inswartarriers are required to make these paymeti® tolaimants on our behalf. Our general
liability insurance program has a self-insuredmgta (“SIR”) of $0.35 million whereby we are resyible for all claims below the SIR, and
the insurance company only has liability above3He. As of December 31, 2014, we had $9.8 millibowtstanding letters of credit and $!
million in cash securing our performance underehasurance programs. We occasionally use perfarenbands to ensure completion of «
work on certain larger customer contracts thatsgam multiple accounting periods. As of December2814, we had approximately 16
performance bonds outstanding, totaling $1.7 mmlliBerformance bonds generally do not have statgide¢ion dates; rather, we are released
from the bonds as the contractual performancerigpteted. As of December 31, 2014, we had approein&16 permit and license bonds
outstanding, totaling $3.8 million. Permit and lise bonds are typically issued for one year andegyaired by certain municipalities when
we obtain licenses and permits to perform workhigirtjurisdictions.

Capped Call Agreement

Certain of our stockholders entered into a cappdidagreement with the underwriters of our secopgablic offering in June 2014. We are
not a party to the agreement. This agreement pesuidat these stockholders have the option tadalial of approximately 1.1 million shares
at a capped price. The option can be exercisednspecific dates based on the then price of thietiying shares. This has the effect of
permitting these stockholders to receive additidreadefit on the shares sold in the secondary offeup to a predetermined price. This
agreement is between the stockholders party tharetdhe underwriters of the secondary offering @mek not represent compensation to the
stockholders for services rendered and the prigkfpathe option represents fair value of thahsaction. Accordingly, we have not recorded
any expense related to this transaction.

Contractual Obligations

In the table below, we set forth our enforceablé legally binding obligations as of December 311£2050me of the amounts included in the
table are based on management’s estimates and gssusrabout these obligations, including theiradion, the possibility of renewal,
anticipated actions by third parties and otherdiactBecause these estimates and assumptionsca®sadly subjective, our actual payments
may vary from those reflected in the table. In #ddi our unrecognized tax benefits under ASC 7#@ome Taxes,” have been excluded
from the contractual obligations table becausdefimherent uncertainty and the inability to readide estimate the timing of cash outflows.

Payments due by peric

Less than More than !
1- 3
(in millions) Total year 3 year 5 year years
Long-term debt obligations (1) $ 28.¢ $ 23 $ 5.2 $21.1 $ —
Capital lease obligations ( 30.C 10.¢ 14.C 5.2 —
Operating lease obligations ( 19.C 6.3 8.3 2.3 2.1
Purchase obligations (: 102.( 73.2 28.¢ — —

(1) Long-term debt obligations include principabanterest payments on our Term Loan. We will pagirterly principal payments of $0.3
million starting on December 31, 2014, with the g@idy payment amount increasing to $0.5 millioonfr September 30, 2016 through
June 30, 2018, and further increasing to $0.6 onilfrom September 30, 2018 through June 30, 2048 r&maining balance is due on
the Maturity Date of July 7, 2019. Also includee@ @rincipal and interest payments for vehicles equipmen
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purchased under our Master Loan Agreement. Regalanents are due under each note at the time tlyatibn occurs. Long-term
debt obligations also include principal and intepes/ments on various notes payable, maturing tirdecember 201t

(2) We maintain a fleet of production vehicles unaeapital lease structure. The leases expireadnus dates through May 2020. We
anticipate continuing the leasing of productionigkds to include new vehicles to support the insiegnumber of installation jobs in
our business as well as to replace aging vehi€lapital lease obligations, as disclosed aboveydeckstimated interest expense
payments. In determining expected interest exppagments, we utilize the current market r.

(3) We lease certain locations, vehicles and egeigrander operating lease agreements, includirtgydidimited to, corporate offices,
branch locations and various office and operatogmEment. In some instances, these location legigements exist with related part
See Note 10, Related Party Transactions, of outexidonsolidated financial statements includeddém 8 of Part Il of this
Form 1(-K for further information

(4) We entered into two supply contracts with miaimpurchase requirements based on quantity withepecific rate applied. The
amounts in the above table represent our best &stias to the prices that will be payable for tf@imum volume of purchases that
must be made under the contracts. We exceededioimum requirements under these and other simgegements in 2014 and 2013.
Similar commitments existed in 2012 and were fullgt.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, other than opgrigases and purchase obligations described akeiters of credit issued under our
revolving credit facility and performance and liserbonds, we had no material off-balance sheatgegraents with unconsolidated entities.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management's discussion and analysis of our firdrodndition and results of operations is basedhupo consolidated financial statements,
which have been prepared in accordance with acomuptinciples generally accepted in the Unitedeé#taThe preparation of our
consolidated financial statements requires us tkeneatimates and assumptions that affect the egbarhounts of assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses and related disclosure of contingsetsand liabilities. Certain accounting policgie®lve judgments and uncertainties to such
an extent that there is a reasonable likelihootrteerially different amounts could have been riggbusing different assumptions or under
different conditions. We evaluate our estimatesasslimptions on a regular basis. We base our ¢stiroa historical experience and various
other assumptions that are believed to be reasenaidler the circumstances, the results of whiam five basis for making judgments about
the carrying values of our assets and liabilitiext are not readily apparent from other sourcetuaecesults may differ from these estimates
and assumptions used in preparation of our coregelitfinancial statements. We provide discussiosuofmore significant accounting
policies, estimates and judgments used in preparafi our consolidated financial statements below.

Revenue Recognitic

Revenue from the sale and installation of prodisctscognized when all of the following have ocedrr(i) persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists; (ii) delivery has occurredeasvises have been rendered; (iii) the price isdire determinable; and (iv) the ability to
collect is reasonably assured. Revenue from theeasal installation of products is recognized neidjfistments and discounts and at the time
the installation is complete.

Goodwill

Goodwill results from business combinations andeegnts the excess of the purchase price oveaithealue of acquired tangible assets and
liabilities and identifiable intangible assets.
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Gooduwill is assigned to and tested for impairmera geporting unit level. We have one operatingrs&gt and our branches meet the
definition of components as they are businessewlifitcch discrete financial information is availalaled whose operating results are reviewed
by management. In accordance with the guidancéedtin Accounting Standards Codification, or AS60-20, our components qualify to
be aggregated into one reporting unit for goodimlbairment testing purposes.

Annually, or if conditions indicate an earlier rewi is necessary, we assess qualitative factomsp(‘aro analysis”) to determine if it is more
likely than not that the fair value of the repogtianit is less than its carrying amount and isihecessary to perform the quantitative two-step
goodwill impairment test.

At October 1, 2014, our measurement date, we paddra step zero analysis that weighted all evidehpetential impairment, whether
positive or negative. We determined there was diz@ior for potential impairment. There was no geitldmpairment in 2014, 2013 or 201
The estimated fair value of the reporting unit wabstantially in excess of the carrying value ab®er 1, 2014.

When a step one analysis is needed because steparerot provide convincing evidence that thereipotential impairment, the estimate of
the reporting unit’s fair value is determined byigiding a discounted cash flow model and a markktted model. The estimate of the
reporting unit’s fair value involves significantaimservable inputs (Level 3). These Level 3 inpugspgimarily our forecasts utilized in the
discounted cash flow model and our determinatiothefweight applied to each of the aforementionedets. Our forecasts include current
and projected future levels of cash flow based anagement’s plans, business trends, prospectsetraarl economic conditions and market-
participant considerations. Our forecasts are baped the best information available at the measarg date; however, actual results may
vary from the forecasts and thus the forecastesemt a Level 3 input. We take our forecasts aptyapdiscount rate commensurate with
capital structure and the cost of capital of corapkr market participants, giving appropriate coasition to the prevailing borrowing rates
within our industry, to arrive at our discountedlcdlow model. We elected to weight the discourdash flow model and market related
model, placing more weight on the discounted chsk fnodel. We believe the discounted cash flow apph more appropriately captures
specific growth and risk profile of the reportingity whereas the market approach requires a gtiaéitassessment of the reporting unit’s risk
profile and growth prospects compared to reasorsibiilar publicly-traded companies. In periods whboth models produce significantly
equivalent results we may elect to use the resfiltise discounted cash flow model only.

If the estimated fair value of the reporting usitéss than the carrying value, a second stepriisrpesd to determine the amount of the
potential goodwill impairment. If impaired, goodhig written down to its estimated implied fair ual

Taxes

We account for income taxes using the asset ahifitfjamethod. Under this method, the amount ofesxgurrently payable or refundable are
accrued and deferred tax assets and liabilitiesean@gnized for the estimated future tax conseqeenttemporary differences that currently
exist between the tax basis and financial repoitiagjs of our assets and liabilities.

Valuation allowances are established against dafdax assets when it is more likely than not thatrealization of those deferred tax assets
will not occur. In evaluating our ability to recaveur deferred tax assets within the jurisdicticoni which they arise, we consider all
available positive and negative evidence, includicigeduled reversals of deferred tax liabilitibs, &bility to produce future taxable income,
tax planning strategies available and recent firsoperations. In projecting future taxable inconve begin with historical results adjusted
for the results of discontinued operations and gkarin accounting policies and incorporate assumstincluding the amount of future
federal and state pretax operating income, thersalef temporary differences and the implementatibfeasible and prudent tax planning
strategies.

41



Table of Contents

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measurid) Wise enacted tax rates in effect in the yearsnithose temporary differences are expected
to reverse. The effect on deferred taxes from aghan tax rate is recognized through continuingrapons in the period that includes the
enactment date of the change.

A tax benefit from an uncertain tax position mayreeognized when it is more likely than not that glosition will be sustained upon
examination, including resolutions of any relatpgeals or litigation processes, based on the teahmierits. We recognize tax liabilities for
uncertain tax positions and adjust these liabditidven our judgment changes as a result of theiatiah of new information not previously
available.

Our income tax expense, deferred tax assets dritities and reserves for unrecognized tax benediiect management’s best assessment of
estimated future taxes to be paid. We are subjeiacbme taxes in the United States which includeserous state and local jurisdictions.
Significant judgments and estimates are requiretktermining the income tax expense.

Share-based compensation

We estimate the value of share-based awards aatieegranted and each subsequent balance she&rdability awards. On various dates
in 2010 and 2011, agreements (“Employee Puts”) watered into between Jeff Edwards (our Chairmessi@ent and Chief Executive
Officer and majority stockholder of IBP through irett holding companies), as an individual, andaieriBP employees, which allowed the
employees to sell their ownership in the Compahwg, fixed price, to Jeff Edwards. The Employee Ruésdeemed to be liability-classified
instruments that are directly associated with thards. As such, both the awards and the Employésedre accounted for as liability-
classified instruments as of the issuance dateeoEmployee Put. During the period for which theptoyee Puts are exercisable, both the
Employee Puts and the associated awards are reraddsuair value each reporting period. In theesioe of a publicly traded market, the
market value of the put options and underlying sbare estimated primarily using discounted camsh #nd, secondarily, other marketatec
models using current industry trends. In deterngrihre estimated future cash flow, we consider gqmdlyacertain estimates and judgments,
including current and projected future levels afdme based on management’s plans, business tpgodpects and market and economic
conditions and market-participant consideratiorfee @adjustment to the carrying value is based upoggaity rate of return for a public
company in our industry with similar financial tdshand characteristics. The determined fair vafl@iocommon stock is used to determine
the value of the membership interest units baseithi@n ownership interest. The membership intenegis and related put options are recol
at fair value as compensation expense. EffectiveeNer 30, 2013, the Employee Puts between JefaEthvand employees were
terminated.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-17, fBess Combinations (Topic 805).” This ASU estaldsiguidance about whether and
at what threshold an acquired entity that is armss or nonprofit activity can apply pushdown aatioig in its separate financial statements.
We have concluded that this ASU has not and willhave a material impact on our consolidated firgrstatements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements Not Yeipted

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-08, “Prds¢ion of Financial Statements (Topic 205) and Briyp Plant, and Equipment (Topic
360): Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disales of Disposals of Components of an Entity.” @heendments in this update change
the requirements for reporting discontinued opensatin Subtopic 205-20. We are still evaluating thlkeethis ASU will have a material
impact on our consolidated financial statements.
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In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, “Revefiam Contracts with Customers (Topic 606).” ASU 2019 sets forth a new revenue
recognition model that requires identifying the traat, identifying the performance obligations,atatining the transaction price, allocating
the transaction price to performance obligatiors r@eognizing the revenue upon satisfaction ofgrernce obligations. We are still
evaluating whether this ASU will have a materiapamt on our consolidated financial statements.

IMPLICATIONS OF BEING AN EMERGING GROWTH COMPANY

We qualify as an “emerging growth company” as defim the Jumpstart our Business Startups Act @226r the JOBS Act. An emerging
growth company may take advantage of specifiedaedlueporting and other requirements that are wikerapplicable generally to public
companies. These provisions include:

. an exemption from the auditor attestation rezgaient in the assessment of internal control anantial reporting pursuant to the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002, or the Sarbar-Oxley Act;

. reduced disclosure about executive compensatiamgements; an

. no requirement to seek r-binding advisory votes on executive compensatiogatalen parachute arrangemel

We have elected to adopt these reduced disclosgtérements and may take advantage of the prowdisted above until we are no longer
an emerging growth company. We will remain an enmgrgrowth company until the earlier of (1) thetlday of the fiscal year (a) following
the fifth anniversary of the completion of our conmrstock offering, (b) in which we have total aningrass revenue of at least $1.0 billior
(c) in which we are deemed to be a large accekbfder, which means the market value of our commatarck that is held by non-affiliates
exceeds $700 million as of the prior June 30th,@ydhe date on which we have issued more thab iillion in non-convertible debt during
the prior three-year period. We may choose to sakantage of some but not all of these reducedodisiz requirements.

The JOBS Act also permits emerging growth compatoi¢ake advantage of an extended transition ped@dmply with new or revised
accounting standards applicable to public compahii&schose to “opt out” of this provision and, agsult, we will comply with new or
revised accounting standards as required whenateegdopted. This decision to opt out of the ex¢drtdansition period is irrevocable.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk

We are exposed to market risks related to fluabaatin interest rates on our outstanding variadtie debt. As of December 31, 2014, we had
$24.7 million outstanding under our Term Loan, %hiBion outstanding under our Master Loan Agreemand $4.4 million outstanding
under various capital leases subject to varialibr@st rates. A hypothetical one percentage poarease (decrease) in interest rates on our
variable rate debt would increase (decrease) auuarnnterest expense by approximately $0.3 million

For variable rate debt, interest rate changes génelo not affect the fair value of the debt imstrent, but do impact future earnings and cash
flows, assuming other factors are held constantdilfeot utilize swaps, forward or option contragtsinterest rates or commodities, or other
types of derivative financial instruments durindl2®r 2013. We have not entered into and curretdlpot hold derivatives for trading or
speculative purposes.

INFLATION

Our performance is dependent to a significant eéxipon the levels of U.S. residential new constamcspending, which is affected by fact
such as interest rates, inflation, consumer confideand unemployment. We do not believe that iofiehas had a material impact on our
business, financial condition or results of operadiduring the past two fiscal years.

Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finaha@@orting. Our internal control over
financial reporting is a process designed to prev&hsonable assurance regarding the reliabilitinafcial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in at@muce with accounting principles generally accepigtie United States of America.

Management assessed the effectiveness of ourahimsntrol over financial reporting as of DecemBgy 2014 using the criteria set forth by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of theadivay Commission (COSO) in “Internal Control -efjvated Framework (2013).”
Based on this assessment, management has detetimat@dir internal control over financial reportiwgs effective as of December 31, 2(
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Installed Building Products, Inc.
Columbus, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Installed Building Products, Inc. amldsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013 and the related coasatidtatements of operations, stockholders’ eddéficit) and redeemable instruments
and cash flows for each of the three years in tt®g ended December 31, 2014. These consolidataddal statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Oupeasibility is to express an opinion on the finahsitatements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hamewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrirdl control over financial reporting.
Our audits included consideration of internal cohtwer financial reporting as a basis for desigramidit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of esging an opinion on the effectiveness of the Comiganternal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinidn.audit also includes examining, on a test basiglence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessigccounting principles used and significannestes made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall consolidated financial steat presentation. We believe that our audits pievai reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetagresent fairly, in all material respects, tin@ricial position of Installed Building
Products, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Decembe2@4 and 2013, and the results of their operatmastheir cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2014, ifoamity with accounting principles generally acasgin the United States of Americ

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Columbus, OH
March 13, 2015
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INSTALLED BUILDING PRODUCTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share amounts)

ASSETS

Current assel
Cash
Restricted cas

Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtfaloamts of $2,661 and $1,738 at December 31, 20d£2@ih3, respectively

Inventories
Deferred offering cost
Other current asse
Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
Non-current assel
Goodwill
Intangibles, ne
Other norcurrent asset
Total nor-current asset
Total asset

LIABILITIES, REDEEMABLE INSTRUMENTS AND STOCKHOLDER
Current liabilities
Current maturities of lor-term debt
Current maturities of capital lease obligatit
Accounts payabl
Accrued compensatic
Other current liabilitie:
Total current liabilities
Long-term deb
Capital lease obligations, less current matur
Put optio—Redeemable Preferred Stc
Deferred income taxe
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note

S EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Redeemable Preferred Stock; $0.01 par value: A A8 authorized, issued and outstanding at Dece®ih@014 and 2013, respectiv:
Redeemable Common Stock; $0.01 par value: 0 afi® ®80 authorized, issued and outstanding at Deee8ih 2014 and 2013, respectiv

Stockholder' equity (deficit)

Preferred Stock; $0.01 par value: 5,000,000 anatiosized, 0 and O shares issued and outstandibga@mber 31, 2014 and 2013, respecti
Common Stock; $0.01 par value: 100,000,000 and0®78B2 authorized, 31,839,087 and 16,183,901 isane®1,539,087 and 16,183,¢
shares outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 2€d/%ctively (Note 7

Additional paid in capite
Accumulated defici
Treasury Stock; at cost: 300,000 and 0 sharesecésply

Total stockholder equity (deficit)

Total liabilities, redeemable instruments and stobiter’ equity (deficit)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgsients
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As of December 3]

2014 2013
$10,76: $ 4,06¢
— 1,70¢
72,28 58,82t
23,97 19,73
= 5,15¢
12,27¢ 6,02¢
119,28 95,51
39,37( 29,47
53,39 49,32¢
17,71 13,40(
4,39: 3,35¢
75,50 66,08
$234,16;  $191,07(
$ 1,78 $ 25F
9,37¢ 7,66¢
46,58: 40,65:
11,31 8,94:
7,501 6,93(
76,55 64,44
25,07 27,77
17,50 14,37(
= 49¢
9,74¢ 9,571
13,40 9,00¢
142,28 125,65
— 55,83

- 81,01(
31¢ 162
154,49 =
(57,659 (71,59
(5,289 =
91,87 (71,429
$234,16;  $191,07(
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INSTALLED BUILDING PRODUCTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Net revenue
Cost of sale:

Gross profit
Operating expense
Selling
Administrative
Management fees, related pari
Gain on litigation settlemel
Amortization
Other
Operating income (los!
Other expense (incom
Interest expens
Other

Income (loss) before income tax
Income tax provisiol
Net income (loss) from continuing operatic
Discontinued operatior
Loss (income) from discontinued operatic
Income tax (benefit) provisic
Loss (income) from discontinued operations, nehobme taxe:
Net income (loss
Accretion charges on redeemable preferred ¢
Net loss attributable to common stockholder:
Weighted average shares outstanding (basic and dikd)
Net (loss) income per share (basic and dilutes
(Loss) income per share from continuing operatatirsbutable to common
stockholders (basic and dilute
(Loss) income per share from discontinued operataitributable to common
stockholders (basic and dilute

Loss per share attributable to common stockholfbersic and diluted

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsients

47

Years ended December !

2014
$ 518,02
377,96t

140,05:

30,95
80,67¢

2,831

25,58¢

3,16¢
(167)
2,99¢
22,58
8,60i
13,98(

78

(30)
48

$ 13,93
(19,89)

$ (5,969
30,106,86

$  (0.20)

$  (0.20

2013

$ 431,92
322,24:
109,68t

25,50¢
67,19¢

(31
3,051
881
13,07¢

2,25]
(39
2,22¢
10,85«
4,21¢
6,63¢

96(
(362)

59¢

$ 6,04
(6,225

$ (189)
22,033,90

$ 0.0z

(0.09)
$  (0.00

2012
$ 301,25
227,21
74,04

19,80
56,33
4,30(
(6,97%)
3,087

(60¢)

(1,896)

1,97¢
(136)

1,84¢
(3,739

55¢

(4,299

(3,835)
1,447

(2,386

$ (1,906
(5,529

$ (7,439
20,351,55

$  (0.49

0.17
$ (0.3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DHCIT) AND REDEEMABLE INSTRUMENTS

INSTALLED BUILDING PRODUCTS, INC.

(in thousands, except share amounts)

Additional Stockholder’ Redeemabl
Common Stocl _ Accumulate:  Treasury Share _ Preferrd Stocl Common Stocl
Paid In -_ Equity
Shares  Amount  Capital Deficit Shares Amouni  (Deficit) Share:  Amount Shares  Amount

BALANCE—January 1, 201 13,649,99 $ 137 $ — 3 (9,697) $ (9,56() 1,00C $44,08¢ 5,850,000 $ 15,50:
Issuance of common sto 2,533,90! 25 4,07% 4,10
Capital contributions from stockholde 2,50( 2,50(
Stocl-based compensatic 4,65¢ 4,65¢
Net loss (1,90¢) (2,90¢)
Accretion of Redeemable Preferred to

Redemption Valu (5,529) (5,529) 5,52¢
Adjustments to Redeemable Comn

Stock fair value measureme (1,74%) (1,74%) 1,74¢
BALANCE—January 1, 201 16,183,90 162 3,95¢ (11,607 — — (7,487 1,000 49,61 5,850,000  17,24¢
Net income 6,04( 6,04(
Accretion of Redeemable Preferred to

Redemption Valu (3,95¢9) (2,269 (6,227) 6,22:
Adjustments to Redeemable Comn

Stock fair value measureme (63,76¢) (63,76¢) 63,76¢
BALANCE—January 1, 201 16,183,90 162 — (71,597 — — (71,429 1,000 55,83t 5,850,000 81,01(
Net income 13,93: 13,93:
Initial Public Offering (IPO; 8,567,50! 86 78,86 78,94¢
Secondary Public Offerin 1,214,19 12 14,28( 14,29:
Redemption of Redeemable Prefer

Stock (1,000 (75,73
Termination of Redemption Feature U)

IPO 5,850,00! 58 89,30¢ 89,367 (5,850,00) (89,367
Accretion of Redeemable Preferrec

Redemption Valu (19,897 (19,897 19,89°
Adjustments to Redeemable Comn

Stock fair value measureme (8,357%) (8,35%) 8,351
Share-Based Compensation issued to

Directors 23,49( 1 29¢ 30C
Common Stock Repurcha (300,000 (5,289 (5,287%)
BALANCE—December 31, 201 31,839,08 $ 31¢ $ 15449 $ (57,659 (300,000 $(5,289) $ 91,87 - $ — — $ —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgsients
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INSTALLED BUILDING PRODUCTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Years ended December :
2014 2013 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss $13,93. $ 6,04( $(1,90€)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to @sh

provided by operating activitie

Depreciation and amortization of property and eogpt 12,17- 8,37¢ 4,637
Amortization of intangible 2,831 3,057 3,082
Amortization of deferred financing cos 15¢ 17E 17t
Provision for doubtful accoun 1,90 1,03¢ 482
Write-off of debt issuance cos 23t — —
Gain on sale of property and equipm (460) (372) (1,280)
Noncash stock compensati 30C — 4,65¢
Deferred income taxe (37¢) (1,782) (767)
Other (490) (292) 21C
Changes in assets and liabilities, excluding effe€acquisition:
Accounts receivabl (10,68¢) (22,777 (6,85¢)
Inventories (2,925 (2,94%) (1,84
Other asset (5,129 (2,270 (1,949
Accounts payabl 4,58¢ 3,90z 2,01z
Income taxes payab (1,67¢) (2,602) 2,33¢
Other liabilities 5,227 4,67¢ 1,60z
Net cash provided by operating activit 19,60: 4,22¢ 4,59/
Cash flows from investing activities
Restricted cas 1,70¢ 95 —
Purchases of property and equipm (6,17¢) (2,66%) (2,929
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquiregb8f $0 and $375 in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respdyg (12,369 (1,182 (823)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipr 68¢ 1,24 17¢€
Proceeds from insuran — — 83:
Net cash used in investing activit (16,147 (2,51)) (2,749
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from initial public offering of commondtpnet of cost: 87,64¢ — —
Proceeds from secondary public offering of comntogls net of cost 14,41¢ — —
Redemption of Redeemable Preferred S (75,73Y) — —
(Payments) proceeds from revolving lines of creuit (27,269 10,03¢ 48¢
Proceeds from term lo¢ 25,00( — —
Debt issuance cos (714) — —
Principal payments on long term dt (1,08)) (519) (517)
Principal payments on capital lease obligati (9,369 (6,625) (2,95¢€)
Payments for deferred initial public offering cc (4,25%) (4,44¢) —
Payments for deferred secondary public offerindsc (12¢)
Repurchase of common stc (5,287) — —
Capital contribution: — — 2,50(
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 3,231 (1,54¢) (487)
Net change in cas 6,69¢ 167 1,37(
Cash at beginning of ye 4,06t 3,89¢ 2,52¢
Cash at end of ye: $10,76: $ 4,06F $ 3,89¢

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informa
Net cash paid during the year fi

Interest $ 2,66¢ $ 2,03¢ $ 1,89t

Income taxes, net of refun 9,13¢ 8,25¢ 37¢
Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing arahfiing activitie:

Vehicles capitalized under capital leases andeélase obligatior 14,58: 17,12% 11,09(

Common stock issued for acquisition of busir — — 4,10(

Seller obligations in connection with acquisitidrbosinesse 3,54« 30C 571

Notes payable issued for acquisition of as — — 11t

Unpaid offering costs _ 71C _

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgsients
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INSTALLED BUILDING PRODUCTS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share amounts)

NOTE 1 — ORGANIZATION

Installed Building Products, Inc. (“IBP"), a Delaveacorporation formed on October 28, 2011, and/ftslly owned subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Company” and “we”, “us” and rguprimarily install insulation, garage doorsjrragyutters, shower doors, closet shelving
and mirrors, and other products for residential emtimercial builders located in the continentaltediStates. IBP operates in over 100
locations within the continental United States aadorporate office is located in Columbus, Ohio.

We have one operating segment and a single refp@gaggment. Substantially all of our sales commfservice based installation of various
products in the existing and new residential androercial construction end markets. Each of our ¢ftas has the capacity to serve all of our
end markets. The following table sets forth theumhipercentage of our net revenue by end market:

December 31

201¢ 201: 2012
Existing and new residential construction 89% 89% 86%
Commercial constructio 11 11 14

100%  10(%  10(%
The following is a summary of the annual percentaigestallation net revenue by product category:

Years ended December !

201¢ 2012 2012
Insulation 7€% 74% 74%
Garage door 7 8 8
Shower doors, shelving and mirrc 6 6 6
Rain gutters 6 6 6
Other building product B _ 6 _ 6

100% 100% 10(%

2014 Initial Public Offering (“IPQO”)

On February 10, 2014, in anticipation of our IP@, executed a 19.5-for-one stock split of our comstogk which was originally a total of
1,129,944 shares of common stock issued and odistarThe effect of the stock split on outstandsh@res and earnings per share has been
retroactively applied to all periods presentedldweing the split we had 22,033,901 stock-split stfal shares of common stock issued and
outstanding.

On February 19, 2014, we completed an IPO of oaroon stock, which resulted in the sale of 8,567 &tdres. We received total proceeds
from the IPO of $94,242 based upon the price of L per share. We used $6,597 of the proceedsduontPO to pay underwriting fees,
$75,735 to redeem our Redeemable Preferred StatkHh910 to pay down our revolving credit faciliifhe common stock is listed on The
New York Stock Exchange under the sym“IBP.”

2014 Secondary Public Offering

On June 17, 2014, we completed a secondary offefiag aggregate of 9,314,196 shares of our constamk at a public offering price of
$12.50 per share. The total offering size refl&190,000 shares of common stock offered on beliairtain selling stockholders (the
“Selling Stockholders”) and 1,214,196 shares thatew
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INSTALLED BUILDING PRODUCTS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share amounts)

offered and sold by us pursuant to the exercighefinderwriters’ option to purchase additionalrehaWe did not receive any proceeds from
the sale of shares by the Selling Stockholders. él@n we received $14,418, after deducting undéngridiscounts but before estimated
offering expenses payable by us, from the exenisee underwriters’ option to purchase additiostares.

NOTE 2 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consoliati

We prepare our consolidated financial statemendé&aordance with accounting principles generalepted in the United States of America
("U.S. GAAP"). The accompanying consolidated finehstatements include all wholly owned subsidisia@d majority owned subsidiaries.
The non-controlling interest relating to a majodtyned subsidiary is not significant for preseitatiAll intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

Preparation of the consolidated financial statesmantonformity with U.S. GAAP requires managentenmake estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets antitied and disclosure of contingent assets arllitaes at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenseg the reporting period. Significant estimateslide the allowance for doubtful
accounts, valuation allowance on deferred tax assatuation of the reporting unit, intangible assend other long-lived assets, share based
compensation, reserves for general liability, amdkers’ compensation and medical insurance. Managemermveslithe accounting estima
are appropriate and reasonably determined; howduerto the inherent uncertainties in making trestgnates, actual amounts could differ
from such estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly-liquid investments purchaseth original term to maturity of three monthsless to be cash equivalents. All such
items referenced herein are classified as cashwvarttave no items classified as cash equivalent$ e years ended December 31, 2014 or
2013. Substantially all cash is held in two barnkBecember 31, 2014. The banks provide FDIC cowerd@250 per depositor.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of deposits held by aurance carrier for general liability and workezsimpensation reserves. Restricted cash is
not considered cash and cash equivalents for pespafsthe statements of cash flows. Classificabietwveen current and long-term is
dependent upon the timing of the intended use dfi earticular reserve.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from the sale and installation of prodisctscognized when all of the following have ocedrr(i) persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists; (ii) delivery has occurredasvises have been rendered; (iii) the price isdine determinable; and (iv) the ability to
collect is reasonably assured. Revenue from tleeasal installation of products is recognized netdjistments and discounts and at the time
the installation is complete.
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INSTALLED BUILDING PRODUCTS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share amounts)

Business Combinations

The purchase price for business combinationsdeatéd to the estimated fair values of acquiredibde and intangible assets, including
goodwill, and assumed liabilities, where applicalldditionally, we recognize customer relationshipademarks and trade names, and non-
competition agreements as identifiable intangilsieets. These assets are recorded at fair valddlas toansaction date. The fair value of
these intangibles is determined primarily usingittt®me approach and using current industry inféionavhich involves significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs). These inpudkide projected sales, margin, and tax rate.

Accounts Receivable

We account for trade receivables based on amoillgd to customers. Past due receivables are detethbbased on contractual terms. We do
not accrue interest on any of our trade receivables

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accountsdfstimated losses resulting from the failure of congtrs to make required payments. The
allowance is determined by management based ohistorical losses, specific customer circumstanaed,general economic conditions. We
analyze aged accounts receivable and generallgaserthe allowance as receivables age. Manageewesws accounts receivable and
records an allowance for specific customers basetlarent circumstances and charges off the rebkagainst the allowance when all
attempts to collect the receivable have failedsHmalysis is performed regularly and the allowads@ajusted accordingly.

Allowance for doubtful accounts receival

January 1, 2012 $ 1,571
Charged to costs and expen 482
Charged to other accounts 563
Deductions (2 (1,209
December 31, 2012 1,412
Charged to costs and expen 1,03¢
Charged to other accounts 47¢
Deductions (2 (1,19)
December 31, 2013 1,73¢
Charged to costs and expen 1,90(¢
Charged to other accounts 292
Deductions (2 1,26¢
December 31, 201 $ 2,661

(1) Recovery of receivables previously written off asl lnebt
(2) Write-off of uncollectible accounts receival

Deferred Offering Costs

Included on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at Dieeef8i, 2013 are deferred expenses related toahrugry 19, 2014 Initial Public
Offering totaling $5,156. See Note 1, Organization further details of our
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INSTALLED BUILDING PRODUCTS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share amounts)

Initial Public Offering. These deferred expensesengharged against equity upon the completion®i1BO in accordance with U.S. GAAP.
As of December 31, 2014, we charged total offecosts of $8,700 against equity related to our IR@$L26 related to our secondary public
offering.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Credit risk is our risk of financial loss from then-performance of a contractual obligation onghe of our counterparty. Such risk arises
principally from our receivables from customers aadh and bank balances. Substantially all of raetaccounts receivable are from ent
engaged in residential and commercial constructiéa perform periodic credit evaluations of our onsérs’ financial condition. The general
credit risk of our counterparties is not consideiede significant. In addition, no individual coster made up more than 3.0% of net revenue
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an2. 201

Inventories

Inventories consist of insulation, garage dooris, gaitters, shower doors, mirrors, closet shehand other products. We install these prod
but do not manufacture them. We value inventothatower of cost or market with cost determineihgishe first-in, first-out (“FIFO”)
method. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, all itorgrwas finished goods.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, lessradated depreciation. We provide for depreciatiod amortization of property and
equipment using the straighie method, over the expected useful lives ofabgets. Expected useful lives of property and egeiip vary bu
generally are the shorter of lease life or fivergdar vehicles and leasehold improvements, ttodevé years for furniture, fixtures and
equipment and 30 years for buildings.

Major renewals and improvements are capitalizedndaance, repairs and minor renewals are expasséatturred. When assets are retired
or otherwise disposed of, the related cost andraatated depreciation are removed from the accaaumdsany resulting gain or loss is
recorded.

Goodwill

Goodwill results from business combinations andeegnts the excess of the purchase price oveaithealue of acquired tangible assets and
liabilities and identifiable intangible assets. Amfly, on October 1, or if conditions indicate arlgr review is nhecessary, we assess
gualitative factors to determine if it is more lik¢han not that the fair value of a reporting usitess than its carrying amount and if it is
necessary to perform the quantitative two-step gdlbonpairment test. If we perform the quantitatitest, we compare the carrying value of
the reporting unit to an estimate of the reporting’s fair value to identify potential impairmerithe estimate of the reporting usifair value

is determined by weighting a discounted cash flosdeh and a market- related model using currentstrgiinformation that involve
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputg)determining the estimated future cash flow, wesater and apply certain estimates and
judgments, including current and projected futeseels of income based on manager's plans, business trends, prospects and market and
economic conditions and market-participant consitiens. If the estimated fair value of the repatimit is less than the carrying value, a
second step is performed to determine the amouthiegbotential goodwill impairment. If impaired,apwill is written down to its estimated
implied fair value.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share amounts)

Impairment of Other Intangible and Lohived Assets

Other intangible assets consist of customer relakips, non-competition agreements and businedsrrarks and trade names. Amortization
of finite lived intangible assets is recorded tihe@t the pattern of economic benefits based ofepted revenues over their respective
estimated useful lives (customer relationships—elD3 years, non-competition agreements—two toyears and business trademarks and
trade names—eight to 15 years). We do not haveralgfinite-lived intangible assets other than goiidw

We review long-lived assets whenever events or@asin circumstances indicate that the carryingevaf an asset may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognized when estimatedr&utash flows expected to result from the usenaisset and its eventual disposition are
less than its carrying amount. When impairmenténtified, the carrying amount of the asset is ceduo its estimated fair value. Assets t
disposed of are recorded at the lower of net b@dleror fair market value less cost to sell atdae management commits to a plan of
disposal. There was no impairment loss for thesyeaded December 31, 2014 and December 31, 201iBtaagible asset impairment
related to continuing operations of $352 is inctlideother operating expenses for the year endegiber 31, 2012.

Other Liabilities

Our workers’ compensation insurance is primarildema high-deductible insurance policy and our ggrimbility insurance is under a self-
insured retention program (“SIR”). We are insureddovered claims above the deductible and SIR.lighéities represent our best estimate
of our costs, using generally accepted actuarsgriéng methods, of the ultimate obligations fgyaeed claims plus those incurred but not
reported for all claims incurred through Decembier2)14 and 2013. We establish case reservesgortesl claims using case-basis
evaluation of the underlying claims data and weat@as information becomes known. We regularly mnootine potential for changes in
estimates, evaluate our insurance accruals andtaalju recorded provisions.

The assumptions underlying the ultimate costs dtieng claim losses are subject to a high degraspfedictability, which can affect the
liability recorded for such claims. For exampletizhility in inflation rates of health care costdhéerent in workers’ compensation claims can
affect the ultimate costs. Similarly, changes geldrends and interpretations, as well as a chantiee nature and method of how claims are
settled can affect ultimate costs. Our estimatdimbilities incurred do not anticipate significastianges in historical trends for these varia
and any changes could have a considerable effefcitore claim costs and currently recorded lialeitit

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Adsirgiexpense was approximately $1,553, $1,610 ar698 for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectivelyisaimdluded in selling expense on the Consolid&edements of Operations.

Other Operating Expenses

A net gain on litigation settlement of $31 and $& 9vas recognized in 2013 and 2012, respectively,td the settlement of a class action
lawsuit in which we were one of the plaintiffs. Tlagvsuit related to excess material prices beiraggdd by certain manufacturers and was
settled in 2012.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share amounts)

Also included in other operating expenses in 2812 $960 gain from insurance proceeds relatedetoegplacement of property and equipn
and business interruption due to a fire at a sitaglation in 2011.

We recorded $1,407 of settlement expenses in 2€48:d to two lawsuits against us of which apprataty $881 of these settlement

expenses is included in other operating expens2818. The remaining expense is included in Adriaisre Operating Expenses. See Note
11, Commitments and Contingencies, for furtherrimfation about these lawsuits.

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs totaling $643 and $321 ane amortized over the term of the related dels straightine basis which approximat
the effective interest method and are includedfiwionon-current assets on the Consolidated Bal8heets as of December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively. The related amortization experighese costs was $159, $175 and $175 andliglettin interest expense on the
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeaded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, resplgctWe also wrote off the remaining
loan costs associated with our previous creditexgent upon securing our credit agreement. Thegs 6b$233 are included in interest
expense on the Consolidated Statements of Opesdtiothe year ended December 31, 2014. See Nai@g; Term Debt, for more
information on our credit agreement.

ShareBased Compensation

In a previous period, two of our stockholders issmembership interests in their equity to certdiowr employees (the “Awards"Tertain o
these employees were granted Employee Puts.

When the employees received the Awards, the tHendhuie of the Awards less any consideration iohange for the Awards was recorde
compensation expense. In accordance with the teftfie Awards, they were deemed equity-classifieruments as there is no service or
vesting period associated with these Awards andoatipensation expense was recognized upon issuance.

Upon issuance of the Employee Puts, the then &direvof the Employee Puts received was recordedrapensation expense over the ser
period, if applicable. The Employee Puts are deetndxt liability<lassified instruments that are directly associatitd the Awards. As suc
both the Awards and the Employee Puts are accotioted liability-classified instruments as of iesuance date of the Employee Put.
During the period for which the Employee Puts atereisable, both the Employee Puts and the assdcfavards are re-measured to fair
value each reporting period.

It was assumed that Employee Puts will be exercsélde greater of the fixed price or fair markalue. In the absence of a publicly traded
market, the fair market value of the Employee Rwig underlying units are estimated primarily usliggounted cash flow and, secondarily,
using other market-related models that factor ment industry trends. In determining the estimdtedre cash flow, we consider and apply
certain estimates and judgments, including curmentprojected future levels of income based on gemant’'s plans, business trends,
prospects and market and economic conditions amketparticipant considerations. The adjustmerth&ocarrying fair value is based upon
an equity rate of return for a public company im imgustry with similar financial trends and chasatistics. The fair value of our common
stock is used to determine the value of the Em@d3ets based on their ownership interest.

Because the awards were granted by a related gaadgmpensation to our employees, the compensadgotiated with the awards and the
related puts was pushed down by the related paailE and recorded as
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non-cash compensation expense. This expense t§4J688 in 2012 and is included in administratixpenses on our Consolidated
Statement of Operations. We recognized no simipeese in 2014 or 2013.

Effective November 30, 2013, the Employee Puts betwleffrey Edwards and our other executive ofigegre terminated. As of
December 31, 2014, all remaining puts betweenelefiidwards and employees remained unexercisedxairee.

Self-Insurance Liabilities

We use a combination of insurance and self-ins@dmca number of risks, including, but not limiteed workers’ compensation, general
liability, vehicle liability, property and our olgiation for employee-related health care benefitbilities relating to these claims associated
with these risks are estimated by considering hcstbclaims experience, including frequency, sgéyedemographic factors, and other
actuarial assumptions. In estimating our liabifidy such claims, we periodically analyze our higirtrends, including loss development, i
apply appropriate loss development factors tonlearred costs associated with the claims with #séstance of external actuarial consultants.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using the asset ahifitfjamethod. Under this method, the amount ofesxurrently payable or refundable are
accrued and deferred tax assets and liabilitiesean@gnized for the estimated future tax conseqeenttemporary differences that currently
exist between the tax basis and financial repoitiagjs of our assets and liabilities.

Valuation allowances are established against d=ldax assets when it is more likely than not thatrealization of those deferred tax assets
will not occur. In evaluating our ability to recaveur deferred tax assets within the jurisdicticoni which they arise, we consider all
available positive and negative evidence, includicigeduled reversals of deferred tax liabilitibg, &bility to produce future taxable income,
tax planning strategies available and recent firperations. In projecting future taxable income begin with historical results adjusted
for the results of discontinued operations and gkarin accounting policies and incorporate assumgtincluding the amount of future
federal and state pretax operating income, thersal/ef temporary differences, and the implemeotatif feasible and prudent tax planning
strategies. These assumptions require significaigment about the forecasts of future taxable ircand are consistent with the plans and
estimates we use to manage the underlying busmesse

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measurid) Wise enacted tax rates in effect in the yearsnithose temporary differences are expected
to reverse. The effect on deferred taxes from aghan tax rate is recognized through continuingrapons in the period that includes the
enactment date of the change. Changes in tax lagvsaties could also affect recorded deferred tagtasind liabilities in the future.
Management is not aware of any such changes thativave a material effect on our results of opensat cash flows, or financial position.

A tax benefit from an uncertain tax position mayréeognized when it is more likely than not tha gosition will be sustained upon
examination, including resolutions of any relatpgeals or litigation processes, based on the teahmierits. Income tax positions must meet
a more likely than not recognition threshold toréeognized.
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We recognize tax liabilities for uncertain tax gimsis and adjust these liabilities when our judgh@ranges as a result of the evaluation of
new information not previously available. Liab#is§ related to uncertain tax positions are reconether current liabilities and other long-
term liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Shdete to the complexity of some of these unceri@gnthe ultimate resolution may result in
a payment that is materially different from theremt estimate of the tax liabilities. These diffezes will be reflected as increases or
decreases to income tax expense and the effeativate in the period in which the new informatimtomes available. Interest and penalties
related to unrecognized tax benefits are recognidtidn income tax expense in the Consolidatedetaints of Operations. Accrued interest
and penalties are recognized in accrued expenst®d@onsolidated Balance Sheets.

Our income tax expense, deferred tax assets dritities and reserves for unrecognized tax benediiect management’s best assessment of
estimated future taxes to be paid. We are subjeacbme taxes in the United States which includeserous state and local jurisdictions.
Significant judgments and estimates are requiretetermining the income tax expense, deferred4agta and liabilities and the reserve for
unrecognized tax benefits.

Discontinued Operations

We continually review each of our markets in ortterefine our overall investment strategy and tbrojze capital and resource allocations in
an effort to enhance our financial position anthtwease Company value. This review entails anuewiain of both external market factors
our position in each market and over time has teduh the decision to discontinue certain locatiddustomers of discontinued locations
not be served by other locations. There were nem@hissets or liabilities related to our discouéd operations as of December 31, 2014 or
2013. Discontinued operations were not segregatétki Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounts receivable, accounts payable, and acdialgitities as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 appnate their fair value due to the short-
term maturities of these financial instruments. Tagying amounts of the long-term debt under thlving lines of credit and Term Loan
approximate their fair values as of December 3142ind 2013 due to the short term maturities oflitiwerlying variable rate LIBOR
agreements. This represents a Level 2 fair valugsorement.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-17, fBess Combinations (Topic 805).” Current U.S. GAgffers limited guidance for
determining whether and at what threshold an aequicquired entity) can reflect the acquirer’scaoting and reporting basis (pushdown
accounting) in its separate financial statemertigs ASU establishes guidance about whether andhat thireshold an acquired entity that is a
business or nonprofit activity can apply pushdowecoainting in its separate financial statementss H8U is effective on November 18, 2(
and applicable to future business combinationsh@le concluded that this ASU has not and will reateha material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements Not Yeipted

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-08, “Prds¢ion of Financial Statements (Topic 205) and Briyp Plant, and Equipment (Topic
360): Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disales of Disposals of
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Components of an Entity.” The amendments in thidatg change the requirements for reporting disnaatl operations in Subtopic 205-20.
A discontinued operation may include a componeraéntity or a group of components of an entitya business or nonprofit activity. A
disposal of a component of an entity or a groupashponents of an entity is required to be repariatiscontinued operations if the disposal
represents a strategic shift that has (or will hammajor effect on an entity’s operations andriiial results. This ASU is effective
prospectively for fiscal years, and interim periedthin those years, beginning on or after Decemir2014. We are still evaluating whet
this ASU will have a material impact on our condated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, “Revefiam Contracts with Customers (Topic 606y&r the ASU, an entity should recogr
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goodseorices to customers in an amount that refldetonsideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goodsgrvices. ASU 2014-09 sets forth a new reveasaegnition model that requires
identifying the contract, identifying the perforntanobligations, determining the transaction pridcating the transaction price to
performance obligations and recognizing the reveman satisfaction of performance obligations. T8 is effective for fiscal years, and
interim periods within those years, beginning aRecember 15, 2016, with earlier adoption not pt#edi The provisions can be adopted
either retrospectively to each prior reporting pémpresented or as a cumulative-effect adjustmeof the date of adoption. We are still
evaluating whether this ASU will have a materiapamt on our consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 3 — PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

As of December 3 As of December 3
2014 2013

Land $ 66 $ 66
Buildings 21¢ 21¢
Leasehold improvemen 4,02¢ 3,64(
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 17,81« 15,72(
Vehicles and equipme! 75,73: 61,97:
97,85’ 81,61t

Less: accumulated deprecation and
amortizatior (58,487 (52,140
$ 39,37( $ 29,47¢

Property and equipment as of December 31, 201£2@ah8 of $37,014 and $37,360, respectively, welg fidpreciated but still being utilize
in our business. Depreciation and amortization egpaluring the years ended December 31, 2014, 2012012 was $12,174, $8,374 and
$4,637, respectively.
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NOTE 4 — GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES
Goodwill

The change in carrying amount of goodwill was defes:

Accumulater

Goodwill Impairment Goodwill

(Gross) Losses (Net)
January 1, 2013 $119,15( $ (70,009 $49,14¢
Business combinatior 182 — 182
December 31, 201 119,33: (70,009 49,32¢
Business combinatior 4,06¢ — 4,06t
December 31, 201 $123,39° $ (70,009 $53,39:

At October 1, 2014, our measurement date, we paddra step zero analysis that weighted all evidehpetential impairment, whether
positive or negative. We determined there was dic#@tor for potential impairment. No impairmentgrfodwill was recognized for the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012. See NpRBushess Combinations, for more information ondwill increases from business
combinations.

Intangibles, net
The following table provides the gross carrying amtcand accumulated amortization for each majasctd intangibles:

As of December 31, 201 As of December 31, 201
Gross Accumulate: Net Book Gross Accumulater Net Book
Carrying Carrying
Amount Amortizatior Value Amount Amortizatior Value
Amortized intangibles
Customer relationshif $26,11¢ $ 16,15 $ 9,96¢ $21,41. $ 14,40: $ 7,00¢
Covenants n-to-compete 88:¢ 20z 681 35€ 16C 19¢
Trademarks and tradenarn 13,68: 6,612 7,06¢ 11,88: 5,687 6,19t

$40,68: $ 22,96t $17,71¢ $33,65( $ 20,25( $13,40(

There was no intangible asset impairment losshferyears ended December 31, 2014 and 2013. Amgibtarasset impairment related to
continuing operations of $352 for impaired custonedationships and trademarks and trade namesnglat certain branch name changes is
included in other operating expenses on the Caestedil Statement of Operations for the year endegbker 31, 2012.

The gross carrying amount of intangibles incre&s&033 and $645 during the years ended Decemb&034, and 2013, respectively.
Intangibles associated with acquisitions accoufdae®7,111 and $1,332 of the increases during #asyended December 31, 2014 and 2
respectively, with the remaining changes due termfhctors. See Note 12, Business Combinationsnfoe information. Amortization
expense on intangible assets
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totaled $2,837, $3,057 and $3,082 during the yeaded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respgctiRemaining estimated aggregate
annual amortization expense is as follows:

2015 $3,06¢
2016 2,707
2017 2,117
2018 1,907
2019 1,612
Thereaftel 6,30¢

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT

As of December 31

2014 2013
Revolving Line of Credit $ — $27,26¢
Term Loan due July 7, 20: 24,68t¢ —
Vehicle and equipment notes paya 1,34¢ —
Various notes payable, maturing through Decemb#&62payable in

various monthly installments, including interegesaranging from 0.0%

to 10.0% 822 757

26,85¢ 28,02¢

Less: current maturitie 1,78¢ 25¢
Long-term debt, less current maturiti $25,07( $27,77:

On July 8, 2014, we entered into a Credit Agreen(idat “Credit Agreement”) with a bank group with aggregate commitment of $100,000
and a maturity date of July 7, 2019 (the “Matuiitgte”). Upon entry into the Credit Agreement, otgpous credit agreement, as amended,
with an aggregate commitment of $50,000, was teateth

The Credit Agreement provides for a $75,000 revm\dredit facility (‘LOC”) and a $25,000 term loéfTerm Loan”) secured by all of our
assets except certain vehicles secured by cap#saék and loans. We can also borrow swingline lopris $5,000 and obtain letters of credit
of up to $10,000; any outstanding letters of cradi swingline loans under the Credit Agreemenicedur borrowing capacity. At
December 31, 2014, we had $9,815 of outstanditerteof credit and no outstanding swingline loans.

We had $24,688 outstanding under the Term Loamaralitstanding borrowings under the LOC as of Ddeer81, 2014. We had $24,500
outstanding on the line of credit under the presi@uedit Agreement at 1-month LIBOR including mar{.25%) and $2,769 outstanding on
the previous line of credit at the Alternate BasgeRncluding margin (4.25%) as of December 31,3201

The LOC and Term Loan bear interest at either @ Btrrodollar rate (“LIBOR”) or 2) the Base Rate {g¢happroximates Prime Rate), plus a
margin based on the type of rate applied and thee@epresented as a ratio) of our total debatoiegs. The Term Loan amortizes in
quarterly principal payments of $313 starting orc@aber 31, 2014, with the quarterly payment amaareasing to $469 from

September 30, 2016 through June 30, 2018, andefuirtbreasing to $625 from September 30, 2018 giralwne 30, 2019. Any outstanding
principal balance on the Term Loan is due on théukty Date.
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The Credit Agreement contains financial covenagdgiiring us to maintain 1) a leverage ratio of del#arnings, as adjusted for certain items
and as defined by the Credit Agreement, of no greatin 3.50 to 1.00 and decreasing over time#d @ 1.00 by March 31, 2016, and 2) a
fixed charge coverage ratio, as adjusted for aeitams, of no less than 1.10 to 1.00. The Credite&ment also contains various restrictive
non-financial covenants and a provision requirtmat,tupon an event of default (as defined by thediCAgreement), amounts outstanding
under the LOC and Term Loan would bear interetii@tate as determined above plus 2%. In addi@ibmepresentations and warranties in
the Credit Agreement must be true in all mateeapects on the date of each borrowing. Based olimitations of the debt to total earnings
ratio covenant in the Credit Agreement, at Decen3ie2014, we had the ability to fully draw the L@&Ss the outstanding letters of credi
December 2014, we entered into a First Amendmeneémgent (the “First Amendment”) to the Credit Agnemt, which, among others

things, amends the definition of consolidated fixbdrges to exclude certain share repurchase ttmss, up to a specified limit, from the
calculation of the fixed charge coverage ratio uride Credit Agreement.

In October 2014, we entered into a Master LoanSaxlurity Agreement (“Master Loan Agreement”) withea lender to provide financing
up to $5,000 for the purpose of purchasing vehiates equipment used in the normal course of busingshicles and equipment purchased
under this Master Loan Agreement serve as collateraach note controlled by this financing arramgnt. Each financing arrangement
under this Master Loan Agreement will serve aspasse note and obligation. Regular payments aeeudder each note beginning when
each obligation occurs. The specific terms of eautle are based on specific criteria, includingtyipe of vehicle or equipment, the length of
the term of the note, and the market interest raitéise time. There is no termination date of Master Loan Arrangement. The balance
outstanding thereunder at December 31, 2014, wa461

NOTE 6 — FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair Values

Fair value is the price that would be receivedaiorasset or paid to transfer a liability (an exicg) in the principal or most advantageous
market for the asset or liability in an orderlyrtsaction between market participants on the meammedate.

The standard establishes a fair value hierarchyréftpiires an entity to maximize the use of obdgevmputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.staedard describes three levels of inputs that lmeaysed to measure fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identicaeds or liabilities in active markets that thdtgritas the ability to access as of the
measurement date.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs ottien Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for aimaissets or liabilities; quoted prices
in markets that are not active; or other input$ #na observable or can be corroborated by obslervafrket data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reffie reporting entity’s own assumptions about g®umptions that market participants
would use in pricing an asset or liability.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value dteaurring Basis

In many cases, a valuation technique used to medainvalue includes inputs from multiple levefgloe fair value hierarchy. The
lowest level of significant input determines thaggment of the entire fair value measurement iigiarchy. During the periods
presented, there were no transfers between faievakrarchical levels.
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Our Redeemable Preferred Stock was redeemed ini&gt2014 with proceeds from our IPO, eliminatihg &ssociated put option. In
addition, the redeemable feature of our Redeen@iemon Stock was terminated upon the IPO. See Nddxganization, “2014
Initial Public Offering,” for further information.

Balance as ¢ Significant
Quoted prices | Significant othe unobservabl
December 3: observable inpu
active markets inputs
2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Put option—Redeemable Preferred Stock $ 49(C $ — $ — $ 49C
Redeemable Common Sto 81,01( — — 81,01(
Total items measured at fair value on
arecurring basi $  81,50( $ — $ — $ 81,50(

The following is a general description of the véaioia methodologies used for liabilities and mezmarequity (which includes preferred
redeemable and common stock) items measured atlaie:

Put option—Redeemable Preferred Stock—We identdiedrtain embedded feature in the Redeemablerf@fStock that was required to
be bifurcated and accounted for as a derivative.id@iantified put option allowed Redeemable Pretesteckholders to put their shares upc
change in control. The estimated fair value ofgibtoption on Redeemable Preferred Stock was datechusing our estimates of the
probability of a change in control during each pdrihe option is outstanding in combination with #tcreted fair value of the Redeemable
Preferred Stock during the option period. Thoseltieg) probabilities were then calculated at netsent value. An increase in the probability
of the change in control would have increased #élirevealue of the embedded derivative. We have ntared into and currently do not hold
derivatives for trading or speculative purposes.

Redeemable Common Stock—The estimated fair valtlkeofedeemable feature of certain shares of distanding common stock was
determined using a combination of discounted clstsfand market multiple approach modeling. Thevalue was estimated using this
method to mark the Redeemable Common Stock to matlkeach period end. The weighted average castmfal (“WACC”) used to
estimate fair value was approximately 18% as ofdbduer 31, 2013.

Changes in the fair value of recurring fair valueasurements using significant unobservable infuggg] 3) for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013 were as follows (inghods):

Balance as of January 1, 2C $ 18,02¢
Adjustments to fair value measurement impactingStatement of
Stockholder Deficit and Redeemable Instrume 63,764
Adjustments to fair value measurement impactingStatement of
Operations (292)
Balance as of January 1, 2C 81,50(
Adjustments to fair value measurement impactingStatement of
Stockholder Deficit and Redeemable Instrume 8,351
Adjustments to fair value measurement impactingStatement of
Operations (490
Termination of Redemption Feature on common stockpaut optior (89,367
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ —
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The unrealized gain related to the put option lités is recorded within other expense (income}tmConsolidated Statements of
Operations.

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a NonrecurringsBas

Certain assets are measured at fair value on &oaming basis in periods subsequent to initiabgedtion. Assets measured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis as of December 31, 2014 and afH 8ategorized based on the lowest level of fogmit input to the valuation. The assets
were measured at fair value as our impairment assad indicated a carrying value for each of treetssin excess of the asset'stimated fa
value. Discounted cash flows, a Level 3 input, weikzed in determining estimated fair values. fighis no impairment loss for the years
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013. An intangiblet @spairment related to continuing operations363is included in net income
attributable to common stockholders for the yealeghDecember 31, 2012. See the “Impairment of Liamgd Assets” caption of Note 2,
Significant Accounting Policies, for more informati

NOTE 7 — STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT) AND REDEEMA BLE INSTRUMENTS

In anticipation of our IPO, we amended our Cetdificof Incorporation on February 10, 2014 to, amathgr things, authorize additional
shares of common and preferred stock. On Februgarg@L4, we further amended our Certificate of tpooation to delete references to the
Redeemable Preferred Stock, all of which was re@demith proceeds from our IPO and subsequentiyecttind cancelled.

In December 2014, we entered into a share repuecigreement with Cetus Capital Il, LLC, a relatadyy for the purchase of 300,000
shares of our common stock for an aggregate pueghase of $5,283, or $17.61 per share, which Wwaddst reported sales price of the
company’s common stock on December 11, 2014. Tleetasf these treasury shares reducing the nunftmrromon shares outstanding is
reflected in our earnings per share calculatiom.g@alitional information on the related party redaship, see Note 10, Related Party
Transactions.

As of December 31, 2014, we had 5,000,000 sharpeeférred stock authorized with no shares issueditstanding, 100,000,000 shares of
common stock authorized, 31,839,087 shares of canstazk issued and 31,539,087 shares of commok etdstanding, all with par value
of $0.01, and 300,000 shares of treasury stockstt ¢

NOTE 8 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

We participate in multiple healthcare plans, ofathiour primary plan is partially self-funded wih insurance company paying benefits in
excess of stop loss limits per individual. Our tiezdre benefit expense (net of employee contribgjizvas approximately $8,119, $7,954 and
$5,744 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 20d 2012, respectively for all plans. An accrualdstimated healthcare claims incurred
but not reported (“IBNR”) is included within accaieompensation on the Consolidated Balance Shedta/as $1,089 and $913 as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

We participate in multiple workers’ compensatioand. Under these plans, we use a high deductibigam to cover losses above the
deductible amount on a per claim basis. We acauthé estimated losses occurring from both asdente un-asserted claims. Workers’
compensation liability for premiums is includedaither current liabilities on the Consolidated Baki$heets. Insurance claims and reserves
include accruals of estimated settlements for knolaims, as well as accruals of actuarial estimatdBNR. In estimating these reserves,
historical loss experience and judgments abouetipected levels of costs per claim are considéreese
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claims are accounted for based on actuarial essratthe undiscounted claims, including thosentdaincurred but not reported. We believe
the use of actuarial methods to account for thesdities provides a consistent and effective wayneasure these highly judgmental accr

Workers’compensation expense totaled $9,814, $5,910 a0d 34or the years ended December 31, 2014, 2012612, respectively. As |
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, worlansipensation known claims and IBNR reserves toth#a56 and $5,920 and are
included in both other current and other long-téahilities on the accompanying Consolidated BaéaBSbeets. Other current and other long-
term liabilities also include $5,133 and $4,27&otrued general liability insurance reserves d3agiember 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
We also had an insurance receivable for claimseketeded the stop loss limit included in otheglterm assets on the face of the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. That receivable sfeseequal liability included within the reservecamt noted above and totaled $2,963 and
$2,055 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respBctive

We also participate in various profit-sharing afd &) plans. Certain plans provide that eligibleptogees can defer a portion of their wages
into the trust, subject to current Internal Reve@oee rules and limitations. We provide a matcliogtribution of wages deferred by
employees and can also make discretionary conimifigito each plan. Certain plans allow for disoreiry employer contributions only. Th
plans cover substantially all our eligible emplogieBuring the years ended December 31, 2014, 20d2@12, we recognized 401(k) plan
expenses of $702, $695 and $529, respectively,hwikimcluded in administrative expenses on th@®@panying Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

Directors

We periodically grant shares of restricted stocknembers of our Board of Directors. Accordingly, ieeord compensation expense within
administrative expenses on the Consolidated Statisnoé Operations at the time of the grant.

In June 2014, we granted 23,490 shares of restritteek at a price of $12.77 per share (which prts market price on the grant date) to
non-employee members of our Board of Directors.s€hehares effectively vested on the grant date $here is no service required period
associated with these awards. The lack of a vestirsgrvice period may not apply to any future stggants under our 2014 Omnibus
Incentive Plan. Accordingly, we recorded $300 impensation expense within administrative expenseh® Consolidated Statements of
Operations for the year ended December 31, 2014eSill shares effectively vested immediately,eéliemo unearned compensation expense
related to non-vested share-based compensatiordezton our Consolidated Balance Sheet as of Deee&ih 2014. No restricted stock had
been granted prior to June 2014 and accordinglghanes were granted and no compensation expesseewmded for the years ended
December 31, 2013 or 2012, and no vested or ncewvesstricted stock awards existed as of thosesdate

The weighted-average grant-date fair value is #meesas the issue price for all shares since éieo§hares vested at the grant date. All share:
are fully vested and no shares were forfeited dutfie year ended December 31, 2014. As of DeceBhe2014, 2,976,510 of the
100,000,000 shares of common stock authorizedsfaraince were available for issuance under the @didibus Incentive Plan.

Employee!
No restricted stock awards have been granted tdogegs as of December 31, 20
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NOTE 9 — INCOME TAXES
The provision for income taxes from continuing @tems is comprised of:

Years ended December !

2014 2013 2012
Current:
Federa $7,61¢ $ 5,28¢ $1,21°
State 1,36¢ 677 194
8,98¢ 5,96¢ 1,407
Deferred:
Federa (67€) (1,559 (799
State 29¢ (196 (58)
(378 (1,750 (852)
Total tax expens $8,601 $4,21¢ $ 5B5E

The reconciliation between our effective tax ratenet income (loss) from continuing operations tadfederal statutory rate is as follows:

Years ended December !

2014 2013 2012
Income tax at federal statutory rate $7,905 35.(% $3,79¢ 35.(% $(1,309) 35.(%
Stock Compensatic — 0.C% (97) (0.S%) 1,581 (42.2%)
Section 199 Deductio (694) (3.1%) (459) (4.2%) (26¢) 7.2%
Other permanent iten (272) (1.2%) 7 0.1% 262 (7.C%)
Change in valuation allowan: 585 2.€% 647 6.C% 214 (5.7%)
Interest and penalties on uncertain tax posit — 0.C% — 0.C% 56 (1.5%)
State income taxes, net of federal ber 1,08: 4.8% 314 2.9% 19 (0.5%)
Total tax expens $8,607 38.1% $4,21¢ 38.9% $ 555 (14.&%)

65



Table of Contents

INSTALLED BUILDING PRODUCTS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(in thousands, except share amounts)

Components of the net deferred tax asset or ligigle as follows:

At December 3:

At December 3:

2014 2013
Deferred Tax Assel
Current
Accruals, prepaid items and allowan $ 20¢ $ 8€
Inventories 75 58
Current deferred tax asst 28¢ 141
Long-term
Property and equipme 1 1
Net operating loss carryforwar 1,92¢ 1,29
Long-term deferred tax asse 1,92¢ 1,29¢
Total deferred tax asse 2,20¢ 1,43¢
Less: Valuation allowanc (1,500 (88%)
Net deferred tax asse 70z 554
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Current
Accruals, prepaid items and allowan: (26) (29
Other (59 (67)
Current deferred tax liabilitie (85) (9€)
Long-term
Property and equipme (327) (8€)
Intangibles (789 (379
Investment in partnersh (9,206) (9,559
Long-term deferred tax liabilitie (10,316 (10,019
Total deferred tax liabilitie (10,409 (10,110
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ (9,699 $ (9,556

As of December 31, 2014, we have federal and statane tax net operating loss (NOL) carryforwarti$1 925, the earliest of which expi

in 2030.

Valuation Allowance

We assess the available positive and negative meédi® estimate if sufficient future taxable incowi#t be generated to utilize the existing
deferred tax assets on a jurisdiction and by tidfientity basis. A significant piece of objectimegative evidence evaluated is cumulative
losses incurred over the most recent three ye@wgeduch objective evidence limits the abilityctansider other subjective positive evidence
such as our projections for future growth.

Based on this evaluation, a valuation allowancebe®n recorded as of December 31, 2014 and 201Bdaret deferred tax assets recorded
on certain of our wholly owned subsidiaries. Suefeded tax assets relate
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primarily to net operating losses that are not nliedy than not realizable. However, the amounthaf deferred tax asset considered
realizable could be adjusted if estimate of futareable income during the carryforward period cleary if objective negative evidence in-
form of cumulative losses is no longer present.ifioltal weight may be given to subjective evidesaeh as our projections for growth in
this situation.

Uncertain Tax Positions

We are subject to taxation in the United Stateswvamibus state jurisdictions. As of December 31, 2®mur tax years for 2011 through 2013
are subject to examination by the tax authoritesollforward of the gross unrecognized tax berseiitas follows:

Unrecognized tax benefit, January 1, 2! $ 1,36¢
Increase as a result of tax positions taken duhegerioc 891
Decrease as a result of tax positions taken duhiegperioc (945

Unrecognized tax benefit, December 31, 2 1,311
Increase as a result of tax positions taken duthegerioc 2,54t
Decrease as a result of tax positions taken duahiegperioc 1,03¢

Unrecognized tax benefit, December 31, 2 $ 2,817

The amount of unrecognized tax benefits at Dece®bgeP014 that would affect the effective tax riat81,755. Interest expense and penalties
accrued related to uncertain tax positions forymr ended December 31, 2014 are $215.

We expect a decrease to the amount of unrecogtazduenefits (exclusive of penalties and interedtf)in the next twelve months ranging
from zero up to $1,669. This decrease relatestpadeary items.

Determining uncertain tax positions and the relastimated amounts requires judgment and carriesad®n risk. If future tax law changes
or interpretations should come to light, or additibinformation should become known, our conclusimgarding unrecognized tax benefits
may change.

NOTE 10 — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In December 2012, we entered into a managementesrand fee agreement and made a payment of $fgBAtanagement fees to certain
related parties for management services. Pursadhistagreement, the board of directors annuatgminined whether a management fee
would be paid as well as the amount of that fe@ ddreement was terminated on October 22, 2013 @sdch fees were paid in 2013.

We sell installation services to other companiésted through common or affiliated ownership. Weogburchase services and materials and
pay rent to companies with common or related owriprSee Note 11, Commitments and Contingenciegufare minimum lease payments
to be paid to these related parties.
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For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 ar®] # amount of sales to common or related paaesell as the purchases from and
rent expense paid to these common or related pateeas follows:

Years ended December :

2014 2013 2012
Sales $6,02¢ $ 1,18¢ $1,68¢
Purchase 3,10( 10,29: 3,66¢
Rent 60C 671 28¢€

During the second quarter of 2014, we appointeevamember to our Board of Directors who is alsoGE of M/l Homes, Inc. (NYSE:
MHO), one of our customers. As a result, we haetunted all sales to this customer in 2014 in thevaltable. We paid this director fees of
$50 in the form of restricted stock awards and i§2be form of cash compensation during the yededrDecember 31, 2014. See Note 8,
Employee Benefits, Share-Based Compensation, fdrduinformation.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had related patgnces of $1,255 and $475, respectively, indudeccounts receivable on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Also at December(8#4,2ve had related party balances of $3 and $&3pectively, included in accounts
payable on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Indlidthese balances are trade amounts associdtedavious entities qualifying as related
parties to us. M/l Homes, Inc. accounted for $6Rthe total accounts receivable, related partyrxadeas of December 31, 2014.

In December 2014, we entered into a share repuecm@eement with Cetus Capital Il, LLC (“Cetus”) fbe purchase of 300,000 shares of
our common stock for an aggregate purchase prig®,@83. A member of our Board of Directors islaffed with Cetus, thus classifying this
as a transaction with a related party. See No8tatkholders Equity (Deficit) and Redeemable Instrumentspfiore information on the shz
repurchase.

As a result of our acquisition of TCI Contractihd,C (“TCI”) in 2012, one of our existing suppliebecame classified as a related party until
a change in ownership of the supplier resultedhierad to such classification during 2014. Prionab being classified as a related party to us,
purchases made from this supplier during the yeaded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were $2366126 and $743, respectively,
and are included in total related party purchaseke preceding table.

One of our major stockholders guaranteed certaminersement obligations of ours under certain parénce and licensing bonds issued by
sureties on behalf of us in the ordinary courskusfiness. These bonds have been replaced with ltwetddo not require any guarantee. Tt
obligations were not direct guarantees of us ane waminated as of January 2014.

The Company maintains a receivable from IBP Holddmgnpany, Inc., related to us through direct cdriyaleff Edwards, in the amount of
approximately $600 as of December 31, 2014 and .Z¥8 receivable represents amounts owed to usdges and related expenses paid by
the Company during 2011 to former employees of H&iling Company, Inc. and is included in other eatrassets on the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets. We have received &2hi receivable as of the date of filing of thisnual Report on Form 10-K.

68



Table of Contents

INSTALLED BUILDING PRODUCTS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share amounts)

NOTE 11 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Leases

We are obligated under capital leases coveringcleshand certain equipment. Total assets relatirmgpital leases were $65,238 and $54,004
as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectivelyaanthl of $20,499 and $22,160 were fully depredas of December 31, 2014 and 2(
respectively. The vehicles and equipment leasesrgiy have terms ranging from four to six yearse het book value of assets under capital
leases was $28,754 and $23,623 as of Decembe®34 ,a@hd 2013, respectively, net of accumulatedegemtiion of $36,484 and $30,382,
respectively. Amortization of assets held undeitehfeases is included with depreciation expenséhe Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

We also have several noncancellable operatingdeasienarily for buildings, improvements, equipmearid certain vehicles. These leases
generally contain renewal options for periods ragdgrom one to five years and require us to pagxaticutory costs such as property taxes,
maintenance and insurance.

Future minimum lease payments under noncanceltgi#eating leases (with initial or remaining leasarts in excess of one year) and future
minimum capital lease payments as of December@®14 2re as follows:

Capital Lease Operating Lease
Related Part Other Total Operatin
2015 $ 11,15 $ 434 $ 5,88( $ 6,31¢
2016 8,74 35¢€ 4,794 5,15(
2017 5,76¢ 15C 2,99¢ 3,14+
2018 3,33¢ 83 1,23¢ 1,31¢
2019 1,86¢ — 951 951
Thereaftel 33 — 2,12( 2,12(
30,90: $ 1,02t $17,97¢ $ 18,99
Less: Amounts representing executory ¢ (874)
Less: Amounts representing inter (3,149
Total obligation under capital leas 26,88:
Less: Current portion of capital leas (9,379
Long term capital lease obligatis $ 17,50¢

Total rent expense under these operating leas¢sdgrears ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2838 3wW871, $7,171 and $6,343,
respectively, which is included in the ConsolidaBtdtements of Operations as follows:

Years ended December :

2014 2013 2012
Cost of Sales $ 73¢ $ 57z $ 43t
Selling 34 32 11z
Administrative 7,104 6,56¢ 5,79¢
Total $7,871 $7,171 $6,34°
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Supply Contract Commitments

As of December 31, 2014, we had two product supphtracts, one extending through December 31, 20@5ne extending through

August 31, 2017. Our obligations for both contrats based on quantity without a specific rateiadmnd therefore are not quantifiable. We
expect our quantity purchases to exceed the miniguamtity commitments for all years covered bydbstracts. Actual purchases made
under the contracts for the years ended Decemb&03% and 2013 were $53,084 and $25,884, respéctiv

Other Commitments and Contingencies

A class action lawsuit was filed in February 2008 an amended complaint was filed in May 2013 enSlperior Court of King County,
Washington, involving Installed Building ProductsllLC, one of our subsidiaries, alleging violat®oaf Washington State wage and hour
laws for failure to pay prevailing and minimum waaygd overtime wages. The plaintiffs were formeulagon installers for Installed Buildit
Products II, LLC in Washington who sought to reprgsall similarly situated workers. They soughtuaipaid wages, along with litigation
costs and fees.

A lawsuit was filed in July 2013 in federal courtthe Middle District of Tennessee against oneuwfsubsidiaries, TCI d/b/a Installed
Building Products of Nashville, alleging unpaid aime and failure to pay lawful wages under fedéaal and Tennessee common law and in
unjust enrichment and in breach of an alleged echtThe named plaintiffs were former insulatiostalers in Nashville. The plaintiffs

sought to have this case certified as a collectdt®n under the Federal Fair Labor Standards Adtas a class action under Tennessee law.
They sought reimbursement of the overtime wagealfdime worked over forty hours each week, ad agliquidated damages and litigation
costs and fees.

We recorded $1,407 of settlement expenses in thegreled December 31, 2013. Both lawsuits werkedeétt January 2014 and approved by
the court by April 2014. Approximately $1,200 ofgltost was recorded as an accrued expense includgider current liabilities on our
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 20li&maining expenses were paid during the yealed December 31, 2014 and
therefore no accrued expense remained as of Dece&htad14.

From time to time, various claims and litigatioe asserted or commenced against us principallingrisom contractual matters and
personnel and employment disputes. In determirdeg tontingencies, management considers the ldadilof loss as well as the ability to
reasonably estimate the amount of such loss dfifialAn estimated loss is recorded when it is sidered probable that such a liability has
been incurred and when the amount of loss cands®nably estimated. It is not certain that we priévail in these matters. However, we do
not believe that the ultimate outcome of any pegdiratters will have a material adverse effect ancomsolidated financial position, results
of operations or cash flows.

NOTE 12 — BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

As part of our ongoing strategy to increase maskete in certain markets, we completed three bssio@mbinations during the year ended
December 31, 2014, two business combinations duh@gear ended December 31, 2013 and two durigehr ended December 31, 2012.
The goodwill to be recognized in conjunction witle$e business combinations is attributable to egdexynergies. Goodwill resulting from
each acquisition is not expected to be deductideax purposes.
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2014

On March 24, 2014, we acquired 100% of the comntocksof U.S. Insulation Corp. (“U.S. Insulation®n August 11, 2014, we acquired
100% of the common stock of Marv’s Insulation, Iitddarv’s Insulation”) and on November 10, 2014, aejuired substantially all of the
assets of Installed Building Systems (“IBS”). Theqhase price of our 2014 acquisitions, in aggesgainsisted of cash of $12,417 and seller
obligations of $3,544. Purchase considerationedl&t 2014 business combinations is deemed toddenmary in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles which allow for atfjuents to acquired assets and liabilities foroupnte year from the acquisition date.
Revenue and net income, in aggregate, of these #mities since their dates of acquisition inctudeour Consolidated Statement of
Operations for the year ended December 31, 201d $&3,492 and $938, respectively.

2013

On March 16, 2013, we acquired 100% of the memigersterests of Ace Insulation Contractors, InAd¢e”) and on November 1, 2013 we
acquired 100% of the membership interest of KMB t€amting Services, Inc. (‘KMB”). The purchase prifeour 2013 acquisitions consisted
of cash of $1,181 and a seller obligation for $38@. combined Ace and KMB with existing branchesmupoquisition and as such, we are
unable to differentiate the results of operatioasMeen Ace, KMB, and the existing branches foryi@rs ended December 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013.

2012

On August 31, 2012, we acquired 100% of the outktnmembership interest of TCl and 87.5% of tiseiésl and outstanding capital stock
of a subsidiary of TCI. Simultaneous with the pursd of TCI, we purchased the remaining 12.5% okigsind outstanding capital stock of
the subsidiary for $571, which was paid in the faia seller note. The purchase price consistéd df% (or 2,533,908 shares, which is the
number of shares after a 19.5-for-one stock splitBP common stock, which was valued at $4,10Matdate of the transaction. See Note 1,
Organization, “2014 Initial Public Offering (IPO)o6r further information on the stock split.

On November 16, 2012, we acquired 100% of the meshieinterest of Accurate Building Products InbeTpurchase price consisted of ¢
of $1,198 and a note for $80. Revenue and neffitwdbe two entities acquired in 2012 since theited of acquisition in our Consolidated
Statement of Operations for the year ended DeceBhez012 were $14,097 and $1,018, respectively.
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The estimated fair values of the assets acquirddialilities assumed for the acquisitions apprcded the following:

2014 2013 2012
Cash $ 53 $ — $ 37¢
Accounts receivabl 4,66¢ 213 5,48¢
Inventory 1,31¢ 68 2,54¢
Note receivable — — 171
Other current asse 19t 37 291
Property and equipme 1,57¢ 33¢ 46¢
Intangibles 7,111 1,332 5,51:
Goodwill 4,06t 182 834
Accounts payable and accrued expel (2,50%) (609) (7,852)
Deferred tax liability (515) — (1,387
Long-term debi — — (49¢)
Total purchase pric $15,96: $1,561 $ 5,94¢
Fair value of common stock issu $ — $ — $ 4,10(
Seller obligation: 3,54¢ 38C 651
Cash paic 12,41° 1,181 1,19¢
Total purchase pric $15,96: $1,561 $ 5,94¢
Estimates of acquired intangible assets relatédeg@cquisitions are as follows:
2014 2013 2012
Weightec Weightec Weightec
Average Average Average
Estimate: Estimate: Estimate:
Estimatec Estimatec Estimatec
Useful Useful Useful
Acquired intangibles ass Fair Value Life (yrs) Fair Value Life (yrs) Fair Value Life (yrs)
Customer relationships $ 4,70¢ 14 $ 972 10 $ 3,241 10
Trademarks and trade nan 1,79¢ 15 33¢ 15 2,06 9
Non-competition agreemen 604 5 22 5 20t 3

Pro Forma Information (unaudited)

The unaudited pro forma information has been pegpas if the 2014 acquisitions had taken placeaonary 1, 2013, and the 2013
acquisitions had taken place on January 1, 201@ uRaudited pro forma information is not necesganilicative of the results that we would
have achieved had the transactions actually tales® @n January 1, 2013 and 2012, and the unaytlitetbrma information does not purp
to be indicative of future financial operating risu

Pro Forma for the years ended Decembe

2014 2013 2012
Net revenue $537,33t $459,19! $334,88!
Net income (loss 16,091 6,811 (3,499
Net (loss) income attributable to common stockhi (3,800 58¢ (9,02¢)
Net (loss) income per share attributabli
common stockholders (basic and dilut (0.13) 0.0¢ (0.47)
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Unaudited pro forma net income (loss) has beerutztd after adjusting our consolidated resulteflect additional intangible asset
amortization expense of $435, $614 and $567 foydaes ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 atasgly.

NOTE 13 — DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2014, we didlisobntinue operations in any of our markets. Bythe year ended December 31, 2
we made the decision to close our branches in ©klahCity, Oklahoma and Williston, North Dakota ajomith our distribution facility in
Hebron, Ohio. During the year ended December 312 2@e made the decision to close our branchesi@ Eennsylvania and Knoxuville,
Tennessee. We have presented the operations efdlesed branches as discontinued operations i@dhsolidated Statements of Operati
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an?l. 201

All closures made during the years ended Decembe?2(®13 and 2012 were made in order to optimizé&alagnd resource allocations and
enhance our financial position. We have no contigunvolvement with or cash flows from the closedrthes. Further, the customers
associated with closed branches and other disa@dioperations will not be served by other branchAesimmary of operations we
discontinued in these markets for the years endaéBber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Years ended December !

2014 2013 2012
Net revenue $— $ 765 $ 4,02(
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, befoceme taxe: (78) (960) 3,83t
Income tax benefit (expens _ 30 362 (1,449
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, afie $(48) $(59¢) $ 2,38¢

For the year ended December 31, 2012, pre-taxanetrie from discontinued operations includes a gh#v,500 relating to a payment
received for a cancelled vendor contract at omeuofclosed operations.

NOTE 14 — (LOSS) INCOME PER COMMON SHARE

Basic net (loss) income per share is calculatedilagling net loss attributable to common stockhoddey the weighted average shares
outstanding during the period, without considerafimr common stock equivalents.

Diluted net (loss) income per share is calculateddjusting weighted average shares outstandinthéodilutive effect of common share
equivalents outstanding for the period, determingidg the treasury stock method. There were no camstock equivalents with a dilutive
effect during the years ended December 31, 20143 28d 2012 and therefore, basic and diluted oss)lincome per share were the sam:
all periods presented. Loss attributable to comstonkholders includes the accretion of RedeemataifePed Stock in 2014, 2013 and 2012.

NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 12, 2015, we entered into a Masterfgent Lease Agreement (“Master Equipment Agreemavith a lender to provide
financing up to $4,000 for the purpose of purchgsinleasing vehicles and related service equipmsed in the normal course of business.
Vehicles and equipment purchased or leased unideltister Equipment Agreement serve as collaterad@ch note controlled by this
financing arrangement. Each
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financing arrangement under this Master Equipmeagredment will serve as a separate note and oldigaRegular payments are due under
each note at the time the obligation occurs foerop of 60 consecutive months. There was no balantstanding thereunder at
December 31, 2014.

On March 12, 2015, we acquired 100% of the stockraambership interests of nine branch locationkectively referred to as BDI
Insulation, for total consideration of approximgt®B6,000, subject to finalization of a working tapadjustment. The initial accounting for
the business combination was not complete at the tie financial statements were issued due ttirttieg of the acquisition and the filing
our Annual Report on Form 10-K. As a result, disoles required under ASC 805-10-50-2(h), Businesslinations, cannot be made at this
time.

NOTE 16 — QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITE D)

Summarized unaudited quarterly financial result2féil4 and 2013 is as follows:

201«
March 31 (a June 3( September & December 3 Total Yeal

Net revenue $ 105,94t $126,34¢ $ 140,45 $ 145,27 $518,02(
Gross profit 26,40! 34,80¢ 39,62¢ 39,21( 140,05:
Income from continuing operatiol 401 2,32 6,19¢ 5,05¢ 13,98(
Net income 37< 2,30 6,19¢ 5,05¢ 13,93:
Net (loss) income attributable to common stockhi (19,52¢) 2,301 6,19¢ 5,05¢ (5,96%)
Net (loss) income per share (basic and diluted)s$l. income

per share from continuing operations attributabledmmon

stockholders $ (075 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1€ $ (0.20

(Loss) income per share attributable to

common stockholdel $ (0.7¢¢ $ 0.07 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1€ $ (0.20
201¢
- March 31 June 3( September & December 3 Total Yeal
Net revenu $ 91,96: $104,68t $ 115,95: $ 119,33l $431,92¢
Gross profit 22,27¢ 26,25¢ 29,94¢ 31,21( 109,68
(Loss) income from continuing operatic (243) 1,43¢ 3,06¢ 2,37 6,63¢
Net (loss) incomi (530 1,22¢ 2,967 2,371 6,04(
Net (loss) income attributable

common stockholdel (2,017%) (30¢) 1,38¢ 751 (189
Net (loss) income per share (basic and diluted)sgl) income

per share from continuing operations attributabledmmon

stockholdel $ (0.0¢) $ — $ 0.07 $ 0.0z $ 0.0z

(Loss) income per share attributable to

common stockholdel $ (0.09 $ (0.0 $ 0.07 $ 0.0z $ (0.0

(&) Netloss attributable to common stockholders ferdbarter ended March 31, 2014 included $19,8%¢ofetion of Redeemakt
Preferred Stock to its redemption value at the tiheur IPO. Prior to the redemption, we accouritedhe difference between the
carrying amount of the Redeemable Preferred Stodktlze redemption amount by increasing the carrgimgunt for the periodic
accretion which reduces net income to arrive atosst attributable to common stockholde
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Earnings-per-share amounts are computed indepdn@aich quarter for net (loss) income from contigudperations, net (loss) income from
discontinued operations and net loss attributabtnmon stockholders. As a result, the sum of gaelnter’'s per-share amount may not
equal the total per-share amount for the respegtee, and the sum of per-share amounts from agintiroperations and discontinued
operations may not equal the total per-share arsdannet loss attributable to common stockholdiershe respective quarters.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Acunting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable

Iltem 9A.  Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedurg

We conducted an evaluation of our disclosure cémtnd procedures as of December 31, 2014 witpdtcipation of the Chief Executive
Officer (“CEQ”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO’3s required by Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) addlB%e). Based on that evaluation,
our CEO and CFO concluded that our disclosure otsémd procedures were effective as of Decemhe2@®4.

(b) Management’s Report on Internal Control over Fhancial Reporting

Management’s report on our internal control oveaficial reporting (as such term is defined in R@s-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the
Exchange Act) is included in this Form 10-K undent 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Datier the heading, “Management’s
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reportiagd is incorporated herein by reference.

Although we were not required to and did not engageindependent registered public accounting fwmonduct an audit of our internal
control over financial reporting in connection witte audits of our consolidated financial statemastof and for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012, our independent regjispriblic accounting firm informed us that thegritfied a material weakness and
significant deficiencies relating to our internahtrol over financial reporting under standardsielished by the PCAOB. The PCAOB defi
a material weakness as a deficiency, or a combimati deficiencies in internal control over finasaieporting such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the @any’s annual or interim financial statements wdt be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. The material weakness identified by ourpedelent registered public accounting firms reléateaidjustments made in connection with
their audits to our financial statements in theaaref income taxes, self-insurance reserves, siaskd compensation, accounts payable,
discontinued operations, derivative accountinglaade accounting, and results primarily from insight personnel within our organization
possessing an appropriate level of knowledge, épez and training with regard to complex transaxstiand technical accounting matters,
particularly as they relate to public companies.

Throughout 2014, we implemented numerous improvéstennternal controls over financial reportingaiddress the material weakness and
significant deficiencies. These improvements inellidout are not limited to, the following:

. Income taxe- we analyze certain tax provision calculations enfoequently during the year and have retainedtidil personnel
with expertise in this area, allowing for additiblevels of review

. Self-insurance reservesve have instituted a more thorough monthly revadwur incurred but not reported (IBNR) reserve an
hired an external actuarial firm to perform a s-annual actuarial analysis of our insurance rese

. Stock-based compensatiowe have instituted policies and procedures byctvittie compensation committee of our board of
directors, in coordination with management, has\aitideview and approve all future equity awar
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. Accounts payable, discontinued operations and leaseuntinc- we have revised our accounting policies andtinstil additional
monthly and quarterly review procedures; i

. Derivative accountin- we have engaged an external accounting firmgisiass in identifying and properly accounting for
derivative features when derivatives may e;

In addition, (i) we hired a Chief Accounting Officea Manager of Financial Reporting, an AccountgaPée Manager, and a Senior Tax
Accountant, all of whom have public company finahexperience; (ii) our Director of Internal Audiias created a structured Internal Audit
function; (iii) we instituted a Sarbanes-Oxley Acmpliance program that has strengthened our ialteontrol over financial reporting; and
(iv) we reorganized our audit committee to oversiéareas of internal audit and internal contrald anaintain communication with
independent auditors. In addition, under the dioecof the audit committee of our board of direstawe have and will continue to develop
and implement policies and procedures to improeeotrerall effectiveness of internal control overaficial reporting. As we continue to
evaluate and work to improve internal control ofieancial reporting, management may determine ke tdditional measures to address
control deficiencies or determine to modify the esliation plan described above.

Based on the aforementioned evaluation of our assck controls and procedures as of December 34, 2th the participation of our CEO
and CFO, including the remediation actions notemvabmanagement concluded that the material wealares significant deficiencies have
been remediated and internal control over finaneipbrting was effective at December 31, 2014.

(c) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Other than the remediation efforts described abthexe were no changes in our internal control éwancial reporting identified in
management’s evaluation pursuant to Rules 13a-15(83d-15(d) of the Exchange Act during the questedled December 31, 2014 that
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenally affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

ltem 9B. Other Information

Not Applicable.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

The information required by this item will be setth under the headings “Election of Directors,k#€eutive Officers,” “Corporate
Governance” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownergkgporting Compliance” in our definitive proxy statent for the 2015 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders (“2015 Proxy Statement”) to bedfilgith the SEC within 120 days of the fiscal yeaded December 31, 2014 and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Our board of directors has adopted a code of bssioenduct and ethics that applies to all of ouplegees, officers and directors, including
our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officend other executive and senior financial offic@tse full text of our code of business
conduct and ethics is posted on the investor cglatpage on our website which is located at httpgstors.installedbuildingproducts.com.
We will post any amendments to our code of busigessluct and ethics, or waivers of its requiremesrisour website.
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Item 11. Executive Compensatior

The information required by this item will be setth under the headings “Compensation of our Exee@fficers and Directors” and
“Compensation Committee Interlocks and InsideriBigetion” in our 2015 Proxy Statement and is ipmated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andvlanagement and Related Stockholder Matter:

The information required by this item will be setth under the heading “Security Ownership of GerBeneficial Owners and Management”
in our 2015 Proxy Statement and is incorporatedihdyy reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence

The information required by this item will be setth under the headings “Certain RelationshipsReldted Transactions” and “Corporate
Governance” in our 2015 Proxy Statement and isrpm@ated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Service

The information required by this item will be setth under the heading “Independent Registeredi®Albtounting Firm Fees and Pre-
Approval Policies and Procedures” in our 2015 Pr8fgtement and is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul
(a) The following documents are filed as a parthif Form 10-K:

1. Financial Statements: The Consolidated Finatgtitlements, the Notes to Consolidated FinancééBients, and the
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing for Installed Building Products, Inc. are geated in
Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary, ®athis Form 1-K.

2. Financial Schedules: All financial statementesiiies have been omitted because they are inaplgljc®ot required,
or shown in the consolidated financial statementsraotes in Item 8, Financial Statements and Sumpgary Data,
of this Form 1-K.

3. Exhibits: A list of the exhibits required to filed as part of this report is set forth in theléx to Exhibits and is
incorporated by referenc

(b) See Index to Exhibits.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regitthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.

Date: March 13, 2015

INSTALLED BUILDING PRODUCTS INC.

/sl Jeffrey W. Edwards
By: Jeffrey W. Edwards
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl Jeffrey W. Edwards President, Chief Executive Officer and March 13, 2015
Jeffrey W. Edwards Chairman of the Board of Directors

(Principal Executive Officer

/s/ Michael T. Miller Executive Vice President, Chief Financial March 13, 2015
Michael T. Miller Officer and Director
(Principal Financial Officer

/s/ Todd R. Fry Chief Accounting Officer March 13, 2015
Todd R. Fry (Principal Accounting Officer
/sl Margot L. Carter Director March 13, 2015

Margot L. Carte

/s/ Lawrence A. Hilsheimer Director March 13, 2015
Lawrence A. Hilsheime

/s/ Janet E. Jackson Director March 13, 2015
Janet E. Jacksc

/s/ J. Michael Nixon Director March 13, 2015
J. Michael Nixor

/s/ Steven G. Raich Director March 13, 2015
Steven G. Raic

/s/ Robert H. Schottenstein Director March 13, 2015
Robert H. Schottenste

/s/ Michael H. Thomas Director March 13, 2015
Michael H. Thoma
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Exhibit 10.22
INSTALLED BUILDING PRODUCTS, INC.

RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT
PURSUANT TO THE
INSTALLED BUILDING PRODUCTS, INC.
2014 OMNIBUS INCENTIVE PLAN

This RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT Agreement”) is effective as ofe] , 2015 by and between Installed Building Products,
Inc., a Delaware corporation (th&€bmpany”), and[¢] (the “Participant ).

Terms and Conditions

The Committee hereby grants to the Participanhasligible Employee of the Company or any of itdildtes, as ofe] , 2015 (the “
Grant Date "), pursuant to the Installed Building Products;.I8014 Omnibus Incentive Plan, as it may be anafriben time to time (the “
Plan ™), the number of shares of the Company’s CommariSset forth in Section ielow. Except as otherwise indicated, any capitdliz
term used but not defined herein shall have thenmgaascribed to such term in the Plan. A copyhefPlan has been delivered to the
Participant. By signing and returning this Agreeiméme Participant acknowledges having receivedraad a copy of the Plan and agrees to
comply with the Plan, this Agreement and all apgilie laws and regulations.

Accordingly, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Grant of Shares. Subject in all respects to the Plan and the termscanditions set forth herein and therein, effects of the Grant
Date, the Company hereby awards to the Particjphahares of its Common Stock. Such shares are subjeettain restrictions set forth in
Section zhereof, which restrictions shall lapse at the ties/ided under Section 2(hgreof. For the period during which such restritsio
are in effect, the shares of Common Stock subgestith restrictions are referred to herein as tRestricted Stock. ” The Restricted Stock,
in the sole discretion of the Committee, shall bidenced by a certificate or be credited to a beky account maintained by the Company
(or its designee) on behalf of the Participant sunch certificate or book entry (as applicable) Idb@lnoted appropriately to record the
restrictions on the Restricted Stock imposed hereby

2. Restricted Stock.

(a) Rights as a Stockholder Prior to the time the Restricted Stock is fully tegshereunder, (i) the Participant shall have ghbtri
to tender shares of Restricted Stock, (ii) dividendother distributions (collectively, “dividendsin shares of Restricted Stock shall be
withheld, in each case, while the Restricted Stecubject to restrictions, and (iii) in no evehal dividends or other distributions payable
thereunder be paid unless and until the shareestirigted Stock to which they relate no longersagiect to a risk of forfeiture. Dividends
that are not paid currently shall be credited tokkeeping accounts on the Company’s records fquqmes of the Plan and shall not accrue
interest. Such dividends shall be paid to the Eiggnt in the same form as paid on the Common Sipck the lapse of the restrictiol




(b) Vesting . The Restricted Stock shall vest and cease to bei€ted Stock (but will remain subject to the teraighis
Agreement and the PlahNON-SECTION 16 EMPLOYEES: on the first anniversary of the Grant Date] [ SECTION 16 OFFICERS:
in three equal installments on each of the first,econd and third anniversaries of the Grant Date ] providedthat the Participant has not
experienced a Termination prior to the applicatdsting date(s). There shall be no proportionageadtial vesting in the periods prior to the
applicable vesting date(s) and all vesting shatlioonly on the applicable vesting date(s).

(c) Eorfeiture . The Participant shall forfeit to the Company, withoompensation, any and all unvested RestrictedkSt
immediately upon the Participant’s Termination &owy reason.

(d) Section 83(b). If the Participant properly elects (as permittedsbgtion 83(b) of the Code) within thirty (30) dafter the
issuance of the Restricted Stock to include inginsome for federal income tax purposes in the géessuance the fair market value of si
Restricted Stock, the Participant shall delivethim Company a signed copy of such election prongdthr the making of such election, and
shall pay to the Company or make arrangementdaettisy to the Company to pay to the Company upah £lection, any federal, state,
local or other taxes of any kind that the Companequired to withhold with respect to the RestidcEtock. The Participant acknowledges
that it is his or her sole responsibility, and tit Company’s, to file timely and properly the élee under section 83(b) of the Code and any
corresponding provisions of state tax laws if hsloe elects to utilize such election.

(e) Certificates . If, after the Grant Date, certificates are issudith wespect to the shares of Restricted Stock, @sttance and
delivery of certificates shall be made in accordawith the applicable terms of the Plan.

3. Detrimental Activity .

(a) The provisions in the Plan regarding DetrimeAtdivity shall apply to the Restricted Stock asyided herein. In the event t
Participant engages in Detrimental Activity prior br during the one year period after, any vestifithe Restricted Stock, the Committee
may direct (at any time within one year after saolyagement in Detrimental Activity) that all umegbRestricted Stock shall be immediately
forfeited and that the Participant pay over to@woenpany an amount equal to the Fair Market Valuef éise vesting date(s) of any Restricted
Stock that had vested in the period referred tovabo

(b) The Participant acknowledges and agrees teatttirictions herein and in the Plan regardingibental Activity are
necessary for the protection of the business andwitl of the Company and its Affiliates, and aenesidered by the Participant to be
reasonable for such purposes. Without intendirlgrib the legal or equitable remedies availabléhia Plan and in this Agreement, the
Participant acknowledges that engaging in



Detrimental Activity will cause the Company andAtSiliates material irreparable injury for whichére is no adequate remedy at law, that it
will not be possible to measure damages for suchi@s precisely and that, in the event of suclvagtor threat thereof, the Company shall
be entitled, in addition to the remedies providadar the Plan, to obtain from any court of compigjinisdiction a temporary restraining
order or a preliminary or permanent injunction raising the Participant from engaging in Detriméwtetivity or such other relief as may be
required to specifically enforce any of the coveran the Plan and this Agreement without the ngibesf posting a bond, and in the case of
a temporary restraining order or a preliminary mgjtion, without having to prove special damages.

4. Certain Legal Restrictions. The Plan, this Agreement, the granting and vesifrthe Restricted Stock, and any obligations of
the Company under the Plan and this Agreement, Iséaubject to all applicable federal, state awall laws, rules and regulations, and to
such approvals by any regulatory or governmentahag as may be required, and to any rules or régofof any exchange on which the
Common Stock is listed.

5.Change in Control. The provisions in the Plan regarding Change in @bshall apply to the Restricted Stock.

6. Withholding of Taxes. The Company shall have the right to deduct from geyyment to be made pursuant to this Agreement
and the Plan, or to otherwise require, prior toitiseance or delivery of any shares of Common Stoakment by the Participant of, any
federal, state or local taxes required by law toviitkheld.

7. Provisions of Plan Control. This Agreement is subject to all the terms, condgiand provisions of the Plan, including, witt
limitation, the amendment provisions thereof, amduch rules, regulations and interpretationsirejab the Plan as may be adopted by the
Committee and as may be in effect from time to tifitee Plan is incorporated herein by referencantf to the extent that any provision of
this Agreement conflicts or is inconsistent witle terms set forth in the Plan, the Plan shall abndind this Agreement shall be deemed to be
modified accordingly.

8. Recoupment Palicy. The Participant acknowledges and agrees that th&i&ed Stock shall be subject to the terms and
provisions of any “clawback” or recoupment polityat may be adopted by the Company from time to tmas may be required by any
applicable law (including, without limitation, tli#odd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Praiactict and rules and regulations
thereunder).

9. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire understandingeparties with respect to the subject matteedfeanc
supersedes any prior agreements between the Comapdrthe Participant with respect to the subjedten&ereof.

10. Notices. Any notice or communication given hereunder shallrbwriting or by electronic means as set fortlséction 14
below and, if in writing, shall be deemed to haee duly given: (i) when delivered in person; fi#p (2) days after being sent by United
States mail; or (iii) on the first business daydwling the date of deposit if delivered by a natiynrecognized overnight delivery service, to
the appropriate party at the address set forthvb&o such other address as the party shall frame to time specify):

3



If to the Company, to:

Installed Building Products, Inc.

495 South High Street, Suite 50
Columbus, OH 43215

Attention: General Counsel and Secretary

If to the Participant, to the address on file viith Company.

11.No Guaranteed Employment Nothing contained in this Agreement shall affeet tight of the Company or any of its
Affiliates to terminate the Participant’'s employrmanany time, with or without Cause, or shall lperhed to create any rights to employment
or continued employment. The rights and obligatiarsing under this Agreement are not intendechtbdo not affect the Participant’s
employment relationship that otherwise exists betwthe Participant and the Company or any of ifdidtes, whether such employment
relationship is at-will or defined by an employmenntract. Moreover, this Agreement is not intenttednd does not amend any existing
employment contract between the Participant andCtirapany or any of its Affiliates; to the extenetd is a conflict between this Agreement
and such an employment contract, the employmeritaxirshall govern and take priority.

12. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL . EACH PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT, FOR ITSELF AND ITS AFFILIATES,
HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES TO TH E FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE
LAW ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCE EDING OR COUNTERCLAIM (WHETHER BASED ON
CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE) ARISING OUT OF OR RELA TING TO THE ACTIONS OF THE PARTIES HERETO OR
THEIR RESPECTIVE AFFILIATES PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEM ENT OR IN THE NEGOTIATION, ADMINISTRATION,
PERFORMANCE OR ENFORCEMENT OF THIS AGREEMENT.

13.Interpretation . All section titles and captions in this Agreemerd for convenience only, shall not be deemed {atis
Agreement, and in no way shall define, limit, extem describe the scope or intent of any provisiirthis Agreement.

14.Mode of Communications. The Participant agrees, to the fullest extent peechiby applicable law, in lieu of receiving
documents in paper format, to accept electroniivelgl of any documents that the Company or anysoAffiliates may deliver in connection
with this grant of Restricted Stock and any othangs offered by the Company, including, withouatitation, prospectuses, grant
notifications, account statements, annual or qugnteports, and other communications. The Parictdurther agrees that electronic delivery
of a document may be made via the Company’s emstiém or by reference to a location on the Commaimgtanet or website or the online
brokerage account system.




15.No Waiver . No failure by any party to insist upon the strietformance of any covenant, duty, agreement origondf this
Agreement or to exercise any right or remedy comsetjupon a breach thereof shall constitute waifany such breach or any other
covenant, duty, agreement or condition.

16. Severability . If any provision of this Agreement is declared aurid to be illegal, unenforceable or void, in whotén part,
then the parties hereto shall be relieved of dibakions arising under such provision, but onlyhe extent that it is illegal, unenforceable or
void, it being the intent and agreement of theipafiereto that this Agreement shall be deemed @eaeloy modifying such provision to the
extent necessary to make it legal and enforceabile wreserving its intent or, if that is not pddsj by substituting therefor another provision
that is legal and enforceable and achieves the saijeetives.

17.Counterparts . This Agreement may be executed in counterpartef athich together shall constitute one agreemeardibg
on all the parties hereto, notwithstanding thatatih parties are not signatories to the originéhe same counterpart.

18.Governing Law . This Agreement shall be governed by and constmied¢ordance with the internal laws of the State of
Delaware, without giving effect to its principlesamnflict of laws.

[Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executedAlgiseement on the date and year first above written.

INSTALLED BUILDING PRODUCTS, INC.

By:
Name
Title:

PARTICIPANT

By:

Name:



Significant Subsidiaries of Installed Building Prodicts, Inc.

Name

Accurate Insulation LL(C
American Insulation & Energy Services, LI
Baytherm Insulation, LL(
Building Materials Finance, Ini
Cornhusker Insulation, LL!
Garage Door Systems, LL

Gold Insulation, Inc

Gold Star Insulation, L.F

G-T-G, LLC

Hinkle Insulation & Drywall Company, Incorporat
IBHL A Holding Company, Inc
IBHL B Holding Company, Inc
IBHL Il -A Holding Company, Inc
IBHL 1l -B Holding Company, Inc
IBP Asset, LLC

IBP Exteriors, Inc

IBP Holdings, LLC

IBP Holdings Il, LLC

IBP Texas Assets I, LL!

IBP Texas Assets I, LL(
Installed Building Products, LL!

Jurisdiction of Organization

Maryland
Alabama
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
South Caroliné
Texas
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
New Jerse)
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

Delaware

Exhibit 21.1



Installed Building Products II, LL( Delaware

Installed Building Product- Portland, LLC Oregon
Installed Building Solutions II, LL( Delaware
InsulVall, LLC Colorada
Lakeside Insulation, LL( Delaware
LKS Transportation, LLC Delaware
Marv's Insulation, Inc Idaho
Metro Home Insulation, LL( Delaware
Mid South Construction and Building Products, | Georgia
Northwest Insulation, LL( Delaware
OJ Insulation, L.P Delaware
0OJ Insulation Holdings, In Delaware
Spec 7 Insulation Co., LL Coloradao
Suburban Insulation, In Pennsylvani
TCI Contracting, LLC Georgia
Thermal Control Insulation, LL( Ohio
U.S. Insulation Corg Connecticu

Wilson Insulation Company, LLf Georgia



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniReggion Statement No. 333-195107 on Form S-8uwfreport dated March 13, 2015,
relating to the consolidated financial statemeftsstalled Building Products, Inc. and subsidiaré@pearing in this Annual Report on Form
10-K of Installed Building Products, Inc. for thear ended December 31, 2014.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Columbus, Ohio
March 13, 2015



Exhibit 31.1
INSTALLED BUILDING PRODUCTS, INC.

Certification Required by Rule 13a-14(a) or 15dad4(
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

I, Jeffrey W. Edwards, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Installed Building Products, Inc. (the Registt);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dondtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoreaused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material informati@lating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isfg prepared

b) designed such internal control over financiglorting, or caused such internal control over fmahreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegdorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with general accepted acogupitinciples

C) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsagiisclosure controls and procedures and presénthis report our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaints procedures as of the end of the period coueydhis report based on
such evaluation; an

d) disclosed in this report any change in the temyi$'s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabirg that has materiall
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reportir

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioriernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weas®s in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: March 13, 2015 By: /s/ Jeffrey W. Edwards

Jeffrey W. Edwards
President and Chief Executive Offic



Exhibit 31.2
INSTALLED BUILDING PRODUCTS, INC.

Certification Required by Rule 13a-14(a) or 15dad4(
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

[, Michael T. Miller, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Installed Building Products, Inc. (the Registt);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dondtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresused such disclosure controls and procedoies designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isg prepared

b) designed such internal control over financiglorting, or caused such internal control over fmahreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with general accepted acogupitinciples

C) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsaiiSsclosure controls and procedures and presénthis report our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaints procedures as of the end of the period coueydhis report based on
such evaluation; an

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegyi$'s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrrg that has materiall
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reportir

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioriernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weas®s in the design or operation of internal corvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: March 13, 2015 By: /s/ Michael T. Miller

Michael T. Miller
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi



Exhibit 32.1

INSTALLED BUILDING PRODUCTS, INC.

Certification Required by Rule 13a-14(b) or 15d)4(
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and
Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the

United States Code

The certification set forth below is being subrdtte connection with the Installed Building Prodyjdnc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2014 (the “ReportHempurpose of complying with Rule 13a-14(b) oteRlbd-14(b) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) and Secti350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the Unitedt&aCode.

Jeffrey W. Edwards, the President and Chief Exeeudifficer, of Installed Building Products, Incertifies that, to the best of his knowledge:
1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2.  Theinformation contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the consolidfitehcial condition and results of
operations of Installed Building Products, |

Dated: March 13, 2015 By: /s/ Jeffrey W. Edwards
Jeffrey W. Edwards
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 32.2
INSTALLED BUILDING PRODUCTS, INC.

Certification Required by Rule 13a-14(b) or 15d)4(
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and
Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the
United States Code

The certification set forth below is being subrdtte connection with the Installed Building Prodydnc. Annual Report on Form 10-Q for

the year ended December 31, 2014 (the “ReportHempurpose of complying with Rule 13a-14(b) oteRlbd-14(b) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) and Secti350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the Unitedt&aCode.

Michael T. Miller, the Executive Vice President abbief Financial Officer, of Installed Building Rtocts, Inc., certifies that, to the best of
his knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2.  Theinformation contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the consolidfitehcial condition and results of
operations of Installed Building Products, |

Dated: March 13, 2015 By: /s/ Michael T. Miller

Michael T. Miller
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




